HARIBHAKTI & CO. LLP ANNEXURE]J1

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Vedanta Aluminium Metal Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Vedanta Aluminium Metal Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements including summary of
material accounting policy information and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
“financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) prescribed under
section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its loss (including other
comprehensive income), its changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other -information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including Ind AS prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to tiquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of this financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Ildentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under scction 143(3)(i) of the Act, we ara
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
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financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we report in “Annexure 17, a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(2) As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report
are in agreement with the books of account;

—=d._In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
\amended;
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e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025,
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in “Annexure 2”;

g. With respect to the other matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, no remuneration is paid/provided by the Company to its directors during the year and hence
reporting related to the managerial remuneration is not applicable;

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

(ii)) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts. Hence,
the question of any material foreseeable losses does not arise;

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company;

(iv) (@) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(iv) (b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(iv) (c) Based on the audit procedures that are considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
crepresenitations under sub-clause (1) and (1) of Rule [1(e), as provided under (a) and (b) dbove,

(@/t:onfain any material misstatement;
/52 Continuation Sheet
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(v) The Company has not declared nor paid any dividend during the year. Hence, reporting the
compliance with section 123 of the Act is not applicable;

(vi)Based on our examination, the Company has not used an accounting software for
maintaining its books of account. Hence, reporting related to audit trail is not applicable.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm istration No. 103523W / W100048

Deep‘ﬁi: Kabra

Partner

Membership No. 133472
UDIN: 25133472BMOMNS2419

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 17, 2025
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
in the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Vedanta Aluminium Metal
Limited (“the Company”) on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025]

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on
the financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the’ information,
explanations and written representation given to us by the management and the books of account
and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we report that:

The Company does not have any Property, Plant and Equipment or Intangible Assets.
Accordingly, reporting under clause (i) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(a) The Company does not hold any inventory. Therefore, reporting under clause (ii)(a) of
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not obtained any sanctioned working capital limit during the year,
from banks and/or financial institutions. Therefore, reporting under clause (ii)(b) of
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

During the year, the Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, reporting
under clause (iii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

The provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act are not applicable to the Company as the
Company has not granted any loans or made any investment or provided any guarantee or
security during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause (iv) of the paragraph 3 of the
Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to
be deposits. Accordingly, reporting under clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company is not required to maintain cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148
of the Act and the rules framed there under.

(@) The Company is regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities, undisputed
statutory dues including Goods and Services tax (GST), income-tax, duty of customs, cess
and any other material statutory dues applicable to it, in all cases during the year. Since,
the Company does not have any employees, statutory dues in form of provident fund and
employees’ state insurance are not applicable to the Company.

No undisputed amounts payable in respect of income tax, GST, customs duty, cess and
any other material statutory dues applicable to it, were outstanding, at the year end,
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

{b) There are no dues with respect to income tax, GST, customs duty and cess, which have
not been deposited on account of any dispute. Since, the Company does not have any
employees, there are no dues in the form of provident fund and employees’ state
insurance.

We have not come across any transactions which were previously not recorded in the books
of account of the Company that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the

: year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

:(Ia}"l'“i'he Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
.1 payment of interest thereon to any lender.
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(b) The Company has not taken loans from any bank or financial institution or government
or any government authority during the year. Hence, question of the Company being
declared wilful defaulter does not arise,

(c) The Company did not obtain any money by way of term loans during the year. Accordingly,
reporting under clause (ix)(c) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised
on short-term basis have, been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates, jointly controlled entities or
joint operations, as defined under the Act and hence reporting under clause (ix)(e)of
paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable.

(f) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates, jointly controlled entities or
joint operations, as defined under the Act and hence reporting under clause (ix)(f)of
paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable.

(@) The Company has not raised money by way of initial public issue offer / further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Therefore, reporting under clause (x)(a)
of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

{b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Therefore,
reporting under clause (x)(b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to
the information and explanations given {o us, we have neither come across any instance of
fraud by the Company nor any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the year, nor have we been informed of any such instance by the management.

(b) No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central Government
by the auditors of the Company in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, during the year or upto the date of this report.

(c) There are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year and
upto the date of this report.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, reporting under clause (xii)
of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

All transactions entered into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with
section 188 of the Act and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards. Since the Company is not required to
constitute an Audit Committee, the provisions of section 177 of the Act are not applicable to
the Company.

(@) In our opinion, the Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required
to have an internal audit system as per the provisions of the Act. Hence, reporting under
clause (xiv) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons

connected with them during the year and hence, provisions of section 192 of the Act are not
applicable to the Company.
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{a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Therefore, reporting under clause (xvi)(a) and (b) of paragraph 3 of the
Order are not applicable.

(b) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (“Directions”) by the Reserve Bank of India.
Accordingly, reporting under clause (xvi)(c) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable.

(c) As informed by the Company, the Group to which the Company belongs has no CIC as
part of the Group.

The Company has incurred cash losses for the current and the immediately preceding
financial year amounting to Rs. 2.85 Lakhs and Rs. 1.90 Lakhs respectively.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly,
reporting under clause (xviii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which cause us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
this audit report and that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to date of the
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

The provisions of section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. Hence, reporting
under clause (xx) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 103523W / W100048

DeeBEk Kabra

Partner

Membership No. 133472
UDIN: 25133472BMOMNS2419

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 17, 2025
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section in
our Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Vedanta Aluminium Metal Limited
on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under clause (i) of
sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Vedanta
Aluminium Metal Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

__for_our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 103523W / W100048

Deepak Kabra

Partner

Membership No. 133472
UDIN: 25133472BMOMNS2419

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 17, 2025
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Vedanta Aluminium Metal Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025

{All amounts in ¥ Lakhs)

Particulars Note islat A

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment - -
Financial assets

- Others 3 0.10 -
Other non-current assets - -
Total non-current assets 0.10 -
Current assets
[nventories - -
Financial assets - -

- Cash and cash Equivalents 4 0.76 1.00
Current tax assets (net) - -
Other current assets 5 0.60 0.18
Total current assets 1.36 1.18
Total Assets 1.46 1.18
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 6 1.00 1.00
Other Equity (4.75) (1.90)
Total Equity 3.75) (0.90)
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Other non-current liabilities - -
Total non-current liabilities - -
Current Liabilities
Financial habilities - -

- Borrowings 7 3.89 -
- Trade payables - -
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises - -
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 8 0.81 0.81
- Other financial liabilities 9 0.38 0.85
Other current liabilities 10 0.13 0.42
Provisions - -
Income tax liabilities (net) - -
Total current liabilities 5.21 2.08
Total Equity and Liabilities 1.46 1.18

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our attached report of even date

Haribhakti & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAT Firny on Number: 103523W/W100048

Decpakiibra
Partner

[CAT Membership Number: 133472

Place: Mumbai
Date: 17th April 2025

For and on

Place: Delhi
Date: 17th April 2025 Date: 17th April 2025

1e board of directors of Vedanta
Aluminium Metal Limited

X\~

—

“Pankaj
Director
DIN: 09114381

Place: Jharsuguda




Vedanta Aluminium Metal Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts in ¥ Lakhs unless stated othenrvise)

For the period
For the year ended 06 October

Particulars JStE 31 March 2025 2023 to 31
March 2024

Revenue from operations B =
Total Income # =
Expenses:

Finance costs 11 0.51 -
Other expenses 12 2.34 1.90
Total expenses 2.85 1.90
Loss before tax (2.85) (1.90)
Tax Expense - .
Net Loss after tax (A) (2.85) (1.90)

Other Comprehensive income
[tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Items that will be reclassified to protit or loss = -
Total Other Comprehensive Income for the period (B) - -

Total Comprehensive Income for the period (A+B) (2.85) (1.90)

Eamings per share (in %)
- Basic and Diluted 13 (2.85) (1.90)

The accompanying notes are an integral part ot the financial statements.
As per our attached report of even date
Haribhakti & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants ~ For ang on behalf
[CAT Firm Registration Number: 103523W/W 100048

“the board of directors of Vedanta
Aluminium Metal Limited

Deepak Kabra Mr. Mr. Pankaj Jha
Partner Dirtctor Director

[CAI Membership Number: 133472 DIN: 08551388 DIN: 09114381
Place: Mumbai Place: Delhi Place: Jharsuguda

Date: 17th April 2025 Date: 17th April 2025 Date: 17th April 2025




Vedanta Aluminium Metal Limited
Cash Flow Statement For the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts in ¥ Lakhs)

For the period
Particulars For the year ended | 06 October 2023
31 March 2025 to 31 March
2024
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Loss before taxation (2.85) (1.90)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation - -
Provision for doubtful debts/ advance/ bad debts written off = -
Interest income - a
Interest expense 043 -
Changes in assets and liabilities
Decrease/ {Increase) in trade and other receivables (042) (0.18)
Decrease/ (Increase) in non current financial assets (010 -
(Decrease)/ [ncrease in trade and other pavable (1.19) 208
Cash generated from operations 4.13) -
Income taxes paid (net) - -
Net cash generated from operating activities (4.13) E
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (including intangibles) = -
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - -
Interest received - -
Dividends received - -
Net cash generated from investing activities - -
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from short-term borrowings (net) 3.89 -
Proceeds from issue of share capital - 1.00
Net cash used in financing activities 3.89 1.00
Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents 0.24) 1.00
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 1.00 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period (Refer note 4) 0.76 1.00
Notes :
1. The figures in parentheses indicate outflow.
2. The above cash flow has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7 - statement of cash flows
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our attached report of even date
Haribhakti & Co. LLP For and on behalf of thi: board of/directors of Vedanta Aluminium
Chartered Accountants Metal Limited
ICAT Fi tion Number: 103523W/W100048 |
'S
\ W,

. Anup Agarwal . Pankaj Jha
Partner Director Director
ICAT Membership Number: 133472 IN: 08551388 DIN: 09114381
Place: Mumbai Place: Delhi Place: Jharsuguda

Date: 17th April 2025 Date: 17th April 2025 Date: 17th April 2025



Vedanta Aluminium Metal Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2025

A. Equity Share Capital (Refer Note No. 6)

(All amounts in < Lakhs)

Equity shares of ¥ 1/- each issued, subscribed and fully paid up

Number of shares
(in lakhs) Amount

As at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024

1.00 1.00

B. Other Equity

Reserves and Surplus
Particulars Total other equity
Retained earnings

Balance as at 06 October 2023 = -
Loss for the period (1.90) (1.90)
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax -

Total Comprehensive Income for the period (1.90) (1.90)
Balance as on 31 March 2024 (1.90) (1.90)
Loss for the year (2.85) (2.85)
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax = -
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (2.83) (2.85)
Balance as at 31 March 2025 (4.75) (4.75)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our attached report of even date
Haribhakti & Co. LLP

Partner
ICAI Membership Number: 133472

Place: Mumbai
Date: 17th April 2025

{ flirectors of Vedanta Aluminium

For and on behalf of)the board g
7 Metal Limited

Director
DIN: 09114381

Place: Delhi Place: Jharsuguda
Date: 17th April 2025 Date: 17th April 2025



Vedanta Aluminium Metal Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

NOTE 1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Vedanta Aluminium Metal Limited ("the Company") is a Public Company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"). The Company was incorporated on 06 October 2023 for carrying out the business activities in the
metal and mining sector.

NOTE 2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND BASIS OF MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(a) Basis of Preparation

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act (as amended from time to time). These
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies, set out below.

Al financial information presented in Indian Rupee has been rounded off to the nearest Lakhs except when indicated otherwise.

These financials statements are approved for issue by the Board of Directors on April 17, 2025. The revision to these financials
statements is permitted by the Board of Directors after obtaining necessary approvals or at the instance of regulatory authorities as per

provisions of the Act.

(b) Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost convention and on an accrual method of

accounting.



Vedanta Aluminium Metal Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

NOTE 2.2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards requires the management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of
current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

Accounting for foreign currency transactions

The functional currency of the Company is determined as the currency of the primary economic environment in which it operates. For
all principal businesses of the Company, the functional currency is Indian rupee . The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee.

In the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in other
currencies are translated into the functional currency at exchange rates prevailing on the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in other currencies and measured at historical cost or fair value are translated at the exchange rates prevailing on
the dates on which such values were determined.

All exchange differences are included in the statement of profit and loss except those where the monetary item designated as an
effective hedging instrument of the currency risk of designated forecasted sales or purchases, which are recognized in the other
comprehensive income.

Earnings Per Share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its equity shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the
profit or loss attributable to equity sharcholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to equity sharcholders and the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding tor the effects ot all dilutive potential equity shares

Provisions

The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions have been made in accordance with the applicable Ind AS.

Provisions represent liabilities for which the amount or timing is uncertain. Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present
obligation (legal or constructive), as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably
estimated, will be required to settle such an obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions ate determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to net
present value using an appropriate pre tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Unwinding of the discount is recognized in the statement of profit and loss as a finance
cost. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.



Vedanta Aluminium Metal Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

(e)

U}

Current and non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification.

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

— it is expected to be realized in, or is intended tor sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle.

— it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded:

— it is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date: or

— it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

— it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

— it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded:

— it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

— the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not
affect its classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non current only.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term money market deposits which have a maturity of three

months or less from the date of acquisition, that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in value.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above.

(g) Financial assets

The Company classifies its financial assets in following measurement categories :-
a.Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income (OCI) or through profit or loss) and
b. those measured at amortised cost.

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of financial asset not at fair value
through profit and loss, transaction cost that are directly attributable to the acquisition of financial asset. Transaction cost of financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

For equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value in OCI. The
Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at
FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the
amounts from OCI to the statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative
gain or loss within equity.



Vedanta Aluminium Metal Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

(h) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or as loans. borrowings

and payables as appropriate.

All financial Habilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of financial liabilities at amortised cost, net of directly
attributable transaction costs. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans, borrowings and trade and other payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the EIR amortisation process.

(i) Equity investment in subsidiaries
At initial recognition. investments representing equity interest in subsidiaries are recognized at Fair value. Subsequently, all fair value

changes, excluding dividends, are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income(OCT). There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI
to the statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within

equity.
(j) Standards notified but not yet effective

No new standards have been notified during the year ended 31 March 20235.



Vedanta Aluminium Metal Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

3 Non Current Financial Assets - Others

(All amounts in < Lakhs unless stuted otherwise)

Particulars

As at 31 March
2025

As at 31 March
2024

Security Deposit

0.10

Total

0.10

4 Current financial assets - Cash and cash equivalents

As at 31 March

As at 31 March

Particulars 2025 2024
Balances with banks 0.76 1.00
Total 0.76 1.00

5 Other Current Assets

Particulars

As at 31 March
2025

As at 31 March
2024

fnput GST

Total

=Y

Share capital

Particulars

As at 31 March
2025

As at 31 March
2024

A. Authorised Equity Share Capital

I lakh equity shares of Z1/- each 1.00 1.00

B. Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up Equity Share Capital
| lakh equity shares of Z1/- each 1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00

Total issued, subscribed and fully paid up share capital

C. Shares held by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries*

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Num behre‘l’: Shares o/ of holding SNh::'e:":ej’; % of holding
Vedanta Limited and their nominees 1,00,000 100% 1,00,000 100%
Total 1.00.000 100% 1,00,000 100%

* The % of holding has been calculated on the issued and subscribed share capital as at the balance sheet date

D. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company *

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
N“'“b:e;’; Shares o, of holding g‘:r"e:eh’g: % of holding

Vedanta Limited and thetr nominees 1,00,000 100% 1,00,000 100%

Total 1.00,000 100% 1,00,000 100%

* The % of holding has been calculated on the issued and subscribed share capital as at the balance sheet date




Vedanta Aluminium Metal Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All umounts in T Lakhs unlesy stated otherwise)

6 Share capital (Continued)
E. Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters and Promoter Group
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
N“'“bﬁ;;l{ Shares o/ it holding ST':'r"e:eh'e;’; % of holding
Vedanta Limited 99,994 99.99% 99,994 99.99%

Mr. Anup Agarwal I 0.00% 1 0.00%
Mr. Pankaj Jha | 0.00% 1 0.00%
Mr. Sunil Gupta | 0.00% 1 0.00%
Ms, Mansi Dhiman | 0.00% 1 0.00%

I

Mr. Swapnesh Bansal* 0.00% - 0.00%
Mr, Jagdeep Singh* - 0.00% 1 0.00%
Mr Mayank Totla 1 0.00% 1 0.00%
Total 1,00,000 100% 100,000 100%

Vedanta Limited is the Holding Company of the Company and is the beneficial owner while the nominee shareholders are the registered owners
* The nominee shareholder has been changed from Mr. Jagdeep Singh to Mr. Swapnesh Bansal with effect from April 26, 2024

F. Reconciliation of shares:

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Number of Shares Number of Shares
Rs. Rs.
At the beginning of period 1,00,000 1,00,000 - -
Shares issued during the period - - 1,00,000 1,00,000
Shares outstanding at the end of the reporting period 1,00,000 1.00,000 1,00,000 1,00,000

G. Terms/rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Z1 per share (31 March 2024: Z1 per share). Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per
share

The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees in accordance with the provisions of the Act. The dividend, if proposed by the Board of Directors, is subject to
the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

H. There are no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts or commitments for the sale of shares or disinvestment,
L. There are no unpaid calls from any Directors and officers

7 Current Financial liabilities - Borrowings

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

At amortised cost

Unsecured
Loans from related parties (Refer Note 17) 3.89 -
Total 3.89 -

a) Rate of interest and Repayment terms
1. Rate of interest - 10 40%(PY NA)
2 Repayment Terms - Repayable in | year as per lenders demand.



Vedanta Alumininm Metal Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

b) Movement in borrowings during the year:

(All umounts in < Lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Particulars

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Opening Balance as at April 01, 2024
Cash Flow
Other non cash changes

3.89 .

As at March 31, 2025

3.89 -

oo

Current Financial liabilities - Trade payables

Particulars

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Undisputed dues — Micro and Small Enterprises
Unbilled dues

Not due

Less than 1 year

More than | year

Sub-total - -
Undisputed dues - Others

Unbilled dues 0.81 081
Not due - -
Less than [ year - -
More than | year - -
Sub-total 0.81 0.81
Disputed dues - Micro and Small Enterprises

Unbilled dues - -
Not due - -
Less than | year - -
More than | year - -
Sub-total - -
Disputed dues - Others

Unbilled dues - -
Not due - -
Less than | year - -
More than 1 year - -
Sub-total - -
Total 0.81 0.81

9 Other Financial Liabilities

Particulars

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

-Brand Fees Payable (Refer Note 17)
-Accrued interest (Refer Note 17)

Total

10 Other Current Liabilities

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Particulars

-TDS Payable 013 024

-GST Payable - 018
0.13 0.42

Total




Vedanta Aluminium Metal Limited
Notes farming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

Al amounts in < Lakhs unless stated otherwise)
11 Finance costs

Year ended 31 For the period 06 October

Particulars March 2025 2023 to 31 March 2024
Interest expense on financial liabilities at amortised cost 043 -
Others 008 000
Total 0.51 -

12 Other Expenses

Year ended 31 For the period 06 October

Barticubars March 2025 2023 to 31 March 2024
Brand License and Strategic Service Fees (Refer Note 17) 1.00 100
Others 019 -
Renumeration to auditors

- For Statutory Audit 090 0.90
- For other Services 025 =
Total 2.34 1.90

13 Earnings per equity share (EPS)

Particulars Year ended 31 For the period 06 October
March 2025 2023 to 31 March 2024+
Profit / (Loss) after tax for the period attributable to equity share holders for Basic and Diluted EPS (2.85) (1.90)
Weighted Average No. of equity shares outstanding during the period for Basic and Dilutive EPS 1,00,000 1,00.000
Basic and Diluted Earnings per share (in ¥) (2.85) (1.90)
Nominal value per share (in %) 1.00 1.00

*or the period 06 October 2023 to 31 March 2024, not annualised.

Smce the Company does not have any potential dilutive equity shares, both Basic Earning per share and Diluted lurning per share will be same.



Vedanta Aluminium Metal Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

14 Key Financial Ratios

Ratio Analysis 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 Variance
I |Current Ratio' 0.26 0.57 54%
2 |Debt Equity Ratio® (1.04) NA* 100%
3 |Debt Service Coverage Ratio” 0.54 NA* 100%
4 [Return on Equity Ratio’ (0.76) (2.11) 64%
5 |Inventory Turnover Ratio NA* NA* NA*
6 |Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio NA* NA* NA¥*
7 |Trade Payables Turnover Ratio NA* NA* NA*
8 |Net Capital Turnover Ratio NA* NA* NA*
9  [Net Profit Ratio NA* NA* NA*
10 |Return on Capital employed’ (20.63) (2.11) (8.79)
Il |Return on Investment NA* NA* NA*

Note: * Not Applicable due to Company has no Revenue, Inventory, Trade receivables, Investment during the period ended 31 March 2025
' The Ratio has decreased due to increase in debt during the current year
% The Ratio has increased due to new debt taken during the current year.
? The Ratio has decreased due to increase in net loss during the current year

Formulae for computation of ratios is as follows:

Ratio

Formula

| |Current Ratio (in times)

Current Assets/ Current Liabilities (excluding current maturities of long-term borrowing)

2 |Debt-Equity Ratio (in times)

Gross Debt/ Total Equity

Debt Service Coverage Ratio (in times)

Income available for debt service/ (interest expense and principal payments of long term
loans), where income available for debt service = Profit before exceptional iterns and tax +
Depreciation, depletion and amortization expense + Interest expense

Return on Equity Ratio (%)

Net Profit after tax before exceptional items (net of tax)/ Average Equity

Inventory turnover Ratio (in times)

Revenue from operations less EBITDA/ Average Inventory

Trade Receivables turmover Ratio (in times)

Revenue from operations/ Average Trade Receivables

Trade payables turnover Ratio (in times)

Total Purchases/ Average Trade Payables

V|| ™| &~

Net capital turnover Ratio (in times)

Revenue from operations/ Working capital (WC), where WC = Current Assets - Current
Liabilities (excluding current maturities of long-term borrowing)

9 [Net profit Ratio (%)

Net Profit after tax before exceptional items (net of tax)/ Revenue from operations

10 |Return on Capital employed (in times)

Earnings before interest and tax/ Average Capital Employed, where capital employed =
Net Debt + Total Equity

11 |Return on investment (%)

Income from investments carried at FVTPL/ Average current investments




Vedanta Aluminium Metal Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

15 Capital Management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital is to safeguard continuity, maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and provide adequate return to shareholders through continuing growth. The Company sets the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business
and long-term operating plans which include capital and other strategic investments. The funding requirements are met through a mixture of equity, internal fund
generation and borrowings The Company believes that it will be able to meet all its current liabilities on timely manner. The Company is yet to initiate any project

The following table summarizes the capital of the Company:

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 | As at 31 March 2024
Cash and cash equivalents 0.76 1.00
Total cash (a) 0.76 1.00
Non-current borrowings - -
Current borrowings 3.89 -
Tatal borrowings (b) 3.89 -
Net debt c=(b-a) 314 -1.00
Total equity -3.75 -0.90
Total capital (equity + net debt) (d) -0.62 -1.90
Gearing ratio (times) (c/d) -5.07 0.52

16 Contingent Liabilities & Commitments:

Based on the information available with the Company, there are no Contingent liabilities and commitments as at the period ended 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024:
Nil)

17 Related Party Disclosures:
List of related parties and relationships:

- Entities controlling the Company
Vedanta Incorporated (Ultimate Holding Company)
Vedanta Resources Limited (Intermediate Holding Company)
Vedanta Limited (Holding Company)

- Fellow Subsidiaries:
Vedanta Resources [nvestments Limited




Vedanta Aluminium Metal Limited
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17 Related Party Disclosures (Confinued)
. For the year ended 31 | For the period ended 31
t
Related party transactions/balances March 2025 March 2024
Transactions for the period
Vedanta Resources Investments Limited :
Brand License and Strategic Service Fees * 1.00 1.00
Vedanta Limited :
Investments received during the period as Share Capital - 1.00
Short term borrowings taken during the year 8.89 -
Repayment of short term Borrowings 5.00
Interest paid during the year 0.43 -
Balances at the vear end
Vedanta Resources Investments Limited - 0.85
Vedanta Limited
-Borrowings 3.89 -
0.38 =

-Accrued Interest

* The Company has a Brand license and strategic service fee agreement (“the Agreement”) with Vedanta Resources Limited, Vedanta Resources [nvestments
Limited ("VRIL") for the use ot brand ‘Vedanta’ and providing strategic services which envisaged payment to VRIL at the rate of 3% of turnover of the Company
or 1 Lakh, whichever is higher. The Company has recorded an expense of ¥ | Lakh (PY Z1 Lakh) for the year

18 Subsequent events:
There are no other material adjusting or non-adjusting subsequent events

19 Financial instruments
Fair values

(a) The carrying amounts of other receivables, cash at bank, borrowings and other payables approximate their fair values.

Categories of financial instruments:

Particulars

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

Financial assets
Loan and receivables (including cash and cash equivalents)

Financial liabilities
Loans and payables

0.86

5.08

1.00

1.66

(b) Market Risk Management

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices

(¢) Interest Rate Risk Management

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cashflows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates
At 31 March 2025, the Company’s net debt of Z 3.14 Lakhs (31 March 2024: Z(1) lakhs) comprises debt of ¥ 3.89 Lakhs (31 March 2024: Nil ) offset by cash,

bank of ¥ 0.76 Lakhs (31 March 2024: | Lakhs)

The Company is not exposed to interest rate risk as all the short-term and long-term borrowings are on fixed interest rate
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Financial instruments(Continued)

(d) Currency Risk Management

The Company is not exposed to the risk that may change in a manner which has material effect on the reported values of the Company's assets which are

denominated in other foreign currencies at reporting period

Currency profile

The currency profile of the Company's financial assets and liabilities is summarised as follows:
yp P

Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities

Particul:
arfientars ‘As at 31 March 2025 | As at 31 March 2025
INR 086 508

Financial Assets Financial Liabilities
dateloh As at 31 March 2024 | As at 31 March 2024
INR 1.00 1.66

As at 31 March 2025 the Company does not have any material exposure to foreign currencies and consequently the sensitivity relative to foreign currencies has not

been disclosed

(e) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its tinancial obligations as they fall due. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to
ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring

unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity

As at 31 March 2025

Payments due by year Up to 1 Year Total

Trade Payables 0.81 0.81

Borrowings* 428 428

Total 5.09 5.09

* Includes accrued interest

As at 31 March 2024

Payments due by year Up to 1 Year Total

Trade Payables 0.81 0.81

Borrowings - -
0.81 0.81

Total
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19 Financial instruments(continued)
(f) Capital risk management

For the purpose of the capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent The primary
objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the shareholder value

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and
borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents

The capital structure of the Company consists of stated capital, retained earnings and net debt

19 Scheme of Arrangement

The Board of Directors of holding company, ie, Vedanta Limited, in its meeting held on 29 September 2023, had approved a Scheme of Arrangement (“the
Original Scheme”) for demerger of various businesses of the holding Company, namely, demerger of the holding company’s Aluminium (represented by the
Aluminium segment), Merchant Power (represented by the Power segment), Oil & Gas (represented by the Oil and Gas segment), Base Metals (represented by the
Copper and Zinc International segment) and Iron Ore (represented by Iron Ore segment and Steel business) Undertakings, resulting in 6 separate companies
(including Vedanta Limited, being the demerged Company), with a mirrored shareholding and consequent listings at BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of
India Limited ("the Stock Exchanges"). The Board of Directors of the Company in the meeting held on 13 October 2023, had also approved the Scheme. The Stock
Exchanges gave their observation letter / no adverse observation letter to the Scheme in July 2024

A first motion application, in respect of the Original Scheme, was filed by demerged company (i.e., Vedanta Limited) and four resulting companies (i.e., Vedanta
Aluminium Metal Limited (“VAML”), Malco Energy Limited (“MEL”), Vedanta Base Metals Limited (“VBML™) and Vedanta Iron and Steel Limited (“VISL”)
before the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (“NCLT™) on 06 August 2024 (VEDL 1st Motion™). The Hon’ble NCLT, vide order dated 21
November 2024 (“VEDL NCLT Order™), inter alia directed: (i) Vedanta Limited to convene a meeting of its equity shareholders, secured creditors and unsecured
creditors within 90 days of the date of receipt of the order; (ii)) MEL to convene a meeting of its secured creditors and unsecured creditors within 90 days of the date
of receipt of the order; and (i) dispensed with the meeting of: (a) equity shareholders of VAML, MEL, VBML and VISL; and (b) secured creditors and unsecured
creditors of VAML, VBML and VISL

Subsequent to the above, in December 2024, by way of Board Resolutions dated 20 December 2024 and 23 December 2024, the Board of Vedanta Limited and
other five resulting companies (including the Company), respectively, decided not to proceed with the implementation of Part V of the Original Scheme ie,
demerger of Base Metal undertaking into VBML, along with making appropriate updates to the Original Scheme (“Updated Scheme™), The non-implementation of
the demerger of the Base Metals undertaking shall not affect any other parts of the Original Scheme described above

A separate first motion application had been filed by Talwandi Sabo Power Limited (“TSPL”), one of the resulting companies, with the Hon’ble NCLT, Mumbai
on 22 October 2024 (“TSPL st Motion™), given TSPL’s registered office (RO) was in the process of being changed from Mansa, Punjab to Mumbai, Maharashtra
at the time of filing VEDL Ist Motion. The Hon’ble NCLT, by its order dated 04 March 2025, disposed the TSPL 1st Motion rejecting the Scheme presented by
TSPL pursuant to TSPL Ist Motion (“TSPL NCLT Order™). TSPL has filed an appeal against the TSPL NCLT Order before the Hon’ble National Company Law
Appellate Tribunal, New Delhi (NCLAT) on 3 April, 2025

In compliance with the VEDL NCLT Order, the meeting of the equity shareholders, secured creditors and unsecured creditors of Vedanta Limited and secured
creditors and unsecured creditors of MEL was sccessfuly held on 18 February 2025 and the Updated Scheme was approved by the equity shareholders, secured
creditors and unsecured creditors of Vedanta Limited and secured and unsecured creditors of MEL

On 05 March 2025, Vedanta Limited along with VAML, MEL and VISL, filed a second motion petition before the Hon’ble NCLT inter alia seeking sanction of
the Updated Scheme. The same is currently pending for admission before the Hon’ble NCLT
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Additional Regulatory Information

The Company does not own any immovable property during the year

The Company does not have any Capital Work in progress or Intangible assets under development during the year

The Company does not have Property, Plant or Equipment and hence no revaluation has been done accordingly during the year.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances to promoters, directors, key managerial personnel (KMPs) and the related parties (as defined under
Companies Act, 2013) either severally or jointly with any other person, that are :

(a) Repayable on demand or
(b) Without specifying any terms or period of repayment

The Company has not availed any borrowings from banks or financial institutions based on the security of current assets of other companies / entities
within the same Group as the reporting entity.

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami
property.

The Company has no any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the [ncome Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).
The Company has not traded or invested in any crypto or virtual currency.

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities.

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

The Company does not have any secured external borrowings during the period and hence registration of charges or satisfaction not required

The Company does not have any transactions with struck off companies under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year.

In accordance Sec 135 and 198 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is incurring losses since the date of incorporation and hence the Company is
not required to incur any expenditure in pursuance of the CSR Policy for the FY 2024-25 (31 March 2024: Nil)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our attached report of even date

Haribhakti & Co. LLP For and gn behalf of the board of directors of Vedanta
Chartered Accountants Aluminifim Metal Lt
jstration Number: 103523W/W 100048
e LL
. / \
Decpak Anup Agarwal . Pankaj
Partner Director Director
[CAI Membership Number: 133472 DIN: 08551388 DIN: 09114381
Place: Mumbai Place: Delhi Place: Jharsuguda

Date: 17th April 2025 Date: 17th April 2025 Date: 17th April 2025
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S.R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP  ANNEXURE )2 World Mark - 2, Asset No. 8,
IGI Alrport Hospitality District, Aerocity,
Chartered Accountants New Delhi - 110 037, India

Tel: +91 11 4881 9500

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Talwandi Sabo Power Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Talwandi Sabo Power Limited (“the
Company"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2025, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March
31, 2025, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act
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with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeqguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually orin
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

> Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

»  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
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events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinfon. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safequards,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of Sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the “Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph below on reporting under Rule 11(qg);

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in the paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b)
and paragraph h(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g):
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(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;

(h) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2025 has been
paid / provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of Section
197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

vi.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements - Refer note 33 to the financial statements;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses:

There has been no delay in transferring amounts required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company;

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the note 46 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the note 46 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software except that audit trail feature for direct changes
to data in certain database tables was enabled for part of the year from March 03, 2025,
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as described in note 51 to the financial statements. Further, during the course of our
audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with in
respect of the accounting software where audit trail has been enabled. Additionally, the
audit trail of relevant prior year has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention, to the extent it was enabled and recorded in the
respective year, as stated in note 51 to the financial statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per A\mit Kumar Jain

Partner

Membership Number: 097214
UDIN: 25097214BMNSIS8639
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: April 22, 2025
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ANNEXURE 1 REFFERED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING “REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL
AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS OF OUR REPORT ON EVEN DATE

Re: Talwandi Sabo Power Limited (‘the Company’)

(i) (@ (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

@i

(i)

quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.
(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during the
year and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(c) The Title deeds in respect of freehold land having gross and net book value of Rs. 390 crores
are in the name of the Company but are not physically available with the Company. The same has
been pledged with Vistra ITCL (India) Limited.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use
assets) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2025.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

(a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year. In our opinion the coverage and the procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate. There was no inventory lying with third parties. There were no
discrepancies of 10% or more noticed, in the aggregate for each class of inventory.

(b) As disclosed in Note 15 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores in aggregate from banks during the year on the basis of
security of current assets of the Company. The quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company
with such banks are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company.

(a) During the year, the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other
parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided
security and granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(iii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(iii)Xd) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(e) There were no loans or advances in the nature of loans granted to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(iii(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the reguirement to report on clause
3(iiiXf) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) Thereare noloans, investments, guarantees, and securities given in respect of which provisions

of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(v) The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts

which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act
and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the

rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under Section
148(1) of the Act, related to the generation of power, and are of the opinion that prima facie,
the specified accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however,
made a detailed examination of the same.

(vii) (&) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues

including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-
tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues
applicable to it. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit
procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues
were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(b) The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other statutory
dues have not been deposited on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the Nature Amount Financial year to | Forum where dispute
statute of dues | (Rs.incrore) which it relates is pending
Income tax Act, Income 0.91 Assessment year Income tax Appellate

1961 tax 2012-2013 Tribunal

Income tax Act, Income 0.68 Assessment year Deputy Commissioner
1961 tax 2012-2013 of Income Tax
Income tax Act, Income 1.65 Assessment year | Commissioner of
1961 tax 2014-2015 Income Tax (Appeals)
Income tax Act, Income 0.04 Assessment year | Commissioner of
1961 tax 2017-2018 Income Tax (Appeals)
Income tax Act, Income 0.10 Assessment year Deputy Commissioner
1961 tax 2015-2016 of Income Tax
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Goods and Services | Indirect 3.63 Assessment Year | CGST (Appeals)
Act tax 1718,

Assessment Year

18-19

During the previous years, the Company has deposited INR 2.14 Crore under protest in connection
with a dispute with authorities for the assessment year 2012-13, 2014-15, 2017-18 and 2018-19.

(viii) The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix) (@ The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowing or in the payment
of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) The Company did not raise any funds during the year hence, the requirement to report on
clause (ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company, the Company
has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of
its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to report on
clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further
public offer (including debt instruments). Hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the vear under audit and hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) (@) No fraud/ material fraud by the Company or no fraud / material fraud on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) During the year, no report under Sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
has been filed by secretarial auditor, cost auditor or by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under
Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(@) to (c) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.
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(xiii) Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of Companies
Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the Ind AS
financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (@) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

(b)The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of audit report, for the period
under audit have been considered by us.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors
and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) The provisions of Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the requlations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(d) There are no other companies as part of the Group. Hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and immediately
preceding financial year.

(xviil) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xvili) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in Note 45 to the financial statements, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come
to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) (@) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to
be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with
second proviso to Sub-section 5 of Section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in Note 32
to the financial statements.
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(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred
to a special account in compliance of provision of Sub-section 6 of Section 135 of Companies Act.
This matter has been disclosed in Note 32 to the financial statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Amjt Kutnar Jain

Partner

Membership Number: 097214
UDIN: 25097214BMNSIS8639
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: April 22, 2025
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF Talwandi Sabo Power Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Talwandi
Sabo Power Limited (“the Company") as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of Internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India ("ICAI")}. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate Internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparaticn of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
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of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Ait Kumar Jain

Partner

Membership Number: 097214
UDIN: 25097214BMNSIS8639
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: April 22, 2025
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Balance Shest as at March 31, 2025

.IJIJ 4

ICAl Firm Registration No, : 301003E/E300005
hartered Accountants

Partner
Membership Mo 097214

Place : Mew Delh|
Date ; April 22, 2025

; QD
Plagé: Fujairah -
N

Chief Financial Officer
Place : Mansa
Date : April 22, 2025

Chief Executive Officer
Place : New Delhi
]

Shivangi Dhanuka
Company Secretary
1C51 Mem No A70586
Place : Mansa

{%in Crore)
As at As at
Particulars Notes Marct 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
I ASSETS
1 Non-current assets
() Property, plant and Equipment 3 7.120.20 748523
{b) Capital work-in-progress 3 1.03 3.05
{c) Intangible assets 3 263 2.76
(d) Financial assets
(i) Trade recevables 4 1,691.35 1,619.79
(i1} Other financial assets 5 45.85 7.59
(e} Delerred tax assats [Net) 43 128,70 106,57
{f) Other non-current assets & 6.02 177
(g) Income tax assets 223 2.45
Tatal nen-current assets 8,997.51 §,233.21
2 Current assets
{a] Inventories 7 28877 292.49
(b} Finaneial Assets
(i} Trade receivables 8 959.58 547.10
(i} Cash and cash equivalents 9 33.52 168,01
(i} Other bank balances 10 - 38.27
(iv) Other financial assets 11 111 0.65
(¢} Other current assets 12 35,13 15.41
(d} Income Lax assels 9.59 5.03
Total current assets 1,291.70 1,066.96
Total Assets 10,289.21 10,300,17
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
A Equity
(a) Equity share capital 13 3,206.61 3,206.61
(b} Other equity 14 447.98 416,15
Total Equity 3,654.59 3,622.76
B LIABILITIES
1 Non-current llabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
{I] Borrowings 15 4,333.66 4,871.57
(Il) Lease Liability 16 38.89 2.14
{b) Provisions 17 0,96 1.06
Tatal nan-current liabilities 4,373.51 4,874.77
2 |Current liabilities
{a] Financial llahilities
(i} Borrowings 18 1,444.89 1,178.75
(i) Lease Liability 15 £.30 136
{iil) Trade finance 19 450.78 37513
{iv) Trade payables 20
{a) Tnlai Ourtstanding dues ef Micre Enterprises and Small i 1.56
Enterprises
(b) Total Ou{standi.ng dues of creditars other than Micro Enterprises 116.12 36.35
and Small Enterprises
(v} Derivatives 40 0.04 -
(vi) Other financial liabllities 2 228.19 203.24
(b} Other current lizbilities 22 72 6.14
(¢) Provisions 23 0.08 0.11
Total current liabilities 2,261.11 1,802.64
Total Liabilities 6,634.62 6,677.41
Total Equity and Liabilities 10,285.21 10,300.17
See accompanying notes forming part of financial statements
In terms of aur report attached ¥
For 5. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP /7 Y%

Pankaj Kumar Sharma
Whole Time Directar
DIN: 10277510

Place: Mansa
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Talwandi Sabo Power Limited
CIN - UaD101MH2007PLCA3ISST

Statement of Prafit and Loss for the period ended March 31, 2025

{%in Crore]
Notes Year ended Yuear ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
| [Aevenue from operations 24 5.223.40 5,256.05
Il |Dther Operating Income 5 17.11 36.81
Il |Bther income 26 370 1614
IV |Tatal Income (I+E=11) 524021 5,306.00
V' |Expenses:
Power and fuel charges 383583 387528
Emmployee benefits cxpense 27 24.05 3551
Finance costs 28 619.08 BET.T0
Deprecation and amortisation expense 29 44199 456.46
Other expenses 30 313.06 32252
Tatal expenses 5,234.01 5,347.47
Vi |Profit befare tax [IV-V) 10.20 (38.47)
Wil |Exceptional ltems 50 = 794.26
Vil | Profit before tax (Vi+VIT) in.20 755.79
1% | Tax eipensef{benefit): 43
On other than exceptional tems
Deforred tax 2.90 {4E.25)
Deferred tax adjustment for previous years {24.54) .
On Exceptional itams
Defurred tay . 195.90
Met Tax {credit)/charge: {21.64) 153.64
% |Met Prafit for the year [VIL-IX) 3184 E0L15
Xl |Other Comprehensive Income [naet of taxes)
& (i} tems that will not be reclassilied to profit orless
Re-mezsurement painf(loss) on defingd benafn abligation (ret of taxes) _(0.01] 0.27
Xl |Total Comprehensive Income for the year (K+X() 31.83 60242
Xl |Earnings per equity share {in T): 35
- Basic and Diluted 0.10 188

See accompanying notes forming pan of financial statements

In terems of pur report attached

For 5, R. Batlibol & Co. LLP

ICAI Firm Registration No. : 301003E/E300005
Chartered Accauntants

Partner =
Membership No.: 037214 p.
../‘ -
)
( =
=| MANSA
Place : New Delhi 1‘5-

Date : Apnl 22, 2025 "

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Agnivesh Aga
Chairman
DIN: 0D03£950

itesh Malani
Chief Financial Officer
Place : Mansa

Date : April 22, 2025

aj T Singh Ahuja
Chief Executive Officer

Place : New Delhi
.

Pypronty

Shivangi Dhanuka
Company Secretary
1C5| Mem No.A70586
Place ; Mansa

N\

N
Panka] Kumar Sharma
Whole Time Director

DIN: 10277510
Place: Mansa




= vedanta

power

Talwandi Sabo Power Limitad
CIN - U40101MH2Z007PLC433557

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

PL

|% in Crore)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

A Cash flows from operating activities
Net Profit before tax i0.20 755.79
Adjusted for:
Unrealised exchange {gain} / loss - 4.38
Depreciation and amortisation expense 4a1.59 456.46
Interest Expenses 619.08 667.70
Exceptional (Gain)/ Loss - (794.26)
Incomie on lease modification - (0.81)
Interest and Dividend Income (3.66) {3.02)
Reallsed gain fram investments measured at FVTPL (0.04) {0.25)
Loss an sale of property, plant and equipment written off 4,78 0.00
Sundry Balances written back - {0.84)
Operating profit before working capltal changes 1,072.35 1,085.15
Adjustments for change in assets and liahilities
(Increase) / Decrease m invenlories 43.72 {67.80)
(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables [484.04) 121.56
(Increase] / Decrease in other financial and other assets {28.43) 2193
Increase / (Decrease) in payables and pravisions 168.31 (56.76)
Cash generated from operations 77191 1,104.08
Income taxes paid [4.34) 16.79
Net cash from operating activities {i) 767.57 1,120.87
8 |Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (including Intangibles) {29.97) (22.87)
Sale of property, plant and equipment (including intangibles) 0.28 0.05
Proceeds rom maturity / redemption of short term bank deposits 3827 0.02
Investment in bank depasits (38.26) (0.01)
Purchase of short term Investment [Mutual Funds) (110.00) [515.97)
Proceads from sale of short term Investments (Mutual Funds) 110.04 516.23
Interest received 366 2.67
Net cash used in investing activities (1) (25.98) (19.88)
C Cash flows fram financing activities
Proceeds from short term loan 548.53 324,00
Repayment of short term loan (77.00) {100.00)
Proceeds from long term borrowings - 1,43891
Repayment of long term berrowings [748.45) (2,059.25)
Repayment of lzase liability [4.24) (0.10)
Interest paid (584.92) [636.44)
Net cash used in financing activities {iif) (876.08) (972,88)
Net ([decrease) [ increase in cash and cash equivalents (i+i+ii) (134.49) 128.11
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 168.01 39.90
Cash and cash equivalents at close of the year (Refer note 9) 33.52 168.01
Notes:

1. The figures in bracket indicates outflows,
3. The ahove cash fiow has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Ind AS 7 - Statement of Cash Flows.
3. Refer Note 15 for Change in liabilities arising from financing activities and for non-cash financing and investing activities

See accompanying hotes forming part of financial statements

In terms of our report attached

For 5. R. Batlibol & Co. LLP

|CAl Firm Registration No. : 301003E/E300005
artered Accountants

per AT Kumak lain
Partner
Membaership No.; 057214 ¢
P / =
=X
=
Place : Naw Delhi -
&

D i il 22, 2025
ate 1 April 22 . \(

itesh Malani
Chief Financlal Officer
Place : Mansa

Date : April 22, 2025

er Singh Ahuja
Chief Executive Officer
Plage : New Delhi
Shivangi Dhanuka
Company Secratary

1C51 Mem Mo, AT0SB6
Place : Mansa

AN

\&

Pankaj gdmar Sharma
Whole Time Director
[3IM: 10277510

Place: iMansa




1y

«

vedanta power

Talwandi Sabo Power Limited
CIN - U40101MH2007PLC433557

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

a. Equity share capital

Equity shares of % 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid No. of Shares Ay
(% in Crore)

As at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 3,206,609,652 3,206.61
Note: There has been no change in the eguity share capital either during the year or previous year.
b. Other equity

(Xin Crore)

Particulars Reserves and Surplus

Balance as on 31st March 2023 (186.27)
Profit for the year 602.15
Other Comprehensive Income 0.27
Balance as on 31st March 2024 416.15
Profit for the year 31.84
Other Comprehensive Income (0.01)
Balance as on 31st March 2025 447.98

See accompanyirg notes forming part of fimancial statements

In terms of our report attached

For 5. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP

|CAl Firm Registration No. : 301003E/£300005
artered Accountants

Chalrman

Chief Executive Officer
Place : New Delhi

%;.‘J\lw" gﬁ
hivangi Dhanuka

Company Secretary
ICSl Mem No.ATOS86
Place ; Mansa

Place : New Delhi
Date : April 22, 2025

/7 -
ot
Pankaj Kumdr Sharma

Whaole Time Director
DIN: 10277510
Place: Mansa
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Naotes forming part of the financial s as at and for the year endad March 31, 2025

1

A

2.8,

Company's Overview :

Talhwandl Sabo Pawer Limited {herein after referred as “TSAL" or "the Company™] was incorporated as a Special Purpose Vehicle by Punjab State Power Corporation Limited [herein
after referred as "PSPCLY) [formary knawn as Punjab State Electricity Board (PSEB)| to construct a 3*660 MW coal based thermal power plant (The Plant) on Build, Own and Operate
(B00) basis. TSPL beeame a wholly pwned subsidiary of Vedanta Limited (herein after referred as "WL) [farmerly known as Sesa Sterlite Limited (SSL)] pursuant to the selection of VL
as the successful bidder after going through a tariff based Intermational Competitive Bidding {ICB] process. The Share Purchase Agreement (SPA), Power Purchase Agreement (herein
after referred as "PPA") far sale of power fram the Plant to PSEB for 2 perfod of 25 years and ather necessary documents were signed between VL, T5PL and PSPCL on September 01,
2008, The address of the registered office is 1st floor, C wing, Unit 103, Corporate Avenue Atul Projects, Chakala, Andheri (East], Mumbal, Maharashtra, 400093 and principal place of
business ks in village Banawala , Mansa - Talwand| Sabo Road, Mansa, Punjab - 151302

The Financial Statements were 2pproved for issuance by the Board of Directors on Apnl 22, 2025,

Basls of F ion and ial A ing Palicies :

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(o)  Bosis of Preparation and Compliance with Ind AS

{i] These financial have bren prepared in accordance with Indian Accaunting Standards (Ind AS] notified under the Campanles |Indian Accounting Standards Rules,
2015 (a5 amended fram time to time) and other relevant provisions of the Companles Act, 2013 {the Act).

(i) Accounting policies have been consistently applisd except where a newly (ssued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires
 change in the accounting palicy hitherto in uze,

{in}  Certain Comparative figures appearing in these Financial statements have boen regrouped and/ or reclassificd to better reflect the nature of those itoms.

(b)  Bosis of Measurement

i The financial have been praf i on 3 going concern basis using historical cost convention, except for certain financial assets and lizbilities which are measured at
falr valun/amartised cost [Refer note 2.8.(g]).

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING FOLICIES
The Company has applied the following Accounting palicies to all periods presented in the Financial Statements;

fa)  Functionol and presentation Currency.
The Enancial Statements ore pregared (n Indian Rupees (2), which is the Company's functional currency, All financlal information presented in Indian Rupee has been rounded

1o the nearest Crare with two decimals,

fb)  Revenue from Contract with Custamer

Ind A% 115 outlines a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers, The care principle of the standard is for
companies to recognize revenue when the contral of the poods and services is transferred to the customer as against the transfer of risk and rewards, The amount of revenus
recognised reflocts the consideration to which the Company expects to be eatitied in exchange for those goods or serviees.

Revenue fram sale of power is recognised when delivered and measured based on rates as per bilateral contractual sgreement with its sole customer Le. PSPCL Late Payment
Surcharge Cess (*LPSCY) if any received by the Company from PSPCL as per the contract is recorded as revenue from sale of power. Revenues from sale of by-products are
included in revenue.

A contract asset is the right to consideration jn exchange for poods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company transfers goods or services to a customer even
hafare the customer pays consideration or payment is due, 2 tontract asset s recognised for the earned cansideration when that right is conditional on the Company's future
performanca.

A contract litility s the obligation to transier goods or services ta a customer for which the Campany has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due| from
the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services ta the customer, a contract linbility is recognised when the payment is made, or
the payment is due (whichover is varlier), Contract lizbilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract

The Campany dous nat expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer
exceeds one year. As a result, the Company does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money,

Lease Income

Where the Campany is a lessor, l2ase income from operating leases {excluding amount far services on e, elo, and gent rentals) is recognised in income on o
straight-line basis over the loase term unless the recelpts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to campensate for the expected nflationary cost
increasss and another systematic basis s more representative of the time pattern in which user's benefit derived from the leased asset is diminished. Contingent rent is
recognised n the perod when earmed, The respective leased assets are ingluded in the balance sheet according to the nature of the asset

Interest Income

Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective Interest rate method, The effective interest rate is the mte that exactly discounts estimated future cash
ruesipts thraughout the expected life of the financlal asset to the pross carrying amount of a financial asset, When calculating the effective Interest rate, the Company
estimates the expected cagh lows by considering all the contractual terms of the finandal instrument (far ple, prey call and similar options) but does
not consider the expected credit iogses.




Talwandi Sabo Power Limited

Nates formin,

fe)

1i)

(i}

fd)

fe}

i

of the financial stateme at and for the year en arch 31, 2025

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment

The Initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including impart duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, and any directly attributabie costs of
bringing an asset to working condition and |oecation for its intended use. |t also includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrawing costs for long-term
canstruction projects If the recognition criteria are met. Machinery spare parts are capitalised when they meet the definition of property, plant and equipment.,

W significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are aceounted for as separate items {major components) of property, plant
and Likewise, towards major inspections and overhauls are identified as a separate comp and depreciated over the expected period till the nast
guerhaul expenditure,

Subsequent costs and disposal:

Subsequent expenditure related 1o an item of property, plant and equlpment is addad ta its book value only if it increases the future economic benefits from the existing asset
beyond its previcusly assessed standard of performance/life, All ather expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including routine repalr 2nd maintenance
expenditure and cost af replacing parts, are charged ta the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expanses are incurred,

An ilem of praperty, plant and equipment and any significzint part inltially recopnised is derocognised upon dispasal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
s or dispasal. Gains and losses an dispasal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by compating the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment, and are recognised net within other inc fath in of Profit and Loss

Capital Wark in Progress

Assets during construction are capitalised in capital werk In progress account. All easts attributable to construction of project or incurred in felation to the project under

construction, net of incidental income during the construction/pre-production period, are aggregated under 'Expenditure during Construction Period’ to be allocated 1o
fividual identified assets on ¢ AL the point when an asset b capable of operating in the manner intended by the management, the cast of canstruction is

transferred to the appropriote category of property, plant and Costs inted with the o issi of an asset are capitalised until the period of commissioning

has been completed and the asset is ready for 18 intended use.

Depreciation

Assets during development or constrdction and freehiold land are not depreciated. Property plant and equipment are stated al cost less accumulated depreciation and any
provisten far impairment, Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is calculated over the depreciable amount, which ls the cost of an asset |ess its residual value, Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write off the cost, less
estimated residual value, of each asset on a straight-line methed over its expected useful lifes.

The estimated useful llves of assets are as follows:

= Burlldings 3-25 years
= Roads 5-10 years
= Plant and machinery 5-35 years
= Furpiture and fixtures 510 years
= Vehicles® 48 years
* Railway siding 15  years
= Office equipment 5  years
« Computers and data processing un 36 years
« Lahoratory equipment 0 years

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert 2nd management estimate, depreciates certain items of building, plant and equipment and furnitura
and fixtures over estimated useful lives which are differant from the useful life prescribed in Schedule || to the Companies Act, 2013, The management believes that thess
estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair appraximation of the period over which the assets are |ikely to be used.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of property, plant and sguipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

“Useful life of vehicles s taken as per the tenure of Finance Lease.
Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired soparately are measured on initial recognition at cost. F lawing initial
and accumulated imparment losses, if any,

assets are earried at cost less accumulated amartisation

Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful fife on a straight-line basis. Software is amortised over the estimated useful life of software of 3-6 years, The
amartisation period and the ion mothod are reviewed at least at each financlal year end. If the expected useful life of the asset i« different from p i
the change |s accounted for prospectively 25 2 change in accounting estimate,

Lease
Company as a lessee
The Company applies a single recegnition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease

liahilities 1o make leaso ts and right-af: assets ing the right 1o use the underlying assets,

Right-of-use assets

The Company recopnises right-ol assets at the o ement date of the lease (ie., the date the underlying asset is available for use), Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adj for any of lpase lisbilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount

of lease liabilities recognised, nitial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date |less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are deprocinted on a straight-line Basis over the shorter af the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The right-of-use assets are also subject to impalrment. Refer to the accounting pollcies in section (i} Impairment of nan-financial assets,




Talwandi Sabo Power Limited

Notes formin,

(i)

7]

fa)

af | statemunts as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

Lease Lizhilities

At the commencement date of the |ease, the Company recognises lease fabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the |ease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed paymints) less 2ny lease incentives recelvable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. Variabie lease payments that do not depend on an inde< or @ rate are recopnised as expenses [Unless thay are
incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condltion that triggers the payment ocours,

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its Incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily i After the ement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the aceretion of Interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of [ease liabilities is remeasured IF thare is a modification, a change in the [ease term, a change in the lease payments (e,
changes to future payments resulting from a change inan index or rate wsed te determine such lease payments) ar a change in the assessmoent of an option to purchase the
underlying asset

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its shart-term leases of machinery and equipment {i.e,, those |eases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option), It 2lso applies the recopnition exemption of low-value assets to leases of office equipment that are of
lowe valuz. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a stralght-line basis aver the lease term,

Company as a Lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the rsks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases, Initlal direct costs
Incurred in ing and ing an leasz are added to the carrying amount of the lvased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recopnised as revenue in the period In which they are comed.

Current ond Non Current Classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based an current and non-current classification,

An asset is treated as current when [tis;

2. Expacted to be realised or | ded to be sold or ¢ f in normal cycle

. Held primarily for the purpose of trading

c. Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted fram being exchanged or used to settle 3 liability for a1 least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current,

Adiability Is current when it is:

a. Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

b. Held primarily for the purpose of trading

t. Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d. There s no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the Hability for a1 least twelve months after the reporting period

Al other liabilities are classified as non-current. The operating cycle s the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation In cash znd cash
equivalents, The Campany has identified twelve manths as its operating cycle.
Deferred tax assets and [inbilities are clazsified as non-current only,

Financial instruments 2
A financlal instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial ability or eguity instrument of anather entity,

Flnanclal assets - recognition

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial asiets are recognised initially at falr value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair valuz through profit and loss, transaction casts that are
attributable to the acquisition of the finahcial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or
conventian in the market place regular way traodes) are recognised on the trade date, i, the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent Measurement
For of sut

financial assets are classified In three categories:

[i} Debt instruments at amartised cost

A 'Debt instrument’ s measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
3) The asset is held within a business model whose objective s to hold zssets for collecting contractual cash fows, and
b} Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flaws that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI1) an the principal amount cutstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by
considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortisation is included in finance Income in the Statement of
Profit and Loss, The Josses arising from impairmaont are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,




Talwandi Sabo Power Limited

Naotes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

{ii) Debt Instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCI)
A'debt instrumont’ is classified as FVTOCHif both af the fellowing criteria are met:

) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and
b} The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL

Debt instruments included within the FVTOC! category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised |n the other
comprehensive income (OCI). However, the interest income, impairment lesses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
On derecognition of the assst, c ivee ain or loss previously recognised in OC1 is reclassified from the equity to profit or loss. Interest earned whilst halding FUTOC! debt
instrument it reported as interest income using the EIR methad.

{iii} Debtinstruments at fair value thraugh profit and Loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL Is a residual categary for debt Any debt i which does not mest the criteria for categorisation as =t amortised cost or as FYTOC), is classified as at
FVTPL

In addition, the Company may elect to designate 2 debt instrument, which otherwise mests amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria, 35 3t FVTPL, However, such election s allowed
only if doing so reduces or climinates a measurement or recopnition inconsistency (referred 1o as ‘accounting mismatch'). The Company has hot deslgnated any debt
Instrument as at FVTPL

Debt instruments included within the FYTPL categary are measured at fair value with all changes recagnised in the PEL

Financial assets = derecognition

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset sxpire, or it transfers the rights ta receive the contractual cash flows
on the financial assel in & transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transfored,

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 108, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the Tollowing financlal assets:

= Flnanclal assets that are debt i ., and ara dat sed cost &g, loans, debt securities, deposits and trade receivables;
* Financlal assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOC);
« Trade recefvables or any contractusl right ta receive cash or another financial asset that result fram transactions that 2re within the scope of Ind AS 135;

loss

e on trade receivables, The application of simplified approach does not require the
e based on lifetime ECLs at each reparting date, right from its initial recognition.

The Campany follows ‘simplified approach’ fer Enition of
Company Lo track changes in credit risk, Rather, it r impal Ioss

At gach reporting date, fer recopnition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has heen a significant
increass in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has nat increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used 1o provide for [mpalfment loss. However, If cradit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used, If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is ne longer 2 significant increase in credit risk
since initial recagnition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment lass allowance based on 12-maonth ECL

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial Instrument. The 12-manth ECL I a portian of the
lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 moenths after the reporting date,

ECL s the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due ta the Company in accardance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to recefve
{1.e., 2l cash shortfalls), discounted at the origmal EIR,

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recopnised during the period is recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss under the head 'Other
Expenses’

The balance sheet presentation for financial instruments is described below:

= Financial assets measured at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance, j.e., o5 an integral port of the measurement of those assats in the balance sheet, The
allowance reduces the net carrylng ameunt. Until the asset meets write-aff criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance fram the gross carrying amount.

= Debt instruments measured at FVTOCL Since financial assets are already reflected at fair valde, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL
amount it presented as ‘sccumulated impalrment amaount’ n the OCHL

For assessing increase in credit risk and jmpairment foss, the Company combines financial instruments based on shared credit risk characteristics with the objoctive of
facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit rsk to be identified on a timely basis.
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Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilitles are classified, at inltial recognition, as financial liabilities at {air value through profit or lass, loans and ¢ i Y or as deri a
hedging instrumants in an effective hadpe, as approp « All financial Habilities are recagnised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs,

The financial lizbilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank averdralts and derivative financial instruments,

Subssguent measurament
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depands on thelr elassification, as described below:

= Financial liabilities at amartised cost (Loans & Borrowings)

After initinl recognition, Interest-bearing loans and t are subseq) Iy measured at i cost using the EIR method. Gains and lasses are recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss when the lisbilities are derecopnised as well as through the EIR amartisation process.

Amortised cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included
as finance costs i the statement of prafit and loss.

« Fimancial iabilities at fair value through prafit or loss

Financial linbilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial libilities held for trading and financial liabili i upon Initial recognl as at fair value thirough
prafit or loss, Firancial Nabilities are elassified ag held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the nenr term, This catepary also includes derivative
financial instruments entered by the Campany that are not desi a5 hedging i in hedge relstionships as defined by Ind AS 109, Separated embedded

derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses an financial labilities held are recognised in profit or Ioss,

Financial liabilities d d upan initizl recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recagnition, and only if the critenia in Ind AS
109 are satisfled. For liabilities desi a5 FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own cradit risk are recognised in OCIL Thess gains/losses are pot
subsequently transferred to profit or loss. Howsver, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or lass within equity, All other changes in fair value of such liability are
recognised in the statement of profit ar lass. The Company has not designated any financial labillty as at fair valuz through profit and loss.

Financial Liabilities- Derecognition

A financial liability is derecagnised when the obligation under the finbility is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing lability are substantially modified, such an exchange or madification is treated a5 the derecopnition
of the original lability and the recognition af 3 new lability. The difference in the respective carrying is lsed in the of profit and loss.

Equity Instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of any entity after deducting all its
recognised at the proceeds recelved, net of direct issue costs,

Equity i issued by the Company are

af ing of fi

Financlal assets and financial lisbilities are offset, and the net amount & reparted in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to off-set the recognised
amounts and there s an intention to settle on 3 net basls, or to reallse the asset and settle the liability simultaneously,

Supplier finance arrangements
The Company has established supplier finance arrang The Company eval whether financial liabilities covered such arrangements continue to be dassilied within

trade payables, or they need to be classified as a borrowing or as part of other financial liabilities/ as a separate ling item on the face of the balance sheet, Such evaluation
requires exercise of judgment basis specific terms of the arrangement.

The: Company classifies financlal labilitles covered under supplier finance arrangement within trade payables in the balance sheet anly if (i) the obligation represents a liability
to pay for goods and services, (Il) I invoiced and formally agreed with the supplier, (i) is part of the working capital used in its normal operating cycle, (] the company is not
legally released from its ariginal obligation to the supplier, and has not sssumed a new obligation toward the bank, and ancther party (iv) there is no substantial madification to
the terms of the liability,

If one or more of the above criteria are met, the Company derecagnises |t original liability toward the supglier and recognise & new ability taward the bank which is classified
as bank borrowing or other financial liabllity, depending on factors such as whether the Company (i) has obligation toward bank, (i} is getting extended credit perlad such that

obligation is no longer part of its working caplital eyele, (i) is paying interest directly or indirectly, (iv) hasprovided guarantee or security, and/or (v] is recopnized 25 borrower in
the bank boaks.

Cash flows related to liabifities arising from suppler finence arangements that continue to be cdassified in trade payables in the standalone balance sheet are Included in
operating activities in the standalone statement of cash flows, when the Company finally settlzs the iability

In cases, where the Company has derecognised its original [iability toward the supplier and recognise a new liability toward the bank, the Company has 2ss=ssed that the hank i
acting a5 its agent in making payment to the supplier. Accordingly, the Company presents operating cash outflow and financing cash inflow, when bank made payment to the
supplier, The payment made by the Company to the bank toward interest, if any, as well 35 on settlement i presented as financing cosh outilew.




Talwandi Saba Power Limited

s forming part of the financial statemen ar the year ended March 31, 2025

(k]  Derivative Finaneial Instruments

Initial ition and

In arder ta hedge its exposure to foreign exchange risks, the Company enters into forward eantracts for hedging of expesures of foraign currencies borrawdngs and capital
vendors. The Company does not hold derivative financial instruments for speculative purpases. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the
date on which 2 derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value, Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fajr value is positive and
as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative,

Any palns or losses arising from changes in the fzirvalue of derivatives are taken directly to Statement of Profit and Loss,

1] Fair Valus Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date,

Fairvaluz is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid ta transfer a liability in an orderly transaction betweon market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the assetar transier the lability takes place either:

= In the principal market for the asset or labllity, or

+ Inthe absence of 3 principal market, In the most advantogeous market for the asset or lability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a lability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liabllity, sssuming that market
participants act in thelr economic best interest.

A fair value mensurement of a non-financial nsset considers a market participant's ahility ta generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and bost use.

The Campany uses valuation techniques that are apprapriate in the clreumstances and for which sufficient data are avallable to measure fafr value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair valus hierarchy, described as follows, based an
the lowest level input that s significant 1a the fair value measurement 25 a whale:

= Lovel 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

= Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair valus measurement is directly or indirectly observahle,

* Level 3t Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant te the fair value measurement is unohservable.

For assets and liabilitles that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whather transfers have oceurred betwoen levels in the
hierarchy by re-ascessing categanisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as 3 whole] at the end of each reparting periad.

For fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and labilitivs on the nature, characteristics and risks of thee asset or lizbility and 1he level of the fair
walue hierarchy as oxplained above,

il  Borrowing Costs
Borrowing cost includes interest expense as per Effective interest Rate (EIR) and exchange differences arising fram foreign currency borfowings to the extemt they ars reparded

as an adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs diractly relating to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying capital project under construction are capltalised and added ta the project cost
during construction until such time that the assets are substantially ready for their intendsd use Le. when they are capable of eommercial production. Where funds are
horrowed specifically to finance 3 project, the amount capltalised represents the actual borrowing costs incurred. Where surplus funds are ble out of money |

specifically ta finance @ project, the income generated from such short-term investments is deducted from the tetal capitalised borrowing cost. Where the funds used to finance
a project form part of general b i the amaunt capitalised is calculated using 2 weighted average of rates applicable 1o relevant general borrowings of the Company
during the year,

Capitalisation of borrowling costs is suspended and charged te the statement of prafit and loss during the extended periods when the active development on the qualifying
dssel s suspended.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement of Prafit and Loss in the year in which they are incurred.

EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cosh payments or receipls over the expected life of the financial liability or a shorter period, whers zppropriate, 1o the
amortised cost of 2 financial liability, When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of
the financial i {fer I it call and similar options),

(k) airment of N encial Assets
Impairment charges and reversals are assessed at the level of cash-generating units, A cash-generating unit (CGU) s the smallest [dentifiable group of assets that generats cash
inflows that are largely indepzndant of the cash inflows from ather assets or group of assets,

Impairment tests are carried out annually for all 2ssets when there is an indication of impairment. The Company conducts an internal review of asset values annually, which i
used as a source of informaticn to assess for any indications of impatrment o reversal of previously recognised impairment losses. External factors, such as changes in expected

future prices, cotts and other market factors are also monitored to assess for indications of imp or reversal af p ly recognised impairment losses,

If #ny such indication exists then an mpai feview & keen, the rec amount is caleulated, as the higher of faie value less costs of disposal and the asset’s
valug in use. Fair value fess costs of dispasal is the price that would be received Lo sell the asset in an orderly transaction between market participants and does not reflect the
effects of factors that may be specific to the entity and not applicable to entities in general.
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Walue in use s determined as the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continued use of the asset in its present farm and Its eventual
dispasal, The cash flows are discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 1o the asset far
which estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. Value in use is determined by applying assumptions specific to the Company's continued use and eannot take into
account futurs p These I are different to thote used in calculating fair value and consequently th value in use calculation is likely to give a different
result to a fair value caleulation.

The carrying amount of the CGU s d ined on a basis consi with the way the recoverabile amount of the CGU is determined., If the recoverable amount of an asset or
CGU s estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carmying amount of the asset or CGU is reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Any reversal of the provieusly recognised impairment loss is limlited to the extent that the asset's carryirg
amount does nof exceed the carmying amount that would have been determined if no impalrment lose had previously been recognised, Company has done the impairment
assessment as at March 31, 2025 and concluded that no impairment indicators exist far the current year reporting.

Inventaries

Inventories comprising fusl, stores and spares, consumables, supplies and loose tools are valued at the lower of east and the net realisable valee sfter providing for
obsolescence and other lnsses, Cost includes all charges In bringing the goods to the present location and condition, and other levies, transit insurance and receiving charges
and is determined on a weighted average basis,

Met realisable value is determined based on estimated selling price in the ordinary course of ¢ less the costs of ¢ letion and the esti i costs ¥
1o make the salo.

Taxation

Tax cupense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax, Current tax is provided at amaunts expectod to be paid {or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date and includes any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years,

Sublect to exceptions below, deferred taxis provided, using the balance sheet methad, on all temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax baces of assets and
liabilities and their carrylng amounts for financial reporting purposes, on carry forward of unutilised tax credits and unutilised tax loss;

= deferred income tax 1< not recognised on the initial recagnition of an asset or liabllity in a transaction that is not 3 business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or |oss; and
= deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is more likely than not that they will be recovered,

Deforred tax assets and liabllities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realised or the llabllity ks settled, based on tax rates
{and tax [aws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reparting date, Tax relating to items recopnised outside Statement of Profit and Loss is recagnised
outside Statoment of Profit and Loss {either in other comprehensive incame or pquity).

'The carrying ameunt af deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reparting date and is adjusted to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Retirement and ather employee benefits

Retirefment benefit in the form of provident fund is 2 defined contribution scheme. The Campany has no okl other than the ¢ ib payable to the ident fund,
The Company recognizes centribution payable to the provident fund scheme as 2n expense, when an employes fenders the related ssrvice. 11 the contibution payable ta the
scheme for service received hefore the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized 25 a linbility after deducting
the contribution already paid, If the contribution already pald exceeds the contribution due for services received hefore the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an
asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund,

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a separately administered fund.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan bs determined using the projected unit crodit method.

Remeasuraments, comprising of actunrial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts Included in net intersst an the net defined benefit lability and the
return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined henafit liability), 2re recagnised immediately in the balance sheet with 2 cartesponding
debit or credit ta retained earndngs through OC) in the periad in which they occur, Remeasurements are not reclassified ta profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and the date that the Company recopnises related restrucluring costs,

Het interest |s calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit lisbility or asset. The Company recognises the following changes in the not defined benefit
abligation as an Inthe fal of profit and loss;
Service costs camprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtall and 1 | and Net interest cxpense or income.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as shart-term employee benefit, The Company measures the expected cost of such
absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The Company recogniies expected
cost af short-t I benofit as an wihen an renders the related service.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forword beyond twelve months, as long-t p benefit for Such long:
compensated absences zre provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reporting date, Remeasurement gains/losses ore
immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.
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Provision far liabilitles and charges, cantingent libilities and contingent assets

Provisions represent Habilities of the Company for which the amount ar timing is uncertain. Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
construetive), as 2 result of past events, and it is probabile that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be required to settle such an oblgation, If the effect
of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discaunting the expected future cash flaws to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money snd, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance cost, Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best pstimate,

A contingent liability is a possible abligation that anses fram past events whose existence will be confirmed by the cecurrence of non-otcurrence of one or more uncerain
fusture pvents beyond the contral of the Company or a present abligation that is nat recognised because It s net probablo that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation. A cantingent liability alse arlses in extremely rare cases where there is o liability that cannat be recognised because it cannot be measured rellably. The Company
does not recognise a contingent libility but discloses its existence in the financial statements (Refer note 33,

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the financial statements when an inflew of economic benefits is probable.

Foreign Currency Tr.

The functional currenty for the Company is determined as the currency of the primary ecanamic environment in which it operates. The functional currency is the local currency
of the country in which it oparates which is Indian Rupes (%)

Transactions | currencies other than the functional currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchanpe rates ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary

assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies are translated into the lunctional currency at exchange rates prevailing on the reparting date. Non-monetary assets and

liabilities denominated in other currencies and measured at histarical cost or fair value are transiated at the exchange rates prevalling on the dates on which such values wors
dotermined,

All exchange differences zre included in the Statement of Profit and Loss exeapt any exchange diff o5 On v items i d a5 an effective hedging instrumant of
the currency risk of designated forecasted sales or purchases, which are recagnised in the ather comprehensive income.

The Company had applied paragraph 464 of A5 11 as prescribed under the accounting standards notified pursuant to Section 133 of the Act. On transition to Ind A5, the
Company had elected the aptinn, whereby a first ime adopter could continue its accounting policy for exchange differences ansing fram translation of long-term foreign
currency maonetary items recognised in the finzncial statements for the period ending (mmediately before the beginning of the first Ind AS financial roporting perad, Hence,
foreign exchange galn/loss on long-term foreign currency monetary liabilities recognised upta March 31, 2016 which were obtained for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment, have been adjusted to the cost of PPE.

Such exchanga ditferences arising on translatian/setl of long-term forelgn currency manetary items =nd pertaining to the acqulsition of a deprecighle asset ars
amortised over the remaining useful life of the assets,

From accounting periods commencing on ar after Aprll 01, 2016, exchange differences arlsing on transiation/ settlement of lang-term foreign currency manetary items,
aequired post April 01, 2016, pertaining to the acquisition of 3 depreciabile asset are charged to the statement of profit and lass.

The date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate ta use on initial Ind AS 21 recognition of the related asset, expense or fncome for part of it) is the
date on which an entity initially 1 the v assat or tary liability arising fram the payment or receipt of advance cansideration,
I there are multiple payments or recaipts in advance, the entity shall determine a date of the transaction for sach payment or recelpt of advance consideration,

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share ("EPS") data for its equity shares, Basic EPS is caleulated by dividing the profit ar loss attributzble to equity
shareholders of the Company hy the weighted average number of equity shares cutstanding during the perlod. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or lass
ble ta equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding Tor the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Cash and cosh equivalents
Cash and cath sguivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and demand deposits with banks with onginal maturities of three months ar less that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject ta an insignificant risk of changes In value.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reparted using the indirect method, whereby profit/{loss) for the year before tax Is adjusted for the sffects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals
oraccruals of past and future cash receipts of payments. The cash flows ffom dperating, invosting, and financing activities of the Company are segregated based an the
available information.

Cash comprises cash at bank and in hand and demand deposits with banks, Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an ofiginal maturity of three months or less from
the date of acquisition), highly linuid investments that are readily conyertible into known amaounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant rick of cha nges in value.

Segment Reporting
The Company operates only in one segment namaely power generation and there are no reportable segments.
Operating segments are reported ina manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief cperating degision-maker Le., Board of Directors,

Share- based poyments
The Company does nat have any ling share-based pay Vedanta Limited ("V17], the i diate holding ¢ offers certain share-based Incentives under the

Long-Term Incentive Plan {"LTIP") to employees and directars of the Company and its subsidiaries. VL recovers the propontionate cost (calculated based on the grant date fair
value of the options granted] from the respective group companies, which is charged to the statement of profit and lass.
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2,C. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The pi of financkal in confarmity with Ind AS requires i to make asti and that affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported of assets, labilities, income, and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of these financial statoments and the reporied
of and for the years presented, Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions,
and underlying jons are reviewed on an ongaing basls, Revisions to accounting esti are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, and

future perlods affected.
Information about significant arcas of y and critical judp in I
recopnised in the financial statements are included in the following accounting policies and/or notes:

ing policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts

Critical estimates and judgements in applying accountin ici

The management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable, ion about esti and judg made
in applying accounting policles that have the maost signi effect on the recognised in the financial statements are as follows:

Critical estimates:

* Useful life of property, plant and equipment

Useful life of deprecizhle/ amaortisable assets {tangible and intangible] - Manag; reviews its esti of the uselul lives and consumption pattern of depreciable/
amartisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets, The reassessment may lead to a change in depreciation and amortisation charge,
Accordingly the Company had revised the useful life of its property, plant and equipment frem 40 years to 25 years during earlier years,

Critical judgements:
= Datarmining whether 2n arrangement containg  lease and fised rentals therein
Significant judgement is required to apply lease accounting rules under Ind AS 116 "Dy il whetheran cantaing a lzase. In assessing the sppiicability to

orrangements entered by the Company, manogement has exercised judgement to evaluate the right to use the underlying asset, substance of the transactions including legally
enforceabli agreements and other significant terms and conditions of the arrangements to conciude whether the arrangement mests the eriteria under Ind AS 116

The Company has ascertained that the Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) entered between the Company and Funjab State Pawer Corporation Limited {PSPCL) qualify as
pperating lease as per Ind AS 116 Leases. Accordingly, the consideration receivable under the PPA relating to recovery of capacity charges have been recognised as operating
lease rentals and in respect of energy charges is considered as revenue fram sale of products,

The Company has assessed the nature of opersting lease payments received as a lessor, Management has assessed that the entire lease payments as disclosed in Note 29 are

contingent in nature as the payments are based on the number of units of electricity made available by the Company. This is subject to variation on account of various factors
like availability of coal, water, etc. of the plant,

= Conti jes and

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation, taxation, and other clalms against the Company, A tax pravision (s recognised when the
Campany has & present obligation as a result of a past event, itis probable that the Company will be required to settle that cbligation,

Where |t is manspgement’s assessment that the suteome cannot be relisbly quantified or Is uncertain, the claims are disclosed as conti iabllities unless the lkelir of an
adverse outcome is remate, Such labilities are disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in the financial statements.

When considering the classification of legal or tax cases 25 probahble, possible or remote, there is judgement invelved. This pertains to the application of the legislation, which in
certain cases is based upon management’s interpretation of country specific tax laws, in particular ndia, and the likelihood of M uses inh and
external legal professionals to confirm their decision,

Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings, the Company daes not axpact them to have & materially adverse impact on the
Company's financial position or profi The ities which are as possible and henca are not recognised in these financial statements are disclosed in Note 33,

+ Revenue Recogmition of disputed dues:

The Company has evaluated the pravisians of Ind-AS 115, which states that revenue should be recorded If it is probable that the entity will collzct the consideration te which it
will be entitled in xchange for the goods or services has been transferred to the customer. Management has assessed the recognition of revenue and recoverability of
disputed dues with PSPCL as disclosed in Note 47 as highly probable due to the following reasons:

* The Company has favorable legal opinions from senlar advocates,

= Favourable judgement in one of the related maottors.

* PSPCL being a government owned company, eredit risk s lov.
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Climate Related Matters:

The Company considers climate-related matters in and where app This includes a wide range of possible impacts an the Company
due to both physical and transition risks. Even though the Company belleves its business model and products will still be visble after the transition to a low-carbon ecanomy,
climate-related mattors increase the uncertainty in esti and it  several items in the financial statements, Even though dimate-related risks might
not currently have a significant impact an measurement, the Company |5 closely monitaring relevant changes and developments, such as new dimate-related legislation, The
items and considerations that are most directly impacted by dimate-related matters are:

= Useful life of property, plant and i Whan reviewing the residual values ond expected useful lives of assets, the Company considers climate-related matters, such as
climate-refated legis and lations that may restrict the use of assets or require significant capital expenditures.

«Imp of non-financizl assets: The valuz-in-use may be impacted in several different ways by transition risk in particular, such as climate-related legislation and

regulations ond changes in demand for the Company's products, The Company has concluded that no dimate-related assumption will have impact on FY 2024-25 test of
Impalrment.

NEW AND AMMENDED STANDARDS

The Company applied for the first-tima certain fards and /| which are effective for annual periods beginning en or after 1 April 2024, The Company has not eary
adopted any standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.

{i}) Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts
The Ministry of Corporate Affzits (MCA] notified the Ind AS 117, Insurance Contracts, vide notification dated 12 August 2024, under the Companices (Indian Atcounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2024, which is effective from annual reporting periods beginning on or alter 1 April 2024,

Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts is a comprehensive new accounting standard for Insurance contracts covering recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. ind
AS 117 replaces Ind AS 104 Insurance Contracts, Ind A5 117 applies to all lypes of insurance contracts, regardiess of the type of entities that issue them as well as to certain
guarantees and financial instruments with discretionany participation features; a few scope exceptions will apply. ind A5 117 is based on a general model, supplemented by:

« A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee approach)

= Asimplified appreach (the premium allocation approach] mainty for short-duration contracts

The application of Ind AS 117 does nat have material impact on the Company's separate financial statements as the Company has net entered any contracts in the nature of
Insurance contracts coverad under Ind AS 117,

[i} Amendments to Ind AS 116 Leases — Lease Liability in a2 Sale and Leascback Transaction

The MCA notified the Companics {Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Aules, 2024, which amended Ind AS 116, Leases, with respect to Lease Liability in a Sale
and Leaseback Transaction,

The d specifies the requi that a seller| uses fn measurlng the lease lability arsing in a sale and leaseback transaction, to ensure the seller-lessee does
not recopnise any amaunt of the gain or loss that relates to the dght of use it retains,

The amendment is effective for annual reparting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024 and must be applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions entered into
alter the date of inltial application of Ind AS 116,

The di do not have 3 Impact on the Company's financial statements.

STANDARDS NOTIFIED BUT YET NOT EFFECTIVE

There are no standards that are netified and not yet eff=ctive as on the date.




Talwandi Sabo Power Limited

(Xin Crore)
Note 3 Property Plant and Equipment
For the year ended March 31, 2025
Particulars Gross Block Accumulated depreciation and amartisation Net Block
Balance as at March i Disposals/ Foreign Balance as at March 31, | Balance as at March Depreciation - Balance as at Balance as at
31,2024 AsBitions Adjustments | exchange 2025 31,2024 tharge Deductions |\ 31,2025 | March 31,2025
a) Tangible Assets
Freehold Land 390.60 - - - 390.60 - - - - 390,60
[Bulldings 265.42 = = - 265.42 135.36 13.44 148.80 116.62
Plant and Machinery 10,565.08 30.07 12.47 10,582.68 3,784.84 397.15 7.67 4,174.32 6,408.36
Furniture and Fittings 2.84 0.00 0.07 - 2.77 2.15 0.19 0.06 2.28 0.49
Maotor Vehicles 1.11 0.19 0.56 - 0.74 0.41 0.22 0.33 0.30 0.44
Railway Siding and Locomatives 418.16 - - - 418.16 237.85 23.78 261.63 156.53
Office and Equipment 8.61 0.03 0.06 - 8,58 7.63 0,23 0.05 7.81 0.77
Computers and Data Processing 7.90 0.9 0.02 . B.84 6.35 0.55 0.01 6.89 1.95
Laboratary Eguipment 28.29 - - 28.29 24.87 1.57 - 26.44 1.85
Total 11,688.01 31.25 13.18 - 11,706,08 4,199,456 437.13 8.12 4,628.47 7,077.61
b) Capital work in progress 1.03
Tatal 7,078.64
b) Intangible Assets
Computer software 3.88 074 - - 4.62 3.49 0.32 - 3.81 0.81
Total 3.88 0.74 - - 4.62 3.49 D.32 = 3.81 0.81
c) ROU Assets (Refer note 2.B(e])
Land 0.86 - - - 0.86 0.18 0.19 - 0.37 0.49
Plant and Machinery - 45.90 - - 45.90 - 380 - 3.80 42.10
Computer software 273 - - - 2,73 0,36 0.55 % 0.91 1.82
Total 3.59 45.90 - - 49.49 0.54 4.54 - 5.08 44,41




Previous year ended March 31, 2024 [Xin Crore)
Particulars Gross Block Accumulated depreciation and amortisation Net Block
Balance as at March Additions Disposals/ m””u_”m_m Balance as at March 31,| Balance as at March Depreciation Bedisctlons Balance as at Balance as at
31,2023 Adjustments diffdience 2024 31, 2023 charge March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
a) Tangible Assets
Freehold Land 390.60 . R . 390,60 - _ ~ . 390.60
Buildings 265.34 0.08 - - 265.42 121.85 351 - 135.36 130.06
Plant and Machinery® 10,996.91 2058 452,41 - 10,565.08 3,369.73 415.11 0.00 3,784.84 6,780.24
Furniture and Fittings 2.82 0.03 0.01 - 2.84 1.97 0.19 0.01 2,15 0.69
Maotor Vehicles 111 - - - 1,11 0.20 0.21 - 0.41 0,70
Railway Siding and Lacomatives 418.16 = E - 418.16 214.07 23.78 - 237.85 180.31
Office and Equipment 8.56 0.08 0.01 - 8.61 7.40 0.24 0.1 7.63 0.98
Computers and Data Processing 7.37 0.58 0.05 - 7.90 5.87 051 0.03 6.35 1.55
Laboratory Equipment 28,29 - - = 28,29 22,70 23T = 24,87 3.42
Total 12,119.17 21.33 452.48 - 11,688.01 3,743.79 455.72 0.05 4,199.46 7,488.55
*Refer Note 50 b) Capital work in progress 305
Total 7,491.60
b) Intangible Assets
Computer software 3.79 0.09 - - 3.88 3.29 0.20 - 3.49 0.39
Total 3.79 0.09 - - 3.88 3.29 0.20 - 3.49 0.39
c} ROU Assets (Refer note 2.B(e])
Land 12,00 D.54 11.68 - 0.86 4.00 0.18 4.00 0.18 0.68
Plant and Machinery - - - - - - - = = -
Computer software - 2.73 - - 2.73 - 0.36 = 0.36 237
Total 12,00 3.27 11.68 - 3,59 4,00 0.54 4.00 0.54 3.05

Note: i} Certain property, plant and equipment are pledged as collateral against borrowings, the details related to which have been described in Note 15 on "Borrowings”.

Title deeds in respect of freehold land having Gross and net book value of % 380,60 Crore included in plant, property and equipment are in the name of the company but are not physically available with the Company. Same has been held with
Vistra ITCL (India) Limited working as trustee appointed by Banks/ Financial Institutions against charge created on borrowings taken from Banks and Financial Institutions. There is no such property wherein there is an issue with the title.

(i) Ageing of Capital-Waork-in Pragress (CWIP)

Year ended March 31, 2025 (% in Crore}
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total

years
Projects in progress 0.92 0.11 - 1.03
Previous year ended March 31, 2024 . (Xin Crore)
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3

years

Projects in progress

3.05

There |5 no project whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared ta its original plan during t




Talwandi 5abo Power Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025 (Xin Crore)
Note 4
Trade receivables - Non-current
Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Considered goad - Unsecured (Refer Note 42) 1,691.35 1,619.79
Trade Receivables - Credit impaired 0.05 0.05
Less: Provision for Trade Receivahles - Credit impalred (Refer Note 40) {0.05) (0.05)
Total 1,691.35 1,619.79
Note 5
Other financial assets - Non-current
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Bank Deposits with remaining maturity of more than 12 months (including 38.26 -
interest accrued thereon) (Refer note below)
Security deposits (Unsecured, considered good) 7.59 7.59
Total 45.85 7.59
Note: Bank deposits are kept as margin money and earns interest at fixed rate based on respective deposit rate.
Note &
Other non-current assets
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
||Prepaid Expenses 6.02 L7
[Total 6.02 1.77
Note 7
Inventaries
Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Fuel Stock 143.41 149,92
Goods-in transit 37.06 71.97
Stores and Spares 68.30 70.45
Goods-in transit - 0.15
Total 248.77 292,49
Note: For method of valuation of inventories, refer note 2.8(l}
Note 8
Trade receivables - Current
|\Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Considered good - Unsecured (Refer note 42) 959,58 547.10
Total 959,58 547.10

Note: The Company offers a credit period of 0-30 days to its custamers.




Talwandi 5abo Power Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025 (% in Crore)
Note 9
Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
([Batances with banks 33.52 168.01
[[Total 33.52 168.01
Note 10
Other Bank Balances
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Bank deposits (remaining maturity of less than 12 months including = 38.27
interest accrued thereon)
Total - 38.27

Note: Bank deposits are kept as margin money and earns interest at fixed rate based on respective deposit rate.

MNote 11

Other financial assets

[Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Receivables from related parties (Refer nate 37) 0.01 0.14

Claims and other receivables 1.10 0.51

Total 1.11 0.65

Note 12

Other current assets

[Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Advance to suppliers 21.64 0.47

Advance to related parties (Refer note 37) 1.01 -

Prepaid expenses 16.48 14 94

|Total 39.13 15.41




Talwandi Saho Power Limited

e [ o financial statements as at and fo arch 31, 2025
Note 13
Equity Share Capital :
Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Particula
SIEON Number al shares Amount Number of shares Amount
{Tin Crare) {%in Crore)
\Authorised Equity Share Capital
Equity Shares of T 10 each, with vating rights 400,00,00,000 4, 004000 400.00,00,000 400000
3.206,609.692 3,206,61 320,66,008,692 3,206.61
3,206,609,692 3,206,601 320,56,09,652 3,206.51
(i} Reconciliation of the number of shares and the amount outstandingas at beginning and at the end of the reparting year :
Equity Shares as at Equity Shares asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Particyiprs Number of shares Amount Number of sharps Amaount
[Tin Crare} (% in Crore)
(Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 320,66,08,68 3,306.61 420,66,09,692 1,206.61
| during the year a - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 3,206,609,692 3,206,561 320, 5509‘692 3,206.61
{ii] Details of shares held by the holding Company, the ultimate halding Company, thelr subsidiaries and associates :
330,66,09,692 (previous year: 320,66,09,692) Equity Shares |.e, 100% of the equity shares are held by the Holding Company, Vadanta Limited and its nominees,
{iii] Detalls of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares :
Asat Asat
IName of Sharsholder March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Number of shares Number of shares
%
held of Holding i % of Holding
Vedanta Limited and its numinees 320,66.08,892 100 310,66,00,692 100

Other disclosures :

(v} The Company hag one class of Equity Shares having a par value of %10 per share, Each shareholder |s eligiblo for one vate per share held. Dividend propased [if any) by the Board
of Directers is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting excent in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidstion of the Company, the
halders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, in propertion te their shareholding.




Talwandi Sabo Power Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note 14

Other equity (Refer Statement of changes in Equity) (X in Crore)
As at As at

Rartiu(ars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year 416.15 (184.92)

Add: Profit for the period 31.84 602.15

Add: Transfer from Other Comprehensive Income (0.01) (1.08)

Closing Balance 447.98 416.15

Other Comprehensive Income

Remeasurement Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year - (1.35)

Add: Remeasurement gain on defined benefit obligation {0.01) 0.27

Less: Transfer to Retained earnings 0.01 1.08

Closing Balance - £

Total other equity 447.98 416.15




Talwandi Sabo Power Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note 15 (Xin Crare)
Mon current financial liabilities - Borrowings

: As at As at
artiegiars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Secured : At amortised cost
(a) Term Loan (Refer note (iil) below)

From Other than Banks (Indian currency loan) 4,871.92 5,61632
Total Barrowings 4,871.92 5,616.32
Less : Current maturities of long-term borrowings (Refer note 18] (538.26) (744.75)
|Total 4,333.66 4,871.57

Notes:

(i) The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans and interest as at balance sheet date,

[il) Bank |oans avalled by the Company are subject to certain covenants relating to debt service coverage ratio and debt equity
ratio. The Company has complied with the convenants as per the terms of the loan agreement.

(ili) During the previous year, the Company had entered into a Loan refinancing agreement with Power Finance Corporation
Limited under which loan amount of all other existing lenders were fully repaid and entire loan was refinanced with Pawer
Finance Corporation Limited. The refinanced loan carries an interest rate of 9.45%.




Talwandi Sabo Pawer Limited

Motes forming part of the financial staterents as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

(iv) Summary of Term Loan (Carrying Value|:

(% in Crore)
Issued on Security As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

(a) From ather than banks:
Power Finance Corporation Limited June 2020 secured by first parl passu charge on fixed assets and second pari passu charge 2,525.63 3,250.82

on current assets of the Comparly, both present and future, with an

unconditional and irrevocable corporate guarantee by Vedanta Limited.
Power Finance Corporation Limited September 2023 |Secured by first pari passu charge on fixed assets and second pari passu charge 2,342.29 2,365.50

on current assets of the Company, beth present and future, with an

unconditional and irrevacable corporate guarantee by Vedanta Limited.
Total 4,871.92 5,616.32
Total Term Loan 4,871.92 5,616.32

Repayment terms of Term o

an outstanding as on March 31, 2025:

Particulars Weighted Average | Total Carrying Value <1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years »5 years Unamortised cost/MTM
Interest Rate
Indian Aupee term loan 5.45%)| 4,871,892 538.26 87231 B16.18 2,665.90 120.73)
Total 4,871.92 538.26 872.31 B16.18 2,665.90 (20.73)
Repayment terms of Term loan fing as an March 31, 2024:
Particulars Weighted Average | Total Carrying Value <1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years >5 years Unamortised cost/MTM
Interest Rate
Indian Rupee term loan 5.45% 561632 74495 1,076.52 65412 312201 (21.08)
Total 5,616,32 744.75 1,076.52 694.12 3,122.01 (21.08)

Note:

(a) The maturity ameunt as mentloned above is based on the total principal outstanding.

{v] Change in liabilities arising from financing activities and for non-cash financing and investing activities:

|%in Crore)
Particulars 01-Apr-24 Cash flows MNew leases Other 3i-Mar-25
Current borrowings 1178.75 {273.23) - 539.37 1,444.89
Current lease liabilities
1.36 4,24 | 11.1 8.30
(note 16) f ! i
Man- current bofrowings 4871.57 {3.70} - [534.21) 4,333.66
z lbilit
Non-current [ease linbilities 314 5 o (9.15) SR
[note 16)
i fes fi
otallbilitics om 6053.82 (281.17) 45.90 7.18 5825.74
fi ing activities
(%in Crare)
Particulars D1-Apr-23 Cash flows New leases Other 31-Mar-24
Current borrowings H§81.59 [336,34) - b33.10 1,178.75
i
Current iease liabilities 441 {0.10] .l (2.95] 1.36
(note 16)
Mon- current borrowings 5496,12 - - (624.55) 4,871.57
- lizbiliti
Mon-current |ease lizbilities 428 N 242 (5.56] 214
(note 16)
Total liabiliti:
etgl rabilities frors 6386.80 {336.44) 3.42 0.04 £053.82
financing activities

The ‘Other’ column includes the effect of reclassification of nan-current partion of borrowings, including lease |iabilities o current due to the passage of time, and the effect of acorued but not yet
paid interest on borrowings, including lease liabilities.




(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Talwandi Sabo Power Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025 (%in Crore)
Note 16
Lease Liabilities - Non Current
As at As at
Farioiies March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Lease liability (Refer note helow) 38.89 2,14
lITotal 38.89 2.14
Note:
The movemnent in lease liabilities is as follows:
As at As at
PATtEUlaeS March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balance 3.50 B.69
Additions 45,80 3.42
Reversal 4] (B.68)
Repayments (4.24) (0.10)
Interest 203 0.17
Closing Balance 47.19 3.50
MNon Current Lease Liability 38.89 2.14
Current Lease Liability 8.30 1.36
Lease liabilities carry an interest rate at 5.45% p.a.
Note 17
Provisions - Non-current
Particulars £5308 i
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Provision for employee benefits:
Gratuity (Refer Note 36) 0.22 0.15
Leave Encashment 0.74 0.91
[[Total 0.9 1.06
Note 18
Borrowings - Current
Particulars Ar Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
At amortised cost
Secured
“Working Capital Demand Loan (Refer note (i} below) 357.00 434.00
-Current maturities of long-term borrowings (Refer note 15} 538.26 744.75
Unsecured
Short Term Loan (Refer note {ii) below) 349.63 -
Loans from Related Parties (Refer note (iii) below) 200.00 -
Total 1,444.89 1,178.75
Notes:

Loan from banks

The Company meets its working capital requirement through loans from banks. These loans are secured by a first pari
passu charge on all present and future inventories, book debts and all other current assets & second pari passu charge
on fixed assets of the Company.

The guarterly returns/statements filed by the Company with such banks and financial institutions are in agreement with
the books of accounts of the Company.

The above outstanding loans carry interest rate of 8.50% p.a. (previous year 8.05% p.a.}.

The Company has been sanctioned short term loan from Power Finance Corparation and Aditya Birla Finance Limited
during the year, with an unconditional and irrevecable corporate guarantee by Vedanta Limited. The leans carry an
average interest rate of 10.14% and are repayable on or before 12 months.

Loans from Related Parties

The Company has ohtalned an inter corporate loan from its Parent company, Vedanta Limited during the year
amounting to 200 Crore at an interest rate of 10.40%.




Talwandi Sabo Power Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025 (X in Crore)
Note 19
Trade Finance

Asat As at

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Trade finance with bank

375.13

- Secured (Refer note below) 414,12

- Unsecured {Refer note helaw) 36.66 -
Total 450,78 375.13
Note:

a) LC bills payable amounting to % 414.12 Crore to bank with a discounting period of 120 days and is secured by first pari
passu charge on current assets and second pari passu charge on fixed assets of the Company, both present and future.

b) Unsecured liabllity towards bank for hills payable under bill discounting facility avalled for MSME vendors with a

discounting period of 180 days.

Note 20
Trade payables
. As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Total Outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Smal| Enterprises (Refer 8.98 1.56
note (b) below)
Total Outstanding dues of creditors ather than Micro Enterprises and Small 116.12 3635
Enterprises
Total 125.10 37.91
MNotes: :
(a) Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled upto 180 days terms.
(b) Disclosure under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006:
Particulars Gl .
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of 8.98 1.56
the accounting year
(i} Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end - -
of the accounting year :
(iii) The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment - -
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day
(iv] The amount of interest due and payable for the year - -
(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of - -
the accounting year
(vi) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the - -
succeeding year, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid
Note 21
Other financial liabilities - Current
Particulars Akt ASHL
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 30.61 34.17
Other Payables:
Retention money 15.12 8.81
Due to related parties (Refer note 37) 163.61 146.25
Earnest money deposit 12.45 10.43
Interest on Loan from Related Party (Refer note 37) 317 -
Other Liabilities 3.23 3.58
Total 228.19 203.24




Talwandi Sabo Power Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025 (% in Crore)
Note 22
Other current liabilities

As at As at
Fafiedbers March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Advance from customers® 0.64 1.72
Other Payables:
Statutary liahilities 3.04 3.55
Other liahilities 0.04 0.87
Total 3.72 6.14

* These are contract liabilities. Additional disclosures have not been furnished as the same are not material.

Note 23
Provisions - Current

Igﬁculars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Provision for employee benefits
Leave Encashment

0.09

0.11

Tatal

0.08

0.11




Talwandi Sabo Power Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025 (X in Crore)
Note 24
Revenue from operations

Year ended Year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Revenue from Operations
Energy Sales (Refer note below)

5,223.40

5,256.05

[Tatal

5,223.40

5,256.05

Note: Energy sales includes operating lease rentals of % 1,386.98 Crore (previous year X 1,423.27 Crore) relating to
recovery of Cpacity charges. The balance revenue of % 3,836.42 Crore (previous year X 3,832.78 Crore) relates to sale of
power in relation to contract with custorner and is recorded at a point in time. Also, refer note 2.B(b).

Note 25
Other Operating Revenue

‘Pia eticiilars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Scrap Sales 3.34 1.65
Sale of fly ash 12.75 26.35
Miscellaneous income 1.02 B.81
[[Total 17.11 36.81
Note 26
Other income
|;articulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost
- Bank Depaosits 2.57 2.47
- Others 0.25 0.20
Realised gains from investments measured at FVTPL 0.04 0.25
Interest on income tax refunds 0.84 0.35
Miscellaneous income 0.00 12,87
otal 3.70 16.14
Note 27
Employee benefits expense
paiticuluis Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salaries and Banus 22.20 23.69
Contribution to provident fund 0.68 0.70
Staff welfare expenses 0.48 0.35
Gratuity expenses (Refer note 36) 0.15 0.20
Contribution to superannuation 0.54 0.57
Total 24.05 25.51
Note 28
Finance cost
Fapbiciilass Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest on loan 587.19 635.17
Interest on lease obligation 2.03 0.17
Other finance costs 29.86 32.36
Total 619.08 667.70




(i

(i)

Talwandi Sabo Power Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025 (Xin Crore)
Note 29
Depreciation and amortisation expense (Refer note 3)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation of tangible assets 43713 455.72
Amortisation of intangible assets 0.32 0.20
Amortisation of ROU 4,54 0.54
Total 441,99 456.46
Note 30
Other expenses
R . Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Consumption of stores and spare parts 4572 56.76
Plant running and maintenance expenses 176.13 170.29
CSR expenses (Refer note 32) 1.30 1.45
Legal and professional fees 14.79 10.91
Electronic data processing expenses 2,52 2.97
Insurance 14.13 20.78
Rates and taxes 0.0 1.10
Security expenses 0.12 0.16
Travelling 2.68 2.84
Books and periodicals 0.32 0.13
Director sitting fees (Refer note 37) 0.45 0.66
Net loss on foreign currency transactions and translation 0.07 4.42
Loss on property plant and equipment written off 4.78 0.00
Brand Fees (Refer note 37) 46.38 46.94
Miscellaneous expenses 2.77 3.11
Total 313.06 322.52
Note 31

Commitments
Capital Commitments:

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed (net of advances) are % 1.28 Crore (previous year £ 0.38

Crore).
Other Commitments:

The Company entered into Power Purchase Agreement ("PPA") with Punjab State Power Corpaoration Limited ("PSPCL")
for twenty five years which has been identified as arrangement containing lease as per Ind AS 116. The arrangement
has been classified as operating lease as per the policy of the Company. The contingent rent recognized as income
during the year Is X 1,386.98 Crore (previous year X 1,423.27 Crore).

(iii) Guarantees:

a) The Company has advanced bank guarantees to regulators of India amounting to X 0.01 Crore (previous year % 0.01
Crore) relating to payment of state taxes (VAT & CST).

b) The Company has given bank guarantee amounting to X 38.23 Crore (previous year % 38.23 Crore) to 'Punjab State
Power Corporation Limited' (PSPCL) against pending litigation at Supreme Court.




Talwandi S5abo Power Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note 32
Corporate Social responsibility

{Xin Crore)

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2025 Year ended March 31, 2024
Amount of expenditure incurred by the Payment made in-| Payment yet to be Payment made in-{ Payment yet to be
Company during the year on: Cash Paid in Cash Cash Paid in Cash

i} Capital work-in-progress 0.39 0.02 0.25 0.09
ii} General expenses (Refer table below) 0.41 0.43 0.84 0.21
iii) Salaries and wages 0.03 0.02 0.06 0.00

[Total amount of expenditure incurred 0.83 0.47 1.15 0.30

As per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, during the year, the Company was required to spend an amount of % 3.42 Crore
(previous year % NIL) towards CSR expenditure. During the year, the Company has adjusted % 2.87 Crore carried forward from
previous years and also spent % 1.30 Crore during the year and carried forward the excess spent of % 0.75 Crore to subsequent

years,

Balance of CSR provision/C5SR expenses not yet paid in cash

Biptitulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening Balance 030 1.04
Pravision made during the year 1.30 145
Less: Payments made during the year (1.13) [2.19]
Closing Balance 0.47 0.30

Closing balance of % 0.47 Crore with respect to expenses incurred during the year will be paid in the next financial year.

Nature of amount - General Expenses

Year ended Year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Health care 0.30 030
Agriculture & Animal Husbandry 0.29 031
Children's Wellbeing & Education 0.04 0.02
Women Empowerment 0.20 028
Rural Development = 0.14
Dthers 0,01 0.00
Total 0.84 1.05
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Note 33
Contingent Liabilities

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt

(I} As per the Punjab State Grid Code, if a power genarating station fails to demonstrate its declared capacity for any time biock I 1in the d fan
notice from Punjab State Load Dispatch Centre ("PSLOCT), it amaunts to a mis-declaration. During the month af lanuary 2017, Punjab State Power Carporation
Limited ("PSPCL") imposed 2 pznalty on the Company on account of alleged mis-declaration and deducted a penalty of % 77.86 Crore (previous year T 77.86
Crore] from the monthly bill setting aside the clarifications submitted by TSPL.

In November 2017, TSPL filed a petition before Punjab State Electricity Regulztory Commission ("PSERC"). In February 2018, PSERC unfavourably disposed the
petition and directed calculation of the penalty for four instances in January 2017 at normative availabllity of B0% amouting to $ 127,32 Crore (previous year
127,32 Crore), In February 2018, TSPL filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal for Electricity (*APTEL"), During the year, APTEL pronounced the order in favour
of the Company directing PSPCL to refund the deducted penaity along with 'Late Payment Surcharge'. Accordingly, the Company has classified the deducted
penalty from non-current trade receivables to current trade receivables as at March 31, 2025,

Note 34 A [%in Crorg)
Auditors' Remuneration included under Legal & Professional Services
Padtiilsie Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Audit Feps 0.25 0.25
Limited Review 0,17 0.16
Reporting for Farent Company consolidation 0.08 0.08
(Other Services 0.15 0.04
(0wt of Pocket Expenses 0.03 0.03
Total 0.68 0.56
Note 35
Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Met profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders for basic and diluted EPS (2 in Crore) 31.84 60215
Weighted average number of Equity shares for Basic and Diluted EPS 3,206,608,692 3,206,605,692
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Shore (T) 010 1.88
Nominal Value Per share (%) 10.00 10.00]
Note 36

Employee Benefits

a) Defined contribution plan
During the year, the Company contributed a total of £ 1.22 Crore (previous year % 1.27 Crore) to the following defined cantribution plans:

Contral provident fund

I accordance with the Employees' Provident Funds & Miscell Provisions Act, 1552 amploy are entitled Lo recejve benefits undar the provident fund,
Both the employee and the loyar make hly contributions to the plan at a predetermined rate (12% for fiscal year 2025 and 2024) of an employes's
basic salary. All employees have an aption to make additional voluntary contributions, These contributions are made to the fund administered and managed by
the Government of india (GOI) or to independently | and app d funds. The C v has no further obligations under the fund managed by the GOI

beyond its monthly contributions which are cherged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period they are incurred, Where the contributions are made to
independently managed and approved funds, shortfall in actual return, if any, from the return guaranteed by the State are made by the employer, these are
accounted for as defined benefit plans. The benefits are paid to emplayees on their retirement or resignation from the Campany.

Superannuation

Superannuation, another pension scheme applicable in India, is applicable only to senior execullves, The Company holds & policy with Life Insurance
Carparatioh of India ("LIC"), ta which it contributes a fived amount refating to superannuation and the pensian annuity is met by LIC as required, taking into
consideration the contributions made. The Coampany has no further abligations under the scheme beyand its monthly contributions which are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period they are incurred.
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Nate 36
Employee Benefits (Contd.)

b) Defined Benefit Plan:
In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act of 1572, the Company operates a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”), The Gratulty Plan provides a lump
sum pay to vested employ at retirement, disshility or ination of emplay being an amount based on the respective employes's last drawn
salary and the number of years of employment with the Company. The Gratulty plan is a funded plan and the Company makes eantribution to recognised funds
in India. Based on actuarial valuations conducted as at year end on the basis of Projected Unit Credit {PUC] method, a provision is recognised In full for the

benefit obligation over and above the funds held in the Gratuity Plan,

The disclosure as required under Ind AS-19 "Empl fits" reg g the company's gratuity plan (funded) are as follows:

Actuarial assumptions

Year ended Year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salary growth (p.a.) 5509 5.50%
Expectad rate of Return an Plan Assets (p.a.) 7.119, 7.38%
Discount rate (p.a.) 7.03%: 7.10%
Maortality rate 100% IALM{2012-14) 100% 1ALM{2D12-14)
The rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other refevant factors including supply
and demand in the employment market,
Expenditure recognized during the year
Year endad Year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current service cost 0,15 0.20
Interest cost 0.01 0.03
Tatal 0.16 0.23
Amount recognized in Other Camp ive Income during the year
| eul Year ended Year ended
Farticilars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit obligation:-
Actuarial losses / (gaing] arlsing from changes in financial assumptions 0,01 0.05
Actuarial losses / (gains] arising from experience ad] 115 {0.01) [0.41]
Total 0.00 (0.36)
Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation
Year ended Year ended
Particul
it March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Chbligaticn at the beginning of the year 177 1.BG&
Current service cost (.15 0.20
Interest cost 013 0.13
Actuarial {gains)/losses 0.00 {0.36]
Benefits paid {0.47) {0.06)
"Dhligallun at the end of the year 1.58 177
Movement in present value of plan assets
Year ended Year ended
Particular
AINleMiars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Fair value at the beginning of the year 1.62 1.40
Actual return on plan assets 011 0.10
Contribution 0.00 018
|[Banefits paid (0.37) (0.08)
lFaIr value at the end of the year* 1.36 1.62

*The entire amount has bean invested with Life Insurance Corporation of India.
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Mote 36
Employes Benefits (Contd.)
Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet

|particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 fMarch 31, 2024
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 1.58 177
Less: Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year {1.36] 11.62)
Met liabllity recognized in the Balance Sheet 022 0.15

The contribution expected to be made by the Campany during the finsncial year 2025-26 as ascertained by the management is 2 0.19 Crare {previous Year %
0.24 Crore)

Sensitivity analysis Marech 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Increase [ [Decrease) in defined benefit obligation
Discount rate

Increase by 0.50% (0.0} (0.09)
Decrease by 0.50% 0.0 010
Expected rate of increase in compensation level of cavered emplayess -

Increase by 0.50% 0.10 0,10
Dacrease by 0.50% {0.09) (0.10)]
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
[¥ear March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

0-1 Years 0.03 0.03
1-2 Years 0.03 0.03
2-3 Years D.03 0.30
3 -4 Years 0.03 0.03
4 -5 Years n.o2 0.02
5« 6 Years 0.02 0.0z
More than 6 years 1.42 1.34
Total 1.58 1.77
Risk analysis

The Company is expesed to 3 number of risks in the defined benefit plans. Maost significant risks pertaining to defined benefits plans, and management's
estimation of the impact of these risks are as follows:

Interest risk
A decrease in the interest rate on plan assets will increase the plan lishility.

Longevity risk/ Life expectancy
The present value of the defined benefit plan lizbility is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and at the
end of the employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan liability.

Salary growth risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan lisbility (s calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants, An increase in the salary of the plan
participants will increase the plan liability,

Investment risk

The Gratuity plan is funded with Life Insurance Corporation of India ("LIC") . The Company does nat have any liberty ta manzge the fund provided to LIC, The
present value of the defined benefit plan lability is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference te Government of India bonds. If the return on
plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.

Note 37
Related Party Disclosures
List of related parties and relationships

{a) Entities ¢ lling the company {Holding Companies)
Immediate: Vedanta Limited
Intermediate: Vedanta Resources Limited (formerly Vedanta Resources Ple.)

Vedanta Aesources [r 1t Limited {VAIL}
Ultimate: Vedanta Incorporated (formerly Volcan Investments Limited)*
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Note 37
Related Party Disclosures [Contd.)

(b) Fellow subsidiaries with whom transactions have taken place:

Fellow Subsidiaries:

(e] Key Managerial Personnel:

* No transaction with parties during the year.

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties:

Bharat Aluminium Company Limited

ESL Steel Limited
Hindustan Zine Limited

Sterlite Power Transmissions Limited

Runaya Refining LLP

STL Digital Limited

\edanta Foundatian
Maenakshi Ensrgy Limited
Resonia Limited

Sterlite Technologies Limited

Mr. Rajinder Singh Ahujz

Mr, Vibhay Agarwal

Mr, Nitesh Malani
Mr. Agnivesh Agarwal

Mr. Pankaj Kumar Sharma
Ms. Sonal Chaitani

Mr. Baldev Krishan Sharma
Mr, Mahendra Singh Mehta

Ms. Shivangi Dhanuka

: Chief Executive Officer (w.e.f.
ath February 2025)

: Chief Executive Officer (CED till
close of business hours on 8th
February 2025)

: Chief Financial Officer

: Chalrman, Non Executive
Director

: Whole time Director

: Non-Executive Director

i Non-Executive Director

tindependent Director (ceased
to be director w.e.f. close of
business hours an 29th March
2025),

: Company Secretary

The Company enters into transactions in the normal course of business with [ts related parties, Including its parent Vedanta Limited. A summary of all related
party transactions for the year ended March 31, 2025 and 2024 are noted below,

a, Details of transactions during the year with related partioes ¢ (% in Crore)
—— Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

1] Recovery of employee cost and other expenses
(i} Vedanta Limited 0.08 0.23
(it} Hindustan Zinc Limited 0.04 0.24
(1ii}) Bharat Aluminium Comgpany Limited 011 0.19
(iv} Sterlite Power Transmissions Limited - 0,01
(v) ESL Steel Limited - 0,01
(vi} Runaya Refining LLP - 004
(vii) Resoniz Limited 0,01 -
2] Reimbursement of employee cost and other expenses
{i) Vedanta Limited B.61 9.61
(i) Vedanta Foundation 0.02 0.01
{ini} STL Digital Limited | 1.50 0.78
(i) Hindustan Zinc Limited 0.05 0.01
{v) Bharat Aluminium Company Limited 0.00 0.00
(v} ESLSteel Limited 0.02 -
(vii) Runoya Refining LLP - 0.01
(wiii) Meenakshi Energy Limited 0,01

"3] Sale of Consumables and Capey items
(i} Hindustan Zine Limitzd - 0.04
(i) Vedanta Limited 035 -
4] Purchase of Consumables and Capex items
(i} Vedanta Limited 0.05
(i} Hindustan Zinc Limited - 0.01
(iii} Sterlite Technologies Limited 071 -
5) Brand Fees pald
(I} Vedanta Resources Limited (VRAL) - 46.94
(ii] Vedanta Resources Investment Limited (VRIL) A6.38 -
6) Interest and Guarantee Commission
Vedanta Limited 22.95 2395
7) Loans taken during the year
Vedanta Limited 200.00
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Note 37
Related Party Disclosures [Contd.)

b. Details of balances with related parties :

r ended March 31, 2025

particulars Year ended Year ended
Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

1) Loans fram Vedanta Limited 200.00 -
2] Balance Receivable as at the end of the year

[i] Sterlite Power Transmissions Limited = 0.01
(i) Resonfa Limited 0,01 -
3) Advances given as at the end of the year

Vedanta Resources [nvestment Limited 1.01 5
4) Balance Payable as at the end of the year

(i} Vedanta Limited 161.45 140.77
(i) Hindustan Zinc Limited 0.00 0.00
(i)} E5L. Steel Limited 0.01 -
(iv)  Sterlite Technologies Limited 0.71

(W) STL Digital Limited D23 :
(vi] Meenakshi Energy Limited 0.01 -
(vii] Vedanta Resources Limited 5,34 5.34
5) Bank G /Carg issued on our behalf and outstanding as at the end

of the year

Vedanta Limited 5,242.70 5,637.41
[ ation of key it [ (KMP)
||Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Short-term employee benefits 5.83 4.86
Post emplayment benefits 0.38 0.37
Share based payments 0.57 0.41
[Totat 678 5.64
Note:

a, The Company has paid % 0,12 Crore (previous year % 0.14 Crore) as sitting fees & has also accrued % 0.34 Crore (Previous year % 0.51 Crore] as commission to

its dircectors,

b. Post employment benefits does not include the provision made for gratuity and leave benefits, as they are determined on an actuarial basis for all the

employses together.
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Mote 38
Capital management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital is to safeguard continuity, maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capltal ratios in order to support |ts
business and provide adequate return to its shareholder through continuing growth. The Company's averall strategy remains unchanged frem previous year,

The Company sets the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business and long-term operating plans which include capital and other stratagic
investments.

The funding requirements are met through a mixture of equity, internal fund generation and borrowings fram bapks and financial institutions. The
Company's policy is to use short term and |ong-term borrowings to meet anticipated funding requirements.

The Company maonitars capital on the basis of the net debr to equity ratio. The Company is not subject to any externally img 1 capital req

Net debt are long term and short term debts as reduced by cash and cash equivalents (including restricted cash and cash eguivalents) and short-term
Investrments. Equity comprises all the compaonents including other comprehensive Income, The Company does not consider lease liabilities and trade finance
as debts for this purpose,

The fallowing table summarizes the capital of the Company:

(%in Crore)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 May 31, 2024
Equity Share Capital 3,206.61 3,206.61
Other Equity 447.98 416.15
\Total Equity (a) 3,654.59 3,622.76
Cash and cash eguivalents 3352 168.01
Current investments = 38.27
otal cash (b) 31.52 205.28
Short-term borrowings (Including eurrent maturities) 1,444 89 1,178.75
Long-term borrowings 4,3313.66 4,871.57
otal debt (c) 5,778.55 £,050.32
Met debt (d=(c-b)) 5,745.01 5,844.04
Met debt to equity ratio {d/a) 157 1.61
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Note 39
Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities:

(Xin Crore)

The accounting classification of each categary of financial Instruments, their carrying amounts and fair value amounts are set out

below:

March 31, 2025

Financial assets

Fair value through
profit or loss

Amortised cost

Total carrying value

Total fair value

Trade receivables - Current - 859,58 959.58 959.58
Trade receivables - Non Current - 1,691.35 1,691,35 1,691.35
Other non-current financial assets 45,85 45.85 45.85
Other current financial assets 141 111 111
Cash and cash equivalents - 33.52 33.52 33.52
Other bank balances - - - -

Total - 2,731.41 2,731.41 2,731.41

March 31, 2024

Financial assets

Fair value through
profit or loss

Amortised cost

Total carrying value

Total fair value

Trade recelvables - Current - 547.10 547.10 547.10
Trade receivables - Non Current - 1,619.79 1,619.79 1,619.79
Other non-current financlal assets 7.59 7.59 7.59
Other current financial assets - 0.65 0.65 0.65
Cash and cash equivalents - 168.01 168.01 168.01
Other bank balances 38.27 38.27 38.27
Total . 2,381.41 2,381.41 2,381.41

March 31, 2025

Financial liabilities

Fair value through
profit or loss

Amortised cost

Total carrying value

Total fair value

Long-term borrowings 4,333.66 4,333.66 4,333.66
Short-term borrowings - 1,444.89 1,444.89 1,444.89
Trade finance - 450.78 450.78 450.78
Trade payables - 125.10 125.10 125.10
Lease Liabilty - 47.19 47.19 47.19
Derivative lizbility 0.04 0.04 0.04
Other current financial liabilities = 228.19 ' 228.19 228.19
Total £ 6,628.85 6,629.85 6,629.85

March 31, 2024

Financial liabilities

Fair value through

Amortised cost

Total carrying value

Total fair value

profit or loss

Long-term borrowings = 4,871.57 4,871.57 4,871.57
Short-term borrowings - 1,178.75 1,178.75 1,178.75
Trade finance = 375.13 375.13 375.13
Trade payables = 37.81 37.91 37.91
Lease Liabilty x 3.50 3.50 3.50
Derivative liability - - - -

Other current financial liabilities 203.24 203.24 203.24
Total - 6,670.10 6,670.10 6,670.10
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Note 39

Financial instruments (Contd.)

- Long-term fixed-rate and variable-rate borrowings (including their current maturities): Fair value has been determined by the
Company using level 2 technique, based on parameters such as interest rates, specific country risk factors, individual
creditworthiness of the customer and the risk characteristics of the financed project. For all other long-term fixed-rate and
variable-rate borrowings, either the carrying amount approximates the fair value, or fair value have been estimated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using a discount rate equivalent to the risk free rate of return adjusted for the appropriate credit
spread. The changes in counterparty credit risk had no material effect on the hedge effectiveness assessment for derivatives
designated in hedge relationship and the value of other financial instruments recognised at fair value.

- Current financial assets and liabilities: The fair value of current trade receivables, cash and bank balances, loans and other
financial assets, current borrowings, trade and other payables and other current financial liabilities is likely to approximate their
carrying values due to short term maturities of these Instruments.

- Non-current trade receivables: Fair value has been determined by the Company based on interest rates and recoverability of
dues from the customer. Also, refer note 40.
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Note 40

Risk management

The Company's business are subject to several risks and uncertainties including financial risks. The Company’s documented risk management polices act as an
effective tool in mitigating the various financial risks to which the business is exposed to in the course of their daily operations. The risk management palicies
cover areas such as liquidity risk, foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, counterparty and concentration of credit risk and capital management. Risks are
identifled through a formal risk management programme with active invalvement of senior management personnel and business management. The Comparny
has risk in place management processes which are in line with the policy of the parent Company, Vedanta Limited. Each significant risk has a designated
‘owner' within the Company at an appropriate senjor level, The potential financial impact of the risk and its likelihood of a negative outcome are regularly
updated.

The risk management process is coordinated by the centralised Management Assurance function and is regularly reviewed by the Company’s Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee is aided by the Risk Management Committee of the Company comprising of senior management, which meets regularly to review risks as
well as the progress against the planned actions. Key business decisions are discussed at the periodic meetings of the Board of Directors. The overall internal
contral envirenment and risk management programme including financial risk management is reviewed by the Audit Committee on behalf of the Board.

The risk management framework aims to:

= improve financial risk awareness and risk transparency

= identify, control and monitor key risks

« identify risk accumulations

» provide management with reliable information on the Company’s risk situation
» improve financial returns

Treasury management

The Company's treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and international financial markets, monitors and manages
the financial risks relating to the operations of the Company through internal risk reports which analyses exposures by degree and magnitude of risks, These
risks include market risk (including currency risk), credit risk and liguidity risk.

Treasury management focuses on capital protection, liquidity maintenance and yield maximization. The treasury policies are approved by the Board and
adherence to these polcies is strictly monitored at the Finance Standing Committee. A monthly reporting system exists to inform senior management of
investments, debt and currency, The Company has a strong system of internal contral which enabiles effective monitoring of adherence to Company's policies.
The internal contral measures are effectively supplemented by regular internal audits.

The investment partfolio of the Company is maintained as per approved monthly policies duly approved by holding Company treasury team.
Additional Information to the Financial Statements :

Financial risk
The Company's Board approved financial risk policies comprise liquidity, currency, interest rate and counterparty risk. The Company does not engage in
speculative treasury activity but seeks to manage risk and optimize foreign exchange impact through proven financial instruments.

Liquidity Risk:

The Company remains committed to maintaining a healthy liquidity, gearing ratio, deleveraging and strengthening its balance sheet. The maturity profile of
the Company’s financial liabilities based on the remaining period from the date af balance sheet to the cantractual maturity date is given in the table below,
The figures reflect the contractual undiscounted cash obligation of the Company.
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Note 40
Risk management (Contd.)
(% in Crore)
Financial liabilities Af o March 32, 2025
<1 year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years > 5 Years Total
Borrowings 1,444,895 87231 B16.18 2,665.90 5,799.28
Interest on borrowings 451.60 73548 588.95 702.76 2,478.79
Trade finance 450,78 - - ~ 450.78
Trade payables 125.10 - - - 125.10
Other financial liabilities 22819 - - = 228.19
Lease Liability 12.05 24.45 22.32 0.75 59.57
Financial Instruments-derivatives 0.04 - - = 0.04
(X in Crore)
Financial liabilities As on Mafth 31, 2024
<1 year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years > 5 Years Total
Borrowings 1,178.75 1,076.52 654.12 3,122.01 6,071.40
Interest on borrowings 500.68 827.51 660.71 978.16 2,967.06
Trade flnance 375.13 - - - 375.13
Trade payables 37.91 - - 37.91
Other financial liabilities 203.24 - - - 203.24
Lease Liahllity 137 142 1.01 0.81 4.61

Financial Instruments-derivatives

Interest rate risk:

The Campany is exposed to interest rate risk on short-term and long-term floating rate instrument, Barrowings of the Company are principally denominated in
Indian Rupees with mix of ficed and floating rates of interest. The Indian Rupee debt is mix of fixed interest rates and floating interest rates. Thase exposures
are reviewed by appropriate levels of management on a monthly basis. The Company invests cash and liquid investments in short-term deposits and liquid

mutual funds.

(%in Crore)

As at March 31, 2025

Floating rate

Fixed rate

Non interest bearing

Total financial

Particulars financial assets | financial assets financial assets assets
Financial assets-non current

Trade Receivalles® - - 1,691.35 1,691.35
Other financial assets 472 38.26 2,87 45.85
Total financial assets-non current 4.72 38.26 1,694.22 1,737.20
Financial assets-current

Trade receivables® - 959.58 959.58
Cash and cash equivalents - - 33.52 33.52
Bank Balances - - -
Other financial assets - - 111 111
Total financial assets-current - - 994.21 994.21
Total financial assets A4.72 38.26 2,688.43 2,731.41

*The Campany is entitled to interest @ 2% in excess of the applicable State Bank Lending Rate (58LR) per annum beyond narmal credit period,
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Note 40
Risk management (Contd,)

{Tin Crore)

As at March 31, 2024

Floating rate Fixed rate MNon interest bearing | Total financial
Particulars financial assets | financial assets financial assets assets
Financial assets-non current
Trade Receivables* - - 1,619.79 1,619.79
Qther financial assets 4.72 - 2.87 7.59
Total financial assets-non current 4.72 - 1,622.66 1,627.38
Financial assets-current
Trade recelvables* - - 547.10 547.10
Cash and cash equivalents - - 168.01 168.01
Bank Balances - 38.27 - 38.27
Other financial assets - - 0.65 . 0.65
Total financial assets-current - 38.27 715,76 754.03
Total financial assets 4.72 38.27 2,338.42 2,381.41

*The Company is entitled to Interest @ 2% in excess of the applicable State Bank Lending Rate {SBLR) per annum beyond normal credit period.

The weighted average interest rate on the fixed rate financial assets is 7.00% p.a. (previous year 6.50% p.a.] and th
rate is fixed is 1.25 years (previous year 0.48 years).

e weighted average period for which the

(Xin Crore)

As at March 31, 2025

Particulars Floating rate Fixed rate Non interest bearing | Total financial
Financial liabilities-non current
Borrowings 4,333.66 - - 4,333.66
Lease Liability ~ 38,89 = 38.89
Total financial lizhilities-non current 4,333.66 3R.89 - 4,372.55
Financial liabllities-current

Barrowings 1,444.89 - - 1,444,859
Trade finance - 450.78 - 450,78
Trade payables - 29.99 95,11 125.10
Other financial liabilities - - 228,19 228.19
Lease Liahiltiy - 8.30 = 830
Derivative financial Habllities - - 0.04 0.04
Total financial liabilities-current L.444.89 485.07 323.34 2,257.30
Total financial liahilities 5,778.55 -527.95 32334 6,625.85

The weighted average interest rate on the fixed rate financial liabilities is 7.35% p.a. and the weighted average period for which the rate is fixed is 0.45 years.

{% in Crare)

As at March 31, 2024

Particulars Floating rate Fixed rate Non interest bearing | Total financial
Financial liabilities-non current +
Borrowings 4,871.57 - - 487157
Lease Libility 2 2.14 - - 2.14
Total financial liabilities-non current 4,871.57 2.14 - 4,873.71
Financial liabilities-current
Borrowings 1,178.75 - - 1,178.75
Trade finance - 37513 - 37513
Trade payables - - 37.91 37.91
Other financial liabilities - - 203.24 20324
Lease Liahiltiy - 1.36 - 1.36
Derivative financial liabilities - - - -
Total financial liabilities-current 1,178.75 376.49 241.15 1,796.39
Total financial liabilities 6,050.32 378.63 241.15 6,670.10

The weighted average interest rate on the fixed rate financial liabilities is 7.63% p.a. and the weighted average period for which the rate is fixed is 0,12 years.
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Note 40
Risk management (Contd.)

The table below illustrates the impact of 2 0,5% to 2.0% movement in interest rates on fnterest expense on loans and borrowings for the year ended March 31,
2025. The risk estimate provided assumes that the changes oceur at the reporting date and has been calculated based on risk exposure outstanding as of date.
The year end balances are not necessarily representative of the average debt outstanding during the year, This analysis also assumes that all ather variables
remain constant.

(% in Crore)

Effect on profit before tax
|Movement in interest rates FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24
0.50% 28.83 30.25
1.00% 57.79 60,50
2.00% 115,57 121.01

Creadit Risk:

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company, The Company has adopted &
policy of anly dealing with creditwarthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as 3 means of mitigating the risk of financial loss
from defaults, The Company is exposed to credit risk primarily on trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents,

Given the nature of PPA, trade receivables are from a single customer Punjab State Power Corporation Limited (PSPCL), with significant concentration of credit
risk. The histary of trade receivables shows a negligible provision for bad and doubtful debts. Altough there are significant disputed trade receivables, classiflied
as non-current with PSPCL, the management has assessd that the company has strong chances of getting the dispute resolved in its favour Therefore, the
Company does not expect any material risk on account of non-performance by any of the Company’s counterparties.

The carrying value of the financial assets other than cash and investments in bank deposits represents the maximum credit exposure. The Company's
maximum exposure to credit risk at March 31, 2025 is % 2,659.64 Crore [previous year ® 2,175.13 Crore) of which % 2,650.93 Crore (previous year T 2,166.89
Crore) was from a single customer.

Nane of the Company's cash equivalents, including time deposits with banks, are past due or impaired. Regarding trade and other receivables, and other non-
current assets, there were no indications as at March 31, 2025, that defaults in payment obligations will oceur, except for disputed matters.

Recelvables are deemed to be past due or impaired with reference to the customer's credit quality and prevailing market conditions. Receivables that are
classified as 'past due' in the above tables are those that have not been settled within the terms and conditions of the agreement with the customer. The
Company based on past experiences does not expect any material loss on its receivables.The credit quality of the Company's customer is monitored on an
ongoing basis. Where receivables have been impaired, the Company actively seeks to recover the amounts in question and enforce compliance with credit
terms,

™ inall es for Trade receivables (Current & Non-Current) is as foll

Trade Trade Receivables Total
Particulars Receivables Non Current

Current
As at March 31,2024 o 0.05 0.05
Allowances made during the year - - -
Reversal/Write off during the year - - -
As at March 31,2025 - 0.05 0.05

As on March 31, 2025
Particulars MNot past Due lessthan1 | Due b 1- Due k 3-12 Due greater

due months 3 months maonths than 12 months

Trade recelvables - Non Current® 25.26 12.80 2281 111.97 1,518.51
Trade receivables - Current® 881.72 - - - 77.86
Other Financial Assets - Non Current 45,85 - - - -
Other Financial Assets - Current 0.01 - - - 1.10
Total 852.84 12.B0 22.81 111.97 1,597.47

*Refer Note 42
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Note 40
Risk management (Contd.)
(% in Crore)
As on March 31, 2024

Particulars Not past Duelessthan1 | Due between 1-| Due between 3-12 Due greater

due months 3 months months than 12 months
Trade recaivables - Non Current® 23.69 12.46 2435 113.79 1,445.50
Trade receivables - Current® 547.10 - - - -
Other Financial Assets- Non Current 7.59 - - - -
Other Financial Assets - Current 0.14 = - 0.51 -
Total 578.52 12,46 24,35 114.30 1,445.50
“Refer Note 42

Foreign exchange risk

Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates may have an impact on the financial statements where any transaction references mare than one currency or
where assets/liabllities are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company.

Exposures on foreign currency loans are managed through the Company wide hedging policy, which is reviewed periodically to ensure that the results from
fluctuating currency exchange rates are appropriately managed,

As at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, the Company did not have any significant expasure in foreign currency.

Note 41

As per Ministry of Environment norms, the Company had to comply with timeline of SO2 emission by December 31, 2013, Subsequently the Company received
a notice on October 16, 2020 and a corrigendum on November 04, 2020 wherein CPCB extended the timeline for installing the Fuel Gas Desulfurization (FGD)
to February 28, 2021 far Unit 1, December 31, 2020 for Unit 2 and October 31, 2020 for Unit 3. As per the notification issued by Ministry of Environment ,
Forest and Climate Change (MoEF&CC) dated September 05, 2022, the timeline for complying with the S02 emission norms has been extended to December
31, 2026 for TSPL under category C plants. Recently, MoEFRCC issued another notice dated December 30 2024, where the timeline for 502 emissian
compliance have again been extended to December 31, 2029,
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Note 42
Trade Receivables agelng schedule [Xin Crore)
For the year ended March 31, 2025
Particulars Outstanding for qu__o_z,:mh_uq_nnm from M_._m date of payment as on
Not due —g arch 31,202! - —
SN 6 months -1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years SRSl Tatal
months years
Nop-current
{i) Disputed Trade Receivables-considered
goad 25.26 74.48 B5.64 151.41 251.8D 1,102.76 1,691.35
E c_,muimo_ Trade Receivables — credit i ] y i a8 i s
impaired
Sub-Total 25.26 74.48 85.64 151.41 251.85 1,102.76 1,691.40
Current
[i} Un Disputed Trade Receivables—considered RE1T72 b i > J 1 88172
good
(i1} Disputed Trade Recejvables—considered 77.56 77.86
good
Sub-Total 881.72 - - - - 77.86 959.58
Tatal 906,98 74.48 85.64 15141 251.85 1,180.62 2,650,98
For the year ended March 31, 2024
Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment as on
Particulars Not due - 5 Marthe 12028 Py —
s tharh 6 maonths -1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years il Tatal
months years
Non-current
(i) D_M_mn:nmn_ Trade Receivables—considered 23,69 73.50 77.09 164.23 227.18 1,054.10 1,619.79
goo
(i) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit ] 4 l 0.05 I ) 0.05
impaired
Sub-Total 23.69 73.50 77.09 164.28 227.18 1,054.10 1,619.84
Current
(i} Un Disputed Trade Receivables—considerad
ood 547.10 » - - - - 547.10
(1) Disputed Trade Receivables—considered i ] ; X | . 1
|good
Sub-Total 547.10 - - - - - 547.10
Total 570.79 73.50 77.09 164.28 227.18 1,054.10 2,166.94

—

/




(a)

(b}

(e}

Talwandi Sabo Power Limited

Notes farming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note 43 (%in Crore)
Income tax expenses
Tax charge/(credit) recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss:

Year ended Year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Current tax
Current tax on profit for the year
Total current tax

Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of temporary differences- other than exceptional items 280 (46.26)
Charge in respect of exceptional item - 199,90
Tax adjustment for previous years (24.54) -
Total deferred tax (21.64) 153.64
Net tax (credit)/charge (21.64) 153.64
Profit before tax 10.20 755.79

Reconciliation of income tax expense/credit applicable to accounting profit/(loss) before tax at the statutory income tax rate to

tax expense for the year:

; Year ended Year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Accounting profit before tax 10.20 755.79
Statutory income tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Tax at Indian statutory income tax rate 2.57 190.22
Tax rate difference
Business losses on which Deferred tax assets not made in previous years - {54.85})
Forex loss adjusted u/fs 43A - 17.90
Deferred tax adjustment for previous years (24,54) =
C5R Expenditure Disallowed 0.33 0.37
Total [21.64) 153.64
MNote:

(i) During the year, the Company has accounted for Deferred tax Liahllity of  2.90 Crore and Deferred Tax Asset of ¥ 24.54 Crore in

respect to adjustment of previous years,

{li} During the previous year, the Company has accounted for Deferred tax Liability on account of exceptional pain for ¥ 199.90

Crore and a Deferred tax Asset T 46,26 Crore.

{iii)) Additionally, basis the Company's projections, there is a convineing evidence that there would be sufficient profits in the future

years, to utllise the deferred tax assets,

Deferred tax assets/liabilities

Significant components of deferred tax (assets) & liabilities In the balance sheet are as follows:

particalare Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Property, plant and eguipment and intangible assets:

Opening balance B49,89 743,02

Charged to profit or loss section 112.92 106.87

Closing balance 962.81 8449.89

|Unabsorbed depreciation

Dpening balance (955,78) (989.71)

Credited to profit or loss [135.23) 33.93

Charped/(credited) to other comprehensive income {OCI) - -
Closing balance (1,091.01) (955.78)
Other temparary differences

Opening balance (0.68) (13.51)

Charged to profit or loss 0.68 12.84

Charged/{credited) to other comprehensive income (OCI) (0.00) 0.08
Closing balance (0.00) (0.68)
Net deferred tax assets (128.20) (106.57)
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Note 44
Trade Payables ageing schedule {%in Crore)
For the year ended March 31, 2025
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Not due
Lass than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

(i} MSME 8.98 - - = = 8.98
(i} Others £9.28 41.59 5.29 0.01 0.00 116.12

Disputed dues — MSME = - - - -
{iv] Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 78.26 41.59 5.24 0,01 0.00 125.10
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Out ling for following periods from due date of payment
a | Notd
R otclie Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years Mare than 3 years Total
(i) MSME 156 = E - ; 156
18.18 16.73 1.16 0.27 0.01 36.35

(1ii) Disputed dues — MSME - - - - - -
{iv) Disputed dues - Others » = . N .
Total 19.74 16.73 1.16 0.27 0.01 37.91
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Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note 45
Ratios
" Asat . As at . T

Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31,2024 % Variance | Remarks (for variances more than 25%)

(a) Current Ratio 057 0.59 -3%

(b) Debt-Equity Ratio 134 1.55 -14%

(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio 116 1.34 -13%

(d) Return on Equity Ratie 0.01 0.17 -958 [The Return on equity ratio has significanly declined as there was
an exceptional gain net of taxes of % 594.36 Crore in previous
year.

(&) Inventory turnover ratio 15.30 20.37 -5%

{f) Trade Recelvables turnover ratio 6.93 7.75 -11%

() Trade payables turnover ratio 5.62 6.20 -9%

(h) Net capital turnover ratio (5.02) (6.92) -27% |Due to decrease in working capital during current year,

(i) Net profit ratio gL on -S5% Due to decrease in profits in current year as exceptional gain net

(j) Return on Capital employed 0.07 0.15 -55% |of taxes of X 594,36 Crore in previous year.

(k) Return an investment 0.07 0.06 4%

Note 46

Other Statutory Information

(i} No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,
1988 and rules made thereunder,

(i) The Campany has not entered in any transaction with struck off companies during the current year or previous year,

(iii) There are na charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period,

{iv) The Company has no Cryptocurrency transactions / balances during the current year ar previous year.

(v) Mo funds have been advanced or loaned or Invested (either from borrewed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company
to or in any other person(s) ar entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whather, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or an behalf of the
company {“Ultimate Beneficiaries”} or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{vi) No funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entitylies), including fareign entitles {“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(vii) The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accolnts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessmeants under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

(viii) The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note 47

Disputed Trade Receivables

Punjab State Power Corporation Limited ("PSPCL"), which is the Company's sole customer has withheld payments aggregating to % 1,691.35 Crore
(previous year % 1,619.78 Crore) which are on account of various disputes including tax benefits at the time of initial plant setup, procurement of
alternate coal, and basis of computation of plant avallahility amongst others.

In a Mis-declaration matter, APTEL has pronotinced the order in favour of the Company on March 18, 2025 directing PSPCL ta refund the deducted
penalty along with ‘Late Payment Surcharge', The Company has classified the deducted penalty from non-current trade receivables to current trade
receivables for the year ended March 21, 2025,

The balance matters are under fitigation and the Company has obtained independent legal advice which supports its claims and is thus not expecting
any material losses on these balances and believes that it is highly prabable that the Company's claims would be upheld, Based on the expected
timing of realisation of these balances, which is in turn dependent on the settiement of legal disputes, the Company has bifurcated the receivables
into current and nan-current, The management has assessed the recoverability of the outstanding balances and does not believe that any material
adjustment is required.

Note 48

Segment Information

The Company's activities during the year revolved around operating 3*660 MW Thermal Power Plant at Mansa, Punjab. Considering the nature of
Compary's business and operations, there are no separate reportable segments [business and/or geographical) in accordance with the requirements
of Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments. All the Company's revanues, trade receivables and non-current operating assets are in India. The Company's
revenles ageregating to ¥ 5,223.40 Crore (previous year 15,256.05 Crore] is fram a single custamer.

Note 45

Share based compensatian plans

The Company offers equity-based award plans to its employees and officers through its parent (Vedanta Limited), Employee Stock Option Plan
{"ESOP").

Share-based incentives under ESOP of Vedanta Limited ({introduced w.e.f. September 2017) are provided to the defined management group. The
maximum value of shares that can be awarded to members of the defined management group is calculated by reference to the individual fixed salary
and share-based remuneration consistent with |local market practice, The scheme [s both tenure and performance based share schemes. The awards
are indexed to and settled by parent's shares. The awards have a fixed exercise price denominated in Parent's functional currency (£ 1 in case of
Vedanta Limited), the performance period of each award is three years and is exercisable within a period of six months from the date of vesting
beyond which the option will lapse.

Further, in accordance with the terms of the agreement between the Parent and the Company, the cost recognized towards the scheme is recovered
by the parent from the Company.

Armount recovered by the parent and recognised by the Company in the statement of profit and loss for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 is T
0.37 Crore {previous year % 1.33 Crore), The Company considers these amounts as not material and accordingly has not provided further disclosures.

Note 50

During the pravious year ended March 31, 2024, the Company had terminated its contract with one of Its major capital contractors (the
“Contractor”), due to its persistent fallure to fulfil its contractual obligations, which adversely affected the plant's performance since commissioning.
Consequently, a5 of March 31, 2024, the Company had written back creditors amounting to 1,252 Crore, representing amounts assessed as no
janger payable under the terminated contract. The management had assessed that the amount written back comprised of ® 794 Crore towards loss
of profit due to plant performance in the previous and earlier years and therefare recognised the same as Exceptional gain in the Statement of Profit
& Loss and adjusted the balance amaunt towards the cost of spares and ancillaries capltalised in Property, Plant & Equipment in earller years,

Subsequently, the Cantractor disputed the termination of the contract and claimed dues along with damages arising from the Company's action. The
Company issued a counter claim an the Contractor and also Initiated arbitration proceedings to enforce its claims. Nominee arbitrators have been
appointed by both the parties and on April 3, 2025, the Hon'ble Supreme Court appointed the presiding arbitrator.

Based on its detailed evaluations, merits of the case and independent legal advice obtained, the management continues to believe that the
terminatian of the contract is contractually enforceable, The management zlso believes that this position is sustainable, when this matter is fimally
decided by the adjudicating suthority. Accordingly, no adjustments are required to be made in these financial statements In respect of the
Contractor's claims.




Note 51

The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail {edit log) facility and the
same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software excepl that audil trail feature was enabled in the SAP
application for direct changes to data in certain database tables for part of the year, i.e., from 02 March 2025. Further, no instance of audit trail
feature being tampered was noted in respect of the software. Additionally, the Company preserved audit trail in full compliance with the
requirements of section 128(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent it was enabled and recorded
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of MALCO Energy Limited

Report on the Audit of the IND AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying IND AS financial statements of MALCO Energy Limited (“the
Company"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the IND AS financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid IND AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“"the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2025, its loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the IND AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the IND AS Financial
Statements' section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code
of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the IND AS financial
statements.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the standalone
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the IND AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the IND AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

SRBC &COLLP, aLimited Liability Partnership with LLP Identity No. AAB-4318
Regd. Office : 22, Camac Street, Block 'B', 3rd Floor, Kolkata-700 016
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Responsibility of Management for the IND AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these IND AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended, specified under section
133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safequarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the IND AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the IND AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the IND AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the IND AS financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these IND AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the IND AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the IND AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the IND AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Requlatory Requirements

1

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act we give in
the “Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph 2 (i) (vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g);

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid IND AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, specified under section 133 of the Act;

(e) Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these IND AS
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;
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(g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2025 has been
paid / provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section
197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) The

modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected

therewith are as stated in paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and
paragraph 2 (i) (vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(q).

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

MyMBAL T |
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The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person
or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including
foreign entities ("Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.
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vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software except that, audit trail feature for direct changes
to data in certain database tables was enabled for part of the year from March 03, 2025,
as described in note 48(x) to the financial statements. Further, during the course of our
audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with in
respect of the accounting software where audit trail has been enabled. Additionally, the
audit trail of relevant prior year has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention, to the extent it was enabled and recorded in the
respective year, as stated in Note 48(x) to the financial statements.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

r

per Anant charya

Partner

Membership Number: 124790
UDIN: 25124790BMLDYG9729
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: April 23, 2025
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date:

(i) (@)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles
assets.

(b) All Property, Plant and Equipment have not been physically verified by the management
during the year but there is a regular program of verification which, in our opinion is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee, held by the Company and
accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment including Right of use
assets during the year ended March 31, 2025.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules
made thereunder.

(i) (@) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year except for
inventories lying with third parties. In our opinion, the frequency of verification by the
management is reasonable and the coverage and procedure for such verification is
appropriate. Inventories lying with third parties have been confirmed by them as at March
31, 2025 and no discrepancies were noticed. Discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for
each class of inventory were not noticed on such physical verification.

(b) As disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks during the year on
the basis of security of current assets of the Company. Based on the records examined by us
in the normal course of audit of the financial statements, the quarterly returns/statements
filed by the Company with such banks are in agreement with the books of accounts of the
Company.

(iii) (@) During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans,
stood guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided
security and granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(iii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(c) The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(iii)(c), (d), (e) and (f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of
sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(v) The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts
which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies
Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the
rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, related to generation and supply of power, met coke,
nickel sulphate, nickel metal and cobalt and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified
accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a
detailed examination of the same.

(vii)(@) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, income-tax ,custom duty, employees'
state insurance corporation and other statutory dues applicable to it. According to the
information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year

end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the records of the Company, the dues of service-tax and custom duty on
account of any dispute, are as follows:

Period to which Amount Forum where
Name of the statute | Nature of the dues the amount in INR the dispute is
relates Crores pending
Customs Act, 1962 Custom Duty 2011-12, Customs Excise
2012-13 and 24.99 | and Service Tax
2014-15 Appellate

Tribunal
The Finance Act,1994 | Service tax 2014 CESTAT
0.90 | Chennai

(viii) The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during
the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(ix) (@) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution

or government or any government authority.
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(x)

(xi)

(c) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence, the
requirement to report on clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has
used funds raised on short-term basis in the form of related party loans aggregating to Rs.
22.39 crores for long-term purposes representing acquisition of property plant and
equipment.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiary.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to report on
clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer /
further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence,
the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 has been filed by cost auditor or by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 with the central Government.

(c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company
during the year while determining the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xiii) Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of Companies Act,

2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the note 44 to the financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section
177 are not applicable to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under
clause 3(xiii) of the Order in so far as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to
the Company.

(xiv) (@) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its

business.

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the
period under audit have been considered by us.
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(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons

connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(a) The provisions of section 45-|A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934:(2 of 1934) are

(xvii)

not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the requlations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to
report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 145.02 Crores in the current year.
The Company had incurred cash loss of Rs. 85.64 crores in immediately preceding financial
year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly

(xix)

requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 51 to the financial statements, the ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions and considering the Company'’s current liabilities exceeds the current assets by
INR 659.99 Crores, the Company has obtained the letter of financial support from the
Holding Company, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities, existing at the date of balance sheet, as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

We, further state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company and
our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.
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(xx) (a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required
to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act (the Act), in
compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter has
been disclosed in note 39 to the financial statements.

(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be
transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135
of Companies Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 39 to the financial statements.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

,

per Anant Akharya

Partner

Membership Number: 124790
UDIN: 25124790BMLDYG9729
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: April 23, 2025
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ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE INDAS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MALCO Energy Limited LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to IND AS financial statements of
MALCO Energy Limited (“the Company"”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
IND AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on [the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India ("ICAI")]. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these IND AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
these IND AS financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these IND AS financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to IND AS financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these IND AS
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these IND AS
financial statements.

2\ c
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to these IND AS Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to IND AS financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to IND AS financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to IND AS Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to IND AS financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to IND AS financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to IND AS financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to IND AS financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to IND
AS financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

»

per Andnt charya

Partner

Membership Number: 124790
UDIN: 25124790BMLDYG9729
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: April 23, 2025




MALCO Energy Limited
CIN - US1300MH2001PLC428719
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025

As at As at
Particulars Notes 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores Rs. Crores
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 319.17 321.14
(b) Intangible assets 4 - 0.15
(c) Capital Work in Progress 5 474 11.08
(d) Right-of-use Asset 6 2058 29.17
(e) Financial assets
(i) Investments 7 . -
(ii) Other financial assets 8 4.96 0.12
(f) Income tax assets (net) 9 7.35 7.96
(g) Other non-current assets 10 16.30 19.67
Total non-current assets 382.10 389.29
Current assets
(a) Inventories 11 201.60 182.72
(b) Financial assets
(i) Investments @ - 36.86
(ii) Trade receivables 12 B9.69 27.51
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 13 92.27 26,05
(iv) Other bank balances 14 0.38 6.49
(v) Loans 15 0.14 0.10
(vi) Derivatives 16 1.89 2.30
(vii) Other financial assets 17 24.24 12.19
(c) Other current assats 18 135.74 118.27
Total current assets 545.85 412.49
Total assets G28.05 B01.78
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 19 4.67 4.67
(b) Other equity 20 (284.83) (98.68)
Total equity (280.16) (94.01)
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
{i) Lease liabilities 21 2.20 297
(b) Other Non-Current Liaibilities 22 0.07 =
Total non-current liabilities 2.27 2.87
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 24 441.47 361.97
(ii) Lease Liabilities 25 11.22 6.06
(iii) Operational buyers' credit / suppliers' credit 23 97.53 124.56
(iv) Trade payables 26
- Total outstanding dues of micre and small enterprises 9.32 5.90
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 457.65 262.56
(v) Derivatives 41 7.35 0.0
(vi) Other financial liabllities 27 121.95 72217
(b) Other current liabilities 28 59.12 58.91
(c) Provisions 29 0.33 0.59
Total current liabilities 1,205.94 892.82
Total equity and liabilities 928.05 801.78
Summary of Material Accounting Policies 28

The accompanying notes are forming part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
ForSRBCBCOLLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAX Firm Registration No : 324982E/E300003

Place : Mumbai
Date : 23 Apr 2025

For and on belalfof Board of Directors !
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Place : Goa
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Poovannan Sumathi
Director
DIN 07147100

Place : Tuticorin
Date : 23 Apr 2025




MALCO Energy Limited
CIN - U31300MH2001PLC428719
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars Notes 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores Rs. Crores
I Revenue from operations 30 876.60 615.75
II Other Operating income 31 11.89 31.18
III Other income 32 2.84 21.61
IV Total income (I+II+III) 891.33 668,54
V  Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed 33 502.36 428.78
Purchases of traded goods 305.75 4.63
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in progress & stock in trade 34 5.08 121.86
Power & fuel 36 14.02 17.85
Employee benefits expense 35 20.93 21.22
Finance costs 37 52.95 50.90
Depreciation and amortization expense 38 43.07 31.78
Other expenses 39 135.25 108.94
Total expenses 1,079.42 785.96
VI Profit/(Loss) before tax (IV-V) (188.09) (117.42)
VII Tax expense 40 - -
VIII (Loss) for the year (VI-VII) (188.09) (117.42)
Other Comprehensive income
Items nct to be reclassified to profit and loss
- Remeasurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans (0.11) 0.03
- Income tax effect on above 0.03 (0.01)
Items to be reclassified to profit and loss
- Effective portion of gains on hedging instrument in cash flow hedges 2.70 4.95
- Income tax effect on above (0.68) {1.25)
IX Other comprehensive income for the year 1.94 272
X Total comprehensive income for the year (VIIT+IX) (186.15) (113.70)
XI Earnings per equity share of Rs.2 each
- Basic & Diluted (Note 47) (80.43) (50.25)
Summary of Material Accounting Pclicies 28

The accompanying notes are forming part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No : 324982E/E300003

Place : Mumbai
Date : 23 Apr 2025

For and vmf of Board of Directors

Place : Goa
Date : 23 Apr 2025

Poovannan Sumathi
Director
DIN 07147100

Place : Tuticorin
Date : 23 Apr 2025
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Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2025

A. Equity Share capital

Rs. Crores
Particulars No of Shares Amount
As at 1 April 2023 2,33,66,406 4.67
Changes in Equity share capital - -
As at 31 March 2024 2,33,66,406 4.67
Changes in Equity share capital - =
As at 31 March 2025 2,33,66,406 4.67
B. Other Equity
Rs. Crores
Other equity
Instrumel:lts " Reserves and surplus Items of Other comprehensive income
entirely equity in
Particulars -
I oxlatulr:ori) Securities Retained Remsasurement - gther
SORINCAINY Defined Benefit Hedging Reserve equity
convertible premium earnings %
Obligation
debentures
As at 31 March 2023 6,135.45 99.92 (6,215.78) (0.12) (4.46) 15.02
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - (117.42) - - (117.42)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax < . % 0.02 3.70 3.72
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - = (117.42) 0.02 3.70 (113.70)
As at 31 March 2024 6,135.45 99.92 (6,333.20) (0.10) (0.76) (98.68)
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - (188.09) - - (188.09)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - - - (0.08) 2.02 1.94
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - - (188.09) (0.08) 2.02 (186.15)
As at 31 March 2025 6,135.45 99.92 (6,521.28) (0.18) 1.26 (284.83)
The accompanying notes are forming part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
5 For and on behalf of Board of Directors
ForSRBC & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No : 324982E/E300003
\ o

Place : Mumbai
Date : 23 Apr 2025

DIN 00669664

Place : Goa
Date : 23 Apr 2025

Poovannan Sumathi
Director
DIN 07147100

Place : Tuticorin
Date : 23 Apr 2025




MALCO Energy Limited
CIN - U31300MH2001PLC428718
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2025

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Rs. Crores Rs. Crores
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit befare tax (188.09) (117.42)
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flow:
Depreciation and amortization expenses 43,07 31.78
Gain on sale/fair valuation of current Investment measured at FVTPL (0.92) (0.53)
Interest income (0.54) (17.49)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 2,35 1.36
Liabilities written back (0.48) (4.69)
Provision/ (reversal) for doubtful debt/advances/bad debts written off 0.03 &
Finance Costs $2.95 50.90
(91.63) (56.09)
Movement in working capital
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories (18.88) 255.91
(Increase )/Decrease In trade anc other receivables (94.04) 11.77
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and other payable 194.48 (39.30)
Cash generation from/(used in) operation (10.07) 172.29
Income tax refund received/(paid) 0.62 (0.87)
Net cash from/(used In) operating activities (A) (8.45) 171.42
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of Property Plant and Equipment (22.39) (32.25)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - 0.79
Purchase of current investments (355.00) (215.80)
Proceeds from sale of current investments 392.78 155.31
Interest / investment income recelved 0.21 17.07
(Investment)/redemption of fixed deposits (net) 4.01 *
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities (8) 19.61 (34.88)
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid (15.66) (18.49)
Proceeds from short term borrowings 393.11 488.42
Repayment of short term borrowings (313.61) (603.82)
Payment of lease liability (7.78) (1.45)
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities (c) 56.06 (135.34)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 66.22 1.20
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 26.05 24.85
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 92.27 26.05
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year consist of (Refer note 13)
Balances with banks 92.27 25.00
Bank deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months R 1.05
(including interest accrued thereon) B
Total 92,27 26.05
Non-cash Investing and financing transactions
~-Net gain arising on Financial assets measured at FVTPL (MTM on Investment) (0.06) 0.04
(0.06) 0.04

Summary of Material Accounting Policies 28

The accompanying notes are forming part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No : 324982E/E300003

per Anant A8harya
Partner
Membership No. - 124790

Place : Mumbai
Date : 23 Apr 2025

DT 00569654

Place : Goa
Date : 23 Apr 2025

For and og behalf of Board of Directors

Poovannan Sumathi
Director
DIN 07147100

Place : Tuticorin
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1. Company overview:

MALCO Energy Limited (‘the Company’) is a public limited Company domiciled in India and is
incorporated under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged in the business of
generation and supply of power, production of low ash Metallurgical coke, Nicke! sulphate, Cobalt and
Nickel Cathode.

During financial year 2021-22 MALCO Energy Limited has acquired assets of Gujarat NRE Coke Limited
and Nicomet Industries Limited. The detailed note is as below:

The Company had acquired assets of Bhachau and Khambalia blocks of Gujarat NRE Coke
Limited, Company under liquidation as per the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 for the time
beingin force for a cash consideration of Rs 165.93 Crores. Stamp Duty paid on the acquisition was
Rs. 8.7 Crores. Assets acquired mainly includes Plant and equipment, Freehold Land and Buildings.
Acquisition of Gujarat coke assets will enabie the company to become one of the largest merchant met
coke manufactures in India. Met coke is a vital raw material for steel plant operating through blast
furnace route and are also used in Chemical and Zinc plants.

The Company had acquired assets of Nicomet Industries Limited which was under liquidation process
as per the Insolvency and Bankruptcy code, 2016 (including all amendments for the time being in
force) for a cash consideration of Rs 51.50 Crores and subsequent stamp duty and registration fee of
Rs 3.3 Crores. The assets acquired mainly include leasehold land, building and Plant & Machinery of
similar value as the cash consideration. Nickel unit is the first and the only Company engaged in
manufacturing Nickel and Cobalt through processing of Concentrates in India, which is a vital raw
material for manufacturing of EV batteries, High quality steel products and super alloys.

2A. Basis of preparation and basis of measurement of financial statements

(a) Basis of preparation:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the
Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule III).

Basis the projections prepared by the Company; the management believes that the net current
liabilities of Rs. 659.99 crores will be bridged mainly through additional funding by the holding
company and internal accruals. Further, Vedanta Limited, the parent Company has through letter of
support, agreed to continue to provide financial support to the Company for its continued operations
at least for next eighteen months, if the Company is unable to meet its funding requirements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets
and liabilities measured at fair value as explained in accounting policy of fair value measurement and
financial instruments below. The accounting policies adopted for preparation and presentation of
financialstatement have been consistently applied. The financial statements are presented in INR and
all values are rounded to the nearest Crores, except when otherwise indicated.

(b) Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions, that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and disclosures of contingent liabilities at the
date of these financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the years
presented. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty
and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the financial statements are disclosed in Note 2B.
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2B. Material accounting policies:

(a) Revenue Recognition:

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Sale of Power:

Revenue from sale of power is recognized at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred
to the customer, generally on delivery and measured based on rates as per contractual agreements with
buyers.

Sale of Coke & Nickel:

Revenue from the sale of coke & Nickel is recognized at the point of time when control of assets is
transferred to the customer, measured at the rates as per contractual agreement with the customer.
Revenue is recognized net of discounts, volume rebates, outgoing sales taxes/ goods and service tax
and other indirect taxes. Revenues from sale of by products are included in revenue.

Certain sales contracts of the Company provide for provisional pricing based on the price on the
London Metal Exchange (LME) as specified in the contract. Revenue in respect of such contracts is
recognized when control passes to the customer and is measured at the amount the entity expects to
be entitled -~ being the estimate of the price expected to be received at the end of the measurement
period. Post transfer of control of goods, provisional pricing features are accounted in accordance with
Ind AS 109 ‘Financial Instruments’ rather than Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers
and therefore the Ind AS 115 rules on variable consideration do not apply. These ‘provisional pricing’
adjustments, i.e. the consideration adjusted post transfer of control are included in total revenue from
operations on the face of the statement of profit and loss and disclosed by way of note to the financial
statements. Final settlement of the price is based on the applicable price for & specified future period.
The Company’s provisionally priced sales are marked to market using the relevant forward prices for
the future period specified in the contract and is adjusted in revenue.

Dividend Income:
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.

Interest income:
Interest income from a financial asset is recognized using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR).

(b) Fair value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

(i) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

(if) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The fair value of an asset or 2 liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and

. minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
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significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest leve! input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

(c) Foreign Currency:

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company's functional
currency. Income and expenses in foreign currencies are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the
date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in the
Statement of Profit or Loss.

Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency are measured at historical cost and translated
at exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction.

(d)Income Tax:

Current Tax:

Current Income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance
with Income Tax Act, 1961. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the tax are those that are
enacted at the reporting date. In financial year 21-22 Company has adopted Section 115BAA of
Income Tax Act,1961 with Statutory rate of 22% plus surcharge of 10% and cess of 4%. Current
income tax relatingto items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either
in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred Tax:

Deferred Tax is provided using the Balance Sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognised deferred tax assels are re-assessed at each reporting
date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities.




MALCO Energy Limited

CIN - U31300MH2001PLC428719

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
Material accounting policy information to financial statements

(e) Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss, if any. The initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price,
including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, and any directly attributable costs of
bringing an asset to working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after the
property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, are
normally charged to the Statement of Profit or Loss in the period in which the costs are incurred. Major
shut-down and overhaul expenditure is capitalised as the activities undertaken improve the economic
benefits expected to arise from the asset.

Assets in the course of construction are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. Such assets are

classified to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use.

Gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset is included in the Statement of Profit & Loss when
the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual values over their useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis,

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
Buildings 05-50 years
Plant and equipment  03-40 years
Furniture and fixtures 05-10 years
Vehicles 05-10 years
Office equipment 03-10 years

The management has estimated the above useful life and the same is supported by technical expert.

Major overhaul costs are depreciated over the estimated life of the economic benefit to be derived from
the overhaul.

(f) Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at-cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets representing cost of software
capitalized is amortized over its useful life which is estimated to be a period of three years.

(g)Right-of-Use Asset:

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date
when the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets
as described below

Leasehold Land : 60-80 years
Leasehold plant & equipment : 5 years
Leasehold Vehicle : 1-2 years

-
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(h)Inventories:

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on following
basis :

Purchased concentrate is recorded at cost on a first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) basis; all other materials
including stores and spares are valued on a weighted average basis; finished products are valued at
raw material cost plus costs of conversion, comprising labour costs and an attributable proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on normal levels of activity and are moved out of inventory on a
weighted average basis (except in Nickle business where FIFO basis is followed); and By-products and
scrap are valued at net realizable value.

Net realizable value is determined based on estimated selling price, less further costs expected to be
incurred for completion and disposal.

(i) Borrowing costs:

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to
the borrowing costs.

(j) Provisions:

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognized as a finance cost.

(k) Contingent liahilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a fiability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be
measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in
the financial statements. Contingent assets are not recognized but disclosed in the financial
statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

(1) Retirement and other employee benefits:

i) Defined contribution plans

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund and superannuation fund is a defined contribution
scheme. The Company has no aobligation, other than the contribution payable to the respective funds.
The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund and superannuation scheme as an
expense, when an employee renders the related service.

ii) Defined benefit plans

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan, which requires contributions to be made to a
separately administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under the scheme is determined on the
basis of actuarial valuation using Projected Unit Credit Method at the date of Balance Sheet.

Remeasurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding net
interest), are recognized immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
-retained earnings through.OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified
to the Statement of Profit or Loss in subsequent periods.
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iii) Short term and other long term employee benefits

Benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages, salaries and compensated absences and which are
expected to be availed within twelve months immediately following the year end are reported as
expenses during the year in which the employee performs the service that the benefit covers and the
liabilities are reported at the undiscounted amount of the benefit expected to be paid in exchange of
related service. Where the availment or encashment is otherwise not expected to wholly occur within
the next twelve months, the liability on account of the benefit is actuarially determined using the
projected unit credit method at the present value of the estimated future cash flow expected to be made
by the Company in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date. The Company
presents the leave as a current liability in the Balance Sheet, to the extent it does not have an
unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date.

(m)Financial instruments:
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

(i) Financial assets:

Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset.

Subsequent measurement:
All recognized financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial asset

- Financial assets at amortised cost:

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a
business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and contractual
terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely Payments of Principal and
Interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. After initial measurement, such financial assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective interest Rate (EIR) method. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in other income in the Statement of
Profit or Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

- Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income:

Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these
financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets and the asset’s contractual cash flow represents
SPPI.

Financial instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income
(OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, dividend income, impairment losses and
reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition of the
asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from the equity to Statement
of Profit and Loss.

- Financial assets at fair value through profit & loss (FVTPL):

FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial assets, which does not meet the criteria
for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. Financial assets included
within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Statement of
Profit & Loss.

Derecognition:

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the rights to receive cash fiows from the asset have
expired or it transfers the right to receive the contractual cash flow on the financial assets in a
transaction in which substantially all the risk and rewards of-ownership of the financial asset are
transferred.
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(ii) Investment in subsidiary:
Investment in subsidiary is measured at cost less Impairment, if any, as per Ind AS- 27 ‘Separate
Financial Statement’.

(iii) Financial Liabilities:

Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement:
- Financial liabilities at fair value through profit & loss:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit and loss. Financial
liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the
near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company
that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Gains
or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

- Financial liabilities at amortised cost:

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition:

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

(iv)Offsetting of financial instruments

Financizl assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet
if there is @ currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

(n) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement In order to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange,
interest rate, and commodity price risks, the Company enters into forward, option, swap contracts
and other derivative financial instruments. The Company does not hold derivative financial
instruments for speculative purposes

Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are
carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value
is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to the
statement of profit and loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognized
in OCI and later reclassified to the statement of profit and loss when the hedge item affects profit or
loss or treated as basis adjustment if a8 hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or non-finandial liability.
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For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

= Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognized asset or
liability or an unrecognised firm commitment;

= Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable
to a particular -risk associated with a recognized asset or liability or a highly probable forecast
transaction or the foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment;

* Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the
hedge relationship to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting. The documentation
includes the Company’s risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, the
hedging/ economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being
hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging
instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash
flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving
offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine
that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods for which
they were designated.

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:

- Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss immediately, together with any changes in the fair
value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk. When an unrecognised
firm commitment is designated as a hedged item, the subsequent cumulative change in the fair
value of the firm commitment attributable to the hedged risk is reccgnized as an asset or liability
with a corresponding gain or loss recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Hedge accounting
is discontinued when the Company revokes the hedge relationship, the hedging instrument or
hedged item expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised or no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting.

- Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognized in OCI in the cash
flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognized immediately in the statement of profit
and loss. Amounts recognized in OCI are transferred to the statement of profit and loss when the
hedged transaction affects profit or loss, such as when the hedged financial income or financial
expense is recognized or when a forecast sale occurs. When the hedged item is the cost of a non-
financial asset or non-financial liability, the amounts recognized in OCI are transferred to the initial
carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability. If the hedging instrument expires or is sold,
terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover (as part of the hedging strategy), or if its
designation as a hedge is revoked, or when the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI remains separately in equity
until the forecast transaction occurs or the foreign currency firm commitment is met.

(o) Impairment
(i) Financial assets

The Company assessed the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost
and fair value through other comprehensive income based on the Company’s past history of recovery,
credit worthiness of the counter party and existing and future market conditions.

For all financial assets other than trade receivables, expected credit losses are measured at an amount
equal to the 12-month expected credit loss (ECL) unless there has been a significant increase in credit
risk from initial recognition in which case thoseare measured at lifetime ECL. For trade receivables, the
Company has applied the simplified approach for recognition of impairment allowance as provided in
Ind AS 109 which requires the expected lifetime losses from initial recognition of the receivables and
contract assets. Impairment of Investment in subsidiary, if any, is determined based on value in use.
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In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
post-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the investment.

(ii) Non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to
its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are
taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.
Impairment losses including impairment on inventories are recognized in the statement of profit and
loss. For assets, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such
indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal
is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor
exceed the carrying amountthat would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment
loss been recognized for theasset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit
and loss.

(p) Share Based payments:

Vedanta Resources Plc ("VRPLC"), the ultimate holding Company, offers certain share based incentives
under the Long-Term Incentive Plan ("LTIP”) to employees and directors of the Company. VRPLC
recovers the proportionate cost (calculated based on the grant date fair value of the options granted)
from the Company, which is charged to the Statement of Profit or Loss.

(g) Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of *
changes in value.

(r) Lease:

The Company assesses at contract inception, all arrangements to determine whether they are, or
contain, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee:

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities towards future
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date
when the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets
as described in Note 2(i)
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(i) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (and, in some instances, in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under
residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce
inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is generally not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments
(e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such
lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. The
Company'’s lease liabilities are included in Financial Liabilities.

(iii) Short term leases and leases of low value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of equipment
(i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain 2 purchase option). It also applies the lease of low value assets recognition exemption to
leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(s) Buyers’ Credit/ Suppliers’ Credit and vendor financing:

The Company enters into arrangements whereby banks and financial institutions make direct
payments to suppliers for raw materials and project materials. The banks and financial instituticns are
subsequently repaid by the Company at a later date providing working capital timing benefits. These
are normally settled between twelve months (for raw materials) to thirty-six months (for project
materials). Where these arrangements are with a maturity of up to twelve months, the economic
substance of the transaction is determined to be operating in nature and these are recognized as
operational buyers' credit/ suppliers’ credit and disclosed on the face of the balance sheet. Where
these arrangements are with a maturity beyond twelve months and up to thirty six months, the
economic substance of the transaction is determined to be financing in nature, and these are
presented within borrowings in the balance sheet. Interest expense on these are recognized in the.
finance cost. Payments made by banks and financial institutions to the operating vendors are treated
as a non cash item and settlement of due to operational buyer’s credit/ suppliers’ credit by the
Company is treated as an operating cash outflow reflecting the substance of the payment.

(t) Events after Reporting Period:
There are no significant events which have occurred after the end of reporting period requiring
adjustment of disclosure in Financial Statements.

2C. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. Estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods affected. The Company
considers the following areas as the key sources of estimation uncertainty:
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
Material accounting policy information to financial statements

(i) Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. The Company
has Rs. 1,808.19 Crores (31 March 2024: Rs. 1,744.59 Crores) of unabsorbed depreciation and Rs.
551.12Crores (31 March 2024: Rs 405.85 Crores) of business losses carried forward. The Company
neither have any major taxable temporary difference nor any tax planning opportunities available that
could partly support the recognition of these losses as deferred tex assets. On this basis, the Company
has recognized the deferred tax assets only to the extent of deferred tax liabilities on the taxable
temporary differences. Further details on taxes are disclosed in Note 40.

(iii) Defined benefit plans

The Company’s obligation on account of gratuity is determined based on actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in
the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date. The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the
appropriate discount rate, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in
currencies cansistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation. The mortality rate
is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in
response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected
future inflation rates. Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 45 to the financial
statements.

(iv) Contingencies and commitments:

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation, taxaticn and other
claims against the Company. Where it is management’s assessment that the outcome cannot be reliably
quantified or is uncertain, the claims are disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the likelihood of an
adverse outcome is remote. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in the
financial statements. While considering the possible, probable and remote analysis of taxation, legal and
other claims, there is always a certain degree of judgement involved pertaining to the application of the
legislation which in certain cases is supported by views of tax experts and/or earlier precedents in similar
matters. Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings, the
Company does not expect them to have a materially adverse impact on the Company’s financial position
or profitability. These are set out in Note 43 to the financial statements.

2D. Standards notified but not yet effective
There are no standards that are notified and not yet effective as on the date.

2E. New and amended standards

The Company applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024. The Company has not early adopted any standard,
interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.

(i)Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts
The Ministry of corporate Affairs (MCA) notified the Ind AS 117, Insurance Contracts, vide notification

dated 12 August 2024, under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2024,
which is effective from annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
Material accounting policy information to financial statements

Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts
covering recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Ind AS 117 replaces Ind AS 104
Insurance Contracts. Ind AS 117 applies to all types of insurance contracts, regardless of the type of
entities that issue them as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary
participation features; a few scope exceptions will apply. Ind AS 117 is based on a general model,
supplemented by: i

¢ A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee approach)

= A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts

The application of Ind AS 117 had no impact on the Company’s financial statements as the Company
has not entered any contracts in the nature of insurance contracts covered under Ind AS 117.

(i) Amendment to Ind AS 116 Leases -~ Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The MCA notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024,
which amend Ind AS 116, Leases, with respect to Lease Liability in 2 Sale and Leaseback.

The amendment specifies the requirements that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability
arising in a sale and leaseback transaction, to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount
of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024 and must
be applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial
application of Ind AS 116.

The amendment does not have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

-
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3 Property, plant and equipment (Rs. Crores)
Particulars ::3}";:2:! Freehold Land Buildings B o and Vehicles office equipment Roads Total
Cost
At 31 March 2023 286.82 77.58 39.92 0.63 2.54 3.64 0.02 411.15
Additions 25.36 “ 8.10 0.29 . 0.47 - 34,22
Disposals 2.54 s . - % = ®: 2.54
At 31 March 2024 309.64 77.58 48.02 0.92 2.54 4.11 0.02 442.83
Additions 25.68 - 7.20 0.17 0.19 0.51 L 33.75
Disposals 3.16 - 0.47 - B - - 3.63
At 31 March 2025 33216 77.58 54.75 1,09 2.73 4.62 0.02 472.95
Depreclation
At 31 March 2023 89.02 - 1.87 0.34 0.23 1.18 - 92.64
Depreciation charge for the year 25.94 - 2.83 0.04 - 0.48 - 29.29
Disposals 0.24 - - - - - - 0.24
At 31 March 2024 114,72 - 4.70 0.38 0.23 1.66 s 121.69
Depreciation charge for the year 29.39 - 3.47 0.07 0.01 0.60 - 33.54
Disposals 142 . - 0.03 - . . - 1.45
At 31 March 2025 142 69 - B.14 0.45 0.24 2.26 - 153.78
Net book value
At 31 March 2024 194.92 77.58 43.32 0.54 2.31 2.45 0.02 32114
At 31 March 2025 189.47 72.58 46,61 0.64 2.49 236 0.02 19.17

4 Intangible assets

(Rs, Crores)
Particulars Somper Total
Cost
At 31 March 2023 1.13 113
Additions - N
Disposals - ~
At 31 March 2024 113 1.13
Additions w =
Dlsposals 3 =
At 31 March 2025 1.13 1.13
Amortisation
At 31 March 2023 0.723 0.73
Amortisation 0.25 0.25
At 31 March 2024 0.98 0.98
Amortisation 0.15 0.15
At 31 March 2025 113 1.13

Net book value
At 31 March 2024 0.15 0.15
At 31 March 2025 0.00 0.00

-
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(Rs. Crores)

Capital Work In Progress Amount Total
At 31 March 2023 23.01 23.01
Additions 22.29 22.29
Transferred to Property Plant and Equipment 34.22 34.22
Disposals - -

At 31 March 2024 11.08 11.08
Additions 27.40 27.40
Transfetred to Property Plant and Equipment 33.75 3375
Disposals - -

At 31 March 2025 4.74 4.74

Capital Work In Progress (CWIP) ageing schedule __(Rs. Crores)
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Particulars Projects in Projects temporarily Total Projects in Projects temporarily Total
Progess Suspended Progess Suspended
Less than 1 year 4.74 - 4.74 3.26 . 3.25
1-2 year L) i ¥ . 5.31 5.31
2-3 year . - - & 2.51 2.51
More than 3 year 2 & = 2 s -
s Total 4.74 - 4.74 .26 | 7.82 | 11.08

(i) There are no projects whose completion is overdue or has exceeded Its cost compared to its original plan.

(Rs. Crores)

Leasehold Plant and Leasehold
Right-of-use Asset Leasehold Land equipmenit privsicyly SAP Rise Software Tatal
Cost
At 31 March 2023 22.02 - L] s 22.02
Additions - 1.10 8.67 - 9.77
Disposals & » & o >
At 31 March 2024 22,02 1.10 67 & 3179
Additions 017 . 0.41 2.60 3.18
Modification = = 7.50 . 7.50
Disposals . - = > -
At 31 March 2025 22.19 1.10 16.59 2.60 42.47
‘Depreciation
At 31 March 2023 0.38 # - . 0.38
Depreciation charae for the year 0.3 0.10 1.83 - 2.24
Disposals - & - » =
At 31 March 2024 0.69 0.10 1.83 & 2.62
Depreciation charge for the year 0.31 0.32 8.78 0.86 10.27
Disposals = ] 3 ¥ =
At 31 March 2025 1.00 0.42 10.61 0.86 12.89
Net book value
At 31 March 2024 21.33 1.00 6.84 - 29.47
At 31 March 2025 21.19 0.68 5.98 174 29.58
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Investments

Non - current

Unquoted equity shares

Investments in subsidlaries (At cost less impairment, if any)

33,590,300 (31 March 2024: 33,590,300) equity shares of Fujairah Gold F2C
Less : Provision for i of

Total

Current

Investment carried at fair value through Profit and Loss
Unquoted

Investment in mutual funds

Total

ggregate value of

Aggregate amount of in value of i

Others financial assets - non current {(at amortized cost)

Security deposits

Less : Impalmment allowance

Security deposits (net)

Balances with banks (Refer Note (2) belew )
Deposit with Electricity Department

Total

Break-up for security details:
Unsecured considered good
Secunity deposits- credit impaired
Total

Less : Impairment allowance
Total

() It pertains to balance with banks in current account which is marked under lien against

Income tax assets (net)

Income Tax balance with Governmant Authorities
Total

Other non-current nssets

Unsecured Considered Good

Balance with government authorities

Capital Advances ¢
Prepaid Expense

Total

Inventories (At lower of cost and net realisable valuc)

Raw Matenals
Vierk-in-progress
Finiched gocds
Fuel Stock

Stores and spares

Total

a) Refer note no 24 for details of inventory pledged as secunty for borrowings taken from banks.

As ot As ot
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores Rs. Crores
6,136.60 6,136.60
(6,136.60) (6,136.60)
- 36.86
> 36,86
* 36.86
6,136.60 6,136.60
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs, Crores Rs. Crores
0.63 0.38
(0.25) (0.26)
0.18 012
235 .
2.47 -
4.96 0.25
012
0.26
0.38
(0.26)
0.12
weith tax
As at As ot
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores Rs. Crores
2.35 7.86
7.35 2.96
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores Rs. Crores
16.22 15.97
~ 3.70
0.08 -
16.30 19.67
As ot As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores Rs. Crores
93.34 70.07
49.15 40.63
36.23 49.83
0.02 0.02
22087 217
201.60 182,72

b) During the year ended March 31, 2025 : Rs 40.68 Crore, (March 31, 2024 : Rs 12.25 Crore) was reccgnised as an expense for Inventories carried at net
realisable value.
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Trade receivables

Trace receivables
Less: Impairment allowance
Trade receivables (net)

Break-up of Trade Receivable:
Secured, considered goad
Unsecured, considered good
Trade receivables- credit impaired
Total

Less: Impairment allowance
Total

Mavement in impairment all e on trade receivabl

Balance at the beginning of the year
(Allowances)/wnite back during the year

Wntten off against past provision
Balance at the end of the year

Aging dule of Trade Recei
Undisputed Considered good
Secured Less than § months
Unsecurad less than 6 manths
Unsecured 6 months - 1 year
Unsecured 1 - 2 years

Unseacured and not due

Note :
3) The credit period given to customers is upto 30 days.

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores Rs. Crares
89,69 27.51
89.69 27.51
71.22 22,95
1847 4.56
89.69 27.51
89.69 27.51
71.22 22.95
18,34 4.53
0.10 =
0.03 0.03
89.69 27.51

b) No trage or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointiy with any other person. Nor any trade or other recewable are due from
firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.
c) Refer Note No. 24 for details of receivables pledged as security for borrowing taken from banks.

Cash and cash cquivalents

Balances vath banks

Bank deposits with original maturity of less than 3
months

(including interest accrued thereon)

Total

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores Rs. Crores
92.27 25.00
c 1.05
92.27 26.05

Particulars 31 March 2024 Cash Flow Accruals of Interest Initial Recognition Madification 31 March 2025
Eorrowings 361.97 79.50 - - - 441.47
Interest on Loan 54.79 - 34.94 & - 8§9.73
Lease Liability 9.03 (7.78) 1.49 3.18 7.50 13.42

425.79 71.72 36.43 3.18 4 7.50 544.62
Changes in liabilities arising frem financing activities:
Particulars 31 March 2023 Cash Flow Accruals of Interest Initial Recognition Written-Back 31 March 2024
Borrowings a77.37 (115.40) - - = 361.97
Interest on Loan 24.50 - 30.29 - - 54,79
Lease Liability 0.25 (1.70} 0.46 9.77 0.25 9.03

502.12 (117.10) 30.75 9.77 0.25 425.79
Other bank balances

As at As ot
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores Rs. Crores

Bank deposits with original maturity for > 3 months but < 12 months * 0.38 6.49
Total s > - N 0.38 6.4a8

“Fixed deposit is against bank g

given to
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Financial assets - Loans

Unsecured considered good
Advance to employees

Financial assets - Derivatives

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments (Refer note 41)

Other financial assets - Current

Unsecured, considered good

Recoverable from related party

Security Deposits

Interest accrued on investments

Receijvable from banks towards cancellation/Rollover of forward contracts
Total

Other current assets

Unsecured, considered good

Balance with government authorities

Gratuity fund (Refer note 45)

Leave encashment fund

Prepaid expenses

Export Incentive Receivable

Advances to suppliers - Other than Related Party

Advances to suppliers - Related Party (Refer Note 44)
Reimbursement receivable towards gratuity and leave encashment
Total

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores Rs. Crores
0.14 0.10
0.14 0.10
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores Rs. Crores
1.89 2.30
1.89 2.30
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores Rs. Crores
0.12 -
18.34 4,72
0.07 0.13
571 7.34
24.24 12.19
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores Rs. Crores
128.96 108.69
0.31 0.24
0.18 0.46
0.95 1.58
0.98 0.55
3.70 3.92
0.29 2.81
0.35 0.02
135.74 118.27
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Share capital

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores Rs. Crores
Authorised shares
880,000,000 (March 31, 2024: 880,000,000) equity shares of Rs. 2 each 176.00 176.00
1,250,000 (March 21, 2024: 1,250,000) preference shares of Rs. 1000 each 125.00 125.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up shares :
23,366,406 (March 31, 2024: 23,366,406) equity shares of Rs. 2 each 4.67 4.67
4.67 4.67
Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Na. of Amount No. of Amount
shares Rs. Crores shares Rs. Crares
Balance as at the beginning of the year 23,366,406 4.67 23,366,406 4.67
Balance as at the end of the year 23,366,406 4.67 23,366,406 4.67
Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiarics/ associates
Out of equity shares issued by the company, shares held by its holding company is as follows:
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
No. of Amount No. of Amount
shares Rs. Crores shares Rs, Crores
Vadanta Limited, the holding company 23,366,406 4.67 23,366,406 4.67
Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores Rs. Crores
Ne. of % of No. of % of
shares holding shares holding
Vedanta Limited, the holding company 23,366,406 100% 23,366,406 100%

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 2 per share. Each shareholder is entitled for one vote per share held. The dividend, if any, proposed

by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the Annual 1M

ing, except in case of interim dividend which is paid as and

when declared by the Board of Directors. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of

the Campany, after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

Other equity

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores Rs. Crores
Securities premium account
Balance as at the beginning of the year 99.92 99.92
Balance as at the end of the year 99.92 99.92

Securities premium represents the surplus of proceeds received over the face value of shares, at the time of issue of shares. The Company can use this reserve for issue of

konus shares and for buy back of shares.

As at As at
Retained earning 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores Rs. Crores
Balance as at the beginning of the year (6,334.05) (6,220.35)
Add: Profit/(Loss) for the year (188.09) (117.42)
Other Comprehensive income/(Loss) for the year 1.94 3.72
Balance as at the end of the year {6,520.20) (6,334.05)

The balance in the retained earnings primarily represents the surplus after payment of dividend (including tax on dividend) and transfer to reserves. The Company can use

this reserve for payment of dividend and issue of bonus shares.

Instruments entirely equity in nature - compulsorily convertible debentures (refer note below)

As at beginning of the year 6,135.45 6,135.45
Issued during the year - -
Balance as at the end of the year 6,135.45 6,135.45

The Company had issued 61,354,483 unsecured compulsory convertible debentures (CCDs) at Rs. 1000 each (including premium of Rs. 900 each). The CCDs carries
coupon rate of 0 % and are convertible at the price of Rs. 466/~ per share at the end of 10 years from the date of issue of CCDs or at such dates as may be mutually

agreed between the parties. Accordingly, CCDs have been classified as equity

Total Other Equity (a-+b+c)

(284.83)

(98.68)
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As at As at
21 Lease Liability - Non Current 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores Rs. Crores
Lease Liability 2.20 2.97
2.20 2,97
As at As at
22 Gratuity Payable - Non Current 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores Rs. Crores
Gratuity Payable 0.07 =
0.07 -
As at As at
23 Operational buyers' credit / suppliers' credit 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores Rs. Crores
Buyers' credit/suppliers' credit - Secured 97.53 124.56
97.53 124.56

a) Operational Buyers'/Suppliers' Credit is availed in foreign currency from offshore branches of Indian banks or foreign banks at an
interest rate of 6.03% per annum (31 March 2024 : 6.64% per annum) and in rupee from domestic banks at interest rate of 8.00%
(31 March 2024 : 8.12% per annum). These trade credits are largely repayable between 90 to 180 days from the date of draw
down.

As at As at
24 Borrowings 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores Rs. Crores

Secured_

Loans from Banks
- Cash Credit (refer note (b)) - 20.61
- Packing Credit (refer note (c)) 8.50 =

Unsecured

Related Party Loans (Refer note (a)) 432.97 341.36
441.47 361.97

a) The company has borrowed Rs 432.97 crores from related party In different tranches and the same shall be repayable before expiry
of 12 months from the date of execution of loan agreement or may be extended with mutual consent of bath the parties.

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores Rs. Crores
Loan from Vedanta Limited 10.40% (31 March 2024 10.30%) 432.97 341.36
432.97 341.36

b) Cash credit from banks of Rs. Nil (31 March 2024 : Rs. 20.61 Crores) carrying interest rate of Nil (31 March 2024 8.8%) is secured
by first pari passu charge on the current assets and additionally secured by way of Corporate guarantee from Vedanta Limited.

¢) Packing credit loan from banks of Rs. 8.50 Crores (31 March 2024 : Rs Nil ) carrying Interest rate of 8.9% (31 March 2024 : Nil) is
secured by first pari passu charge on the current assets and additionally secured by way of Corporate guarantee from Vedanta
Limited.

d) The quarterly working capital statements filed by the Company with banks are In agreement with the books of accounts

25 Lease Liabilities - Current
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores * Rs. Crores

Lease Liabliity 11.22 6.06

Total 11,22 6.06
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Trade payables

Trade payables

(i) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (Refer Note 49)

(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises (Refer Note 44)
Total

Aging

Undisputed dues of MSME
Not Due

Less than 1 year

1-2 year

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

Undisputed dues of Creditors other than MSME
Unbilled

Not Due

Less than 1 year

1-2 year

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

Other financial liabilities - Current

Liability for capital expenditure

Employee payables

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings from bank

Interest accrued and due on borrowings from related party (Refer note 44)
Due to Related Parties (Refer note 44)

Deposits from Vendors and others

Total

Other current liabilities

Claims and other payables

Statutory liabilities

Amount payable to employee provident fund
Advance from customers

Advance from related party (Refer Note 44)
Total

Provisions

Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 45)
Provision for Leave encashment
Provision for Super Annuity

Total

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores Rs. Crores
9.32 5.90
457.65 262.56
466.97 268.46
3.49 -
5.81 5.89
0.02 0.01
9.32 5.90
0.45 8.27
15.37 4.28
232.93 43,52
0.04 206.18
187.67 0.01
21.19 0.30
457.65 262.56
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores Rs. Crores
1.60 0.97
2.55 1,94
0.35 0.58
89.73 54.79
24.75 12.62
2.96 1.26
121.95 72.37
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores Rs. Crorés
51.51 51.£8
3.93 1.60
0.02 0.03
3.03 5.07
0.63 0.63
59.12 58.91
As at As at

31 March 2025
Rs. Crores

31 March 2024
Rs. Crores

- 0.01
0.27 0.58
0.06 %
0.33 0.59
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30 Revenue from operations

Year ended
31 March 2024
Rs. Crores

Year ended
31 March 2025
Rs. Crores

Revenue from contract with customers
Total

876.60
876.60

615.75
615.75

a) Revenue from contract with customers for the year ended 31 March 2025 includes revenue from contracts with customers of Rs, 866.30
Crores (FY 2023-24: Rs. 619.10 Crores) and a net gain/(loss) on mark-to-market of Rs. 10.30 Crores (FY 2023-24: Rs. (3.35) Crores) on
account of gains/(losses) relating to sales that were provisionally priced as at the beginning of the year with the final price settled in the
current year, gains/(losses) relating to sales fully priced during the year, and marked to market gains/ (losses) relating to sales that
were provisionally priced as at the end of the year.

31 Other Operating income

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores Rs. Crores
Scrap Sales 4.68 5.17
Export Incentives 6.05 0.55
Refund of Electricity charges (Refer Note (31a)) - 20.03
Sundry Balances written back 0.48 4.6%
Miscellaneous income 0.68 0.74
11.89 31.18
2) During the previous year, the Company had received refund of INR 36.94 Crores (including Interest amounting to Rs. 16.91 Crores
forming part of other income) from Tamil Nadu electricity Regulatory Commission (TNERC) basis favourable order of Supreme Court
dated July 06, 2023, in relation to refund of differential electricity charges paid during the period June 2002 to July 2004 for 13,000 KVA
in excess to its request of maximum sanctioned demand of 10,000 KVA (i.e., 23,000 - 10,000 = 13,000 KVA).As the same was paid in
earlier years as part of operations of the Company, refund of it is disclosed as other operating income and interest received on refund is
disclosed under other income.
32 Otherincome
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores Rs. Crores
Gain on sale/fair valuation of current investment measured at FVTPL 0.92 0.53
Income from Interest
- on bank deposits 0.44 0.43
- from customer . 0.04 0.15
- on refund of electricity charges (Refer Note 31(a)) 0.06 16.91
Other non operating income 1.10 2:17
Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translation 0.28 1.42
Total 2.84 21.61
Year ended Year ended
33 Cost of Material Consumed 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores Rs. Crores
Cost of Material Consumed 502.36 428.78
502.36 428.78
Year ended Year ended
34 Changes in inventories of finished goods 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores Rs. Crores
Inventory at the beginning of the year
-Finished Goods 49.83 187.48
-Work in Progress 40.63 24.84
Inventory at the end of the year
-Finished Goods 36.23 49.83
-Work in Progress 49.14 40.63
Changes in inventories of finished goods 5.09 121.86
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Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contributions to provident and other funds (Refer note 45)

Gratuity Expenses (Refer note 45)
Staff welfare expenses

Total

Power and Fuel

Power and fuel charges
Total

Finance costs

Interest expense on financial liabilities at amartised cost (refer nate a)

Other finance costs
Total

Includes interest expense on lease liabilities for the year ended 31 March 2025 is Rs. 1.49 Crore (31 March 2024 : Rs. 0

Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment
Depreciation on Right-of-use assets
Amortization on intangible assets

Total

Other expenses

Consumption of stores and spares

Contract Manpower Expenses

Repairs and maintenance

Rates And taxes

Insurance

Director Sitting fees

Travelling and conveyance

Payment to auditors (refer note (i) below)

Security service charges

Legal and professional fees

Net loss on foreign currency transactions and translation
Loss on sale/discard of Property Plant and Equipment
Carriage outward

Business promotion expenses

IT Expenses

Provision for doubtful trade Receivables / advances
Lease rent (Refer Note 52)

Miscellaneous expenses

Total

(i) Payment to auditors (exclusive of applicable taxes)

For statutory audit (including Limited review)
Other services - certification fees

Out of pocket expenses (*)
Total

¥ Amount is below the rounding off norms adopted by the cempany

(ii) Details of CSR expenditure

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores Rs. Crores
17.77 18.35
1.11 1.06
0.16 0.29
1.89 1.52
20.93 21.23
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores Rs. Crores
14.02 17.85
14.02 17.85
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores Rs. Crores
49.83 47.97
3.12 2.93
52.95 50.90
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores Rs. Crores
41.42 29.29
0.63 2.24
1.01 0.25
43.07 31.78
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores Rs. Crores
52.68 36.14
38.19 30.01
6.08 4.78
0.05 0.02
1.80 1.98
0.02 0.02
2.20 2.26
0.61 0.32
3.61 4.18
1.25 2.42
1.16 -
2.35 1.36
B.01 4.76
0.20 0.04
1.63 2.13
0.03 =
0.48 0.68
14.89 17.85
135.25 108.94
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores Rs. Crores
0.55 0.30
0.04 0.02
0.02 0.00
0.61 0.32

The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate Social Responsibility is not applicable to the Company.
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Tax expenses

(a) Tax charge/(credit) recognised in profit or loss

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores Rs. Crores
Current tax - -
Deferred tax e -
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss = =

(b) A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to accounting profits before tax at the statutory income tax rate to recognised
income tax expense for the year indicated are as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores Rs, Crores
Accounting profit before tax (188.09) (117.42)
Statutory income tax rate* 25.17% 25.17%
Tax at statutory income tax rate (47.34) (29.55)
Deferred tax assets not recognised in the absence of virtual certainty 47.34 29.55

Income tax charge for the year = &

*As per section 11SBAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 a company can clalm concessional tax rate of 22% plus surcharge and Cess. The company
has opted for the same during the year ended March 31, 2022.

(c) Defered tax assets/(liabilities):

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores Rs. Crores

Deferred tax liability

Right of Use assets (net of Lease liabilities) (4.07) (5.07)
Other - (0.01)
Deferred tax assets

Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangibles 4.07 5.08

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) - -

Deferred tax assets has been recognised to the extent of deferred tax fiabilities on taxable temporary differences available in the absence of
reasonable certainity of future taxable income against which such deferred tax asset can be realised.

(d) Deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits for which no deferred tax assets have been

r gnised are attrib ble to the following:
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Crores Rs. Crores
Business losses 551.12 405.85
Unabsorbed depreciation 1,808.19 1,744.59
Deductible temporary differences 48.32 152.75

Deferred tax assets on carry forward unused tax losses have been recognised to the extent of deferred tax liabilities on taxable temporary
differences available in the absence of reasonable certainty of future taxable profits against which the carry forward unused tax losses can be
utilised,

Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset is recognized along with its expiry are as detailed below (refer note 43(a)):

Rs. Crores
= Greater than one
Year ended Naturw of tibtecngoted witlilyone year, upto eight  No expiry date Total
deferred tax assets year
years
March 31, 2025 Busliness Loss 11.47 539.65 - 551.12
March 31, 2025 Unabsorbed depreciation - - 1,808.19 1,808.19
March 31, 2024 Business Loss - 405.85 & 405.85

March 31, 2024 Unabsorbed depreciation - - 1,744.59 1,744.59
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Financial instruments
Financial instruments by category

The accounting classification of each category of financial Instruments, thelr carrying value and falr values are set out below:

As at 31 March 2025

Financial assets

Investments - current*

Trade recelvables

Cash and cash equivatents

Other bank balances

Loans - Current

Derlvatives

Other financlal asset - current
Other financlal asset - non current
Total

Financial liabilities

Borrowings

Lease Liabllities

Operational buyers’ credit/suppliers’ credit
Trade payables

Derlvatives

Other financial Hablilties - current

Total

As at 31 March 2024

Financial assets

Investments - current®

Trade recelvables

Cash and cash equivalents

Other bank balances

Loans - Current

Derlvatives

Other flnanclal asset - current
Other flnancial asset - non current
Total

Financial liabilities

Borrowings

Lease Llabliities

Operational buyers' credit/suppliers' credit
Trade payables

Derlvatives

Othier financlal labliitles - current

Total

§ - Falr value through proflt and loss

Carrying amount

(Rs. Crores)

& Total ’
s Derivates Designated as Amortised Total fair
FVTPL Hedging Instruments cost carrying Value
value
16.94 - 72.75 89.69 89.69
= = 92.27 92.27 92.27
4 & 0.38 0.38 0.38
- - 0.14 0.14 0.14
- 1.89 - 1.89 1.89
= - 24.24 24.24 24.24
= - 4.96 4.96 4.96
16.94 1.89 194.74 213.57 213.57
® - 441.47 441.47 441.47
- - 13.42 13.42 13.42
= - 97.53 97.53 97.53
22.94 - 444.03 466.97 466.97
- 7.35 - 7.35 7.35
= = 121.95 121.95 121.95
22.94 7.35 1,118.40 1,148.69 1,148.69
Carrying amount (Rs. Crores)
Total
Derivates Designated as Amortised Total fair
$
PRk Hedging Instruments cost carying value
value
36.86 - - 36.86 36.86
19.86 # 7.65 27.51 27.51
- - 26.05 26.05 26.05
- - 6.49 6.49 6.49
& & 0.10 0.10 0.10
- 2.30 - 2.30 2.30
s - 12.19 12.19 12.19
- - 0.12 0.12 0.12
56.72 2.30 52.60 111.62 111.62
= - 361.97 361.97 361.97
- - 9.03 9.03 9.03
- - 124.56 124.56 124.56
11.15 & 25732 268.46 268.46
- 0.10 . 0.10 0.10
- - 72.17 72.17 72.17
11.15 0.10 8§25.05 B36.29 836.29

“Other than Investment In subsldiary accounted for In accordance with Ind AS 27 - "Separate Financlal Statements’

The management assessed that cash and cash eqguivalents, other bank balances, trade recelvables, other financlal assets, trade payable and other

financial liabilities approximate thelr carrylng amounts largely due to short term maturities of these Instruments
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Financial Instruments (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The company uses the following hierarchy for determining and/or disclosing the falr value of financial Instruments by valuation technlques:

Level 1: Falr value measurement are those derlved from quoted prices (unadjusted) In active markets for Identical assets and liabilitles,

Level 2: Falr value measurements are those derlved from Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liabllity, elther directly (l.e. as prices) or
Indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

Level 3: Falr value measurements are those derlved from valuation technigues that Include Inputs for the asset or llabllity that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable Inputs)

There were no trensfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year.

Fair value (Rs, Crores)
As at 31 March 2025 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Investments - current - - N =
Trade recelvables - 16.94 - 16.94
Derlvatives - 1.89 - 1.89
Total - 18.83 - 18.83
Financial liabilities
Derlvatives - 2.35 ~ 72.35
Trade payables - 22.94 - 22.94
Total - 30.29 - 30.29
Fair value (Rs. Crores)
As at 31 March 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets*
Investments - current 36.86 - - 36.86
Trade recelvables - 15.86 - 19.86
Derlvatives - 2.30 - 2.30
Total 36.86 22.16 - 59.02
Financial liabilities
Derlvativas - 0.10 - 0.10
Trade payables & 11.15 = 11.15
Total - 11.25 - 11.25

* Other than Investment In subsldlary accounted for In accordance with Ind AS 27 - 'Separate Financlal Statements'
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41 Financial Instruments (Continued)

C

Financial risk management

The Company’s Board approved financial risk policles comprise liquidity, currency, Interest rate and counterparty credit risk. The company does not engage in
speculative treasury activity but seeks to manage risk and optimize Interest and forelgn currency through proven financlal Instruments,

(a) Liquidity

The company requires funds for short-term operational needs. The table below summaries the maturlty profile of the company's financial liabllitles based on contractual
undiscounted cash obligations.

The company remains committed to malnlalning @ healthy liquidity, gearing ratio, deleveraging and strengthening our balance sheet. The maturity profile of the
Company's financlal ltabliitles based on the remaining period from the date of balance shect to the contractual maturity date is glven In the table below.

As at 31 March 2025 (Rs. Crores)
Financial liabilities <1 year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years > 5 Years Total
Trade payables 466.97 - - - 466.97
Derlvative liabllities 7.35 - - - 2,35
Borrowings 441.47 - - - 441.47
Lease Liabllity 11.22 1.61 0.32 0.26 13.41
Operational buyers credit/suppliers credit 97.53 - - - 97.53
Other financlal llabllitles - Current 121.95 - - - 121.95
Total 1,146.48 1.61 0.32 0.26 1,148.68
As at 31 March 2024 (Rs. Crores)
Financial liabilities <1 year 1-2 Years 2-5 Years > 5 Years Total
Trade payables 268.46 - - - 268.46
Derlvative liabllities 0.10 & = = 0.10
Borrowings 361.97 - - - 361.97
Lease Llabllity 6.06 2.50 0.33 0.14 9.03
Operatlonal buyers credit/suppllers credit 124.56 = - - 124.56
Other financial liabllitles - Current 237 - - - 72.17
Total 833.32 2,50 0.33 0.14 836.29

The Company had access to followlng funding facilities:

As at 31 March 2025 (Rs. Crores)
Funding facilities Total Facility Drawn Undrawn
Fund Based/Non-fund Based

- From Banks 307.10 138.89 168.21
- From Related party 784.77 432.97 351.80
Collateral

The Company has pledged Its current assets at carrying value as per the requirements specified In various financial facilities In place.

(b) Interest rate risk

The company is exposed to Interest rate risk on financial assets and liabllities. Floating rate financlal assets are mutual fund Investments which have debt securities as
underiylng assets, The return from the financlal assets are linked to market Interest rate movement; However the counterparty invests In the agreed securities with
knawn maturity tenure and return and hence has manageable risk.

The exposure of company's financlal assets and financlal llabllitles to Interest rate risk as follows:

As at 31 March 202§ (Rs. Crores)
i Total »
Floating rate Fixed rate Non interest bearing %
. % = financial
financial assets financial assets financial assets
assets

Other financlal assets - 247 2.49 4.96
Total financial assets - non current = 2.47 2.49 4.96
Investments - current* - - - -
Trade and other recelvables - 0.00 114.07 114.07
Cash and cash equivalents - - 92.27 92.27
Other bank balances - 0.38 - 0.38
Derivatives - - 1.89 1.89
Total financial assets - current - 0.38 208.23 208.61

(Rs. Crores)

Floating rate Fixed rate Noi nterest beathig Total

financial financial == financial

liabilities liabilities financiad abilities:  copnies
Lease llabliitles - Non Current G 2.20 % 2.20
Total financial Liabilities - non current - 2.20 - 2.20
Trade and other payables - - 588.92 588.92
Borrowings - 441.47 - 441.47
“ Lease Liabliity - - 11.22 . - 11.22
Operatlonal buyers' credit/suppliers’ credit - 97.53 £ - 97.53
Derivatives - - 7.35 7.35
Total financial liabilities - current - 550.22 596.27 1,146.49

Q;\e \'Q 14
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Financial Instruments (Continued)
Financial risk management (Continued)

As at 31 March 2024 (Rs. Crores)
Non interest
Floating rate Fixed rate bearing fi T:':::a|
financial assets financial assets financial n
assets
assets
Other financial assets - non current - - 0.12 0.12
Total financial assets - non current - - 0.12 0.12
Investments - current™ 36.86 - - 36.86
Trade and other receivables - - 39.79 39.79
Cash and cash equivalents - 1.00 25.05 26.05
Other bank balances - 6.4% & 6.49
Derivatives - - 2.30 2.30
Total financial assets - current 36.86 7.48 67.14 111.49

(Rs. Crores)

Non interest

Floating rate Fixed rate beaid Total
financial financial ﬁ:aa:cr;gl financial
liabilities liabilities liabilities liabilities

Lease liabilities - Non Current = 2.97 = 2.97
Total financial Liabilities - non current - 2.97 - 2.97
Trade and other payables 7 - 340.64 340.64
Borrowings - 361.97 - 361.97
Lease Liability - 6.06 - 6.06
Operational buyers' credit/suppliers' credit - 124.56 - 124.56
Derivatives - - 0.10 0.10
Total financial liabilities - current - 492.59 340.74 833.33

*Other than investment In subsidiary company

The table below illustrates the impact of a 0.5% to 2.0% increase in interest rates on interest on financial assets assuming that the changes occur at the
reporting date and has been calculated based on risk exposure outstanding as of date. This analysis also assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign
currency rates, remain constant.

(Rs. Crores)
Effect on pre-tax profit/(loss) during Effect on pre-tax profit/(loss)
Increase in interest rates the year ended during the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
0.50% 0.00 0.18
1.00% 0.00 0.37
2.00% s 0.00 0.74

(c) Counterparty credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the company. The company has adopted a
policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss
from defaults.

The company is exposed to credit risk from trade receivables and other financial instruments.

None of the company's cash or cash equivalents and other bank balances are past due or impaired. Regarding other financial assets (both current and non
current), there were no indications as at March 31, 2025 that cefaults in payment obligation will occur except as described in Note 8 & Note 12 for cther
financial assets - non current & trade receivables respectively.

Below mentioned other financlal assets and Trade receivables are not considered impaired as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024;

As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Rs. Crores Rs. Crores
Not past due 24.91 4.68
Due less than 1 month 72.86 27.55
Due between 1-3 menths 15.24 7.54

Due between 3-12 months 1.03 ¢
More than 12 months 4.99 0.15
Total 119.03 39.92
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41 Financial Instruments (Continued)
(d) Foreian currency risk

Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates may have an impact on the statement of profit and loss, the statement of changes in equity, where any
transaction references more than one currency or where assets/liabilities are denominated in a currency other than the functional curiency of the Company.
The carrying amount of the company's financial assets and liabifities in different currencies are as follows:

(Rs. In Crores)
As at 31 March 2025

Financial Assets

INR usp Total
Trade and other receivable 37.42 76.65 114.07
Other non current financial assets 4.96 - 4.96
Other bank balances 0.38 = 0.38
Investments - - -
Cash and Cash Equivalent 92.27 - 92.27
Derivatives 0.75 1.14 1.89
135.78 77.79 213.57
(Rs. In Crores)
Financial Liabilities INR UsD Total
Trade and other payables 570.76 18.16 588.92
Lease liability 13.42 - 13.42
Buyers Credit 14.15 83.38 97.53
Borrowings 441.47 - 441.47
Derivatives 0.17 7.18 7.35
Total 1,039.97 108.72 1,148.69
(Rs. In Crores)
As at 31 March 2024
Financial Assets INR usp Total
Trade and other receivable 17.57 22.23 39.79
Other non current financial assets 0.12 - 0.12
Other bank balances 6.49 - 6.49
Investments 36.86 - 36.86
Cash and Cash Equivalent 26.05 - 26.05
Derivatives 0.23 2.07 2.30
87.32 24.30 111.61
(Rs. In Crores)
Financial Liabilities INR usb Total
Trade and other payables 329.49 11.15 340.64
Lease liablity 9.03 - 9.03
Buyers Credit 22.05 102.51 124.56
Borrowings 361.97 - 361.97
Derivatives 0.10 - 0.10
Total 722.64 113.66 836.30

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on
the company’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabliities.

{Rs. In Crores)

Change in Effect on profit Effect on
USD Rate before tax equity
31 March 2025 10% 3.09 231

31 March 2024 10% 8.94 6.69
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Financial Instruments (Continued)

(e) Commadity price risk

On 31 March 2025, the value of net financial liabilities linked to cornmodities (excluding derivatives) accounted for on provisional prices was Rs. 11.29 Crores
(31 March 2024: 20.28 Crores). These instruments are subject to price movements at the time of final settiement.

Derivative financial instruments
The company uses derivative instruments as part of its management of exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates and commedity prices.

The company does not acquire or issue derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes. The company does not enter into complex
derivative transactions to manage the treasury and commodity risks. Both treasury and commodities derivative transactions are normally in the form of
forward contracts and these are subject to the company guidelines and policies.

Cash flow hedge

The Company enters into forward exchange and commodity price contracts for hedging highly probable forecast transaction and account for them as cash flow
hedges and states them at fair value, Subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in equily through OCI until the hedged transaction occurs, at which
time, the respective gain or losses are reclassified to profit or loss. These hedges have been effective for the year ended 31 March 2025.

Fair value hedge
The fair value hedges relate to foreign currency forward contracts taken to hedge currency exposure on purchase of raw materials. The fair value of
company's derivative positions recorded under derivatives - financial assets and derivatives - financial liabilities are as follows:

(Rs. In Crores)

Derivative Financial Instrument As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

- Commodity contracts 1.14 7.18 2.07 s

- Forward foreign currency contracts 0.75 0.17 0.23 0.10

Total 1.89 7.35 2.30 0.10

Derivative contracts executed by the Company and outstanding as at Balance Sheet date

(i) To hedge currency risks and interest related risks, the Company has executed various derivatives contracts. The category wise break up of amount

(i)

outstanding as at Balance Sheet date is given below :

(Rs. In Crores)

As at As at
Rartiewiats 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Forex forward cover (buy) 7.54 48.44
Forex forward cover (sell) 121.97 108.95
129.51 157.39

For hedging commodity related risk :- Category-wise break up is given below

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Purchases Sales Purchases Sales
Nickel (Quantity in MT) 12.00 354.00 96.00 474.00
Cabalt (Quantity in MT) - 108.00 = =
J 12.00 354.00 96.00 474.00

03@5
3
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Capital management

The Company's objectives when managing capital is to safeguard continuity and maintain 2 heaithy capital ratios in order to support its business and provide adequate
return to shareholders through continuous growth. The Company sets the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business. The funding requirements are met
through a mixture of equity, borrowings and internal accruals.

The Company monitors capital using gearing ratio; being the ratio of net debt as a percentage of total capital employed. The Company is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements.

Net debt are short term debts as reduced by cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances and short term investments. Equity comprises all components including
other comprehensive income.

The folloviing table summarizes the capital of the Company:

(Rs. Crores)

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Cash and cash equivalents 92.27 26.05
Other bank balances . 0.38 6.49
Short term investments - 36.86
Total cash (a) 92.65 69.40
Short-term borrowings 441.47 361.97
Lease Liability . 13.41 3.03
Total debt (b) 454.88 371.00
Equity (280.16) (94.01)
Net debt (c= b-a) 362.23 301.60
Debt Equity Ratio (1.63) (3.96)
43 Contingent liabilities and Commitments
(a) Contingent Liabilities (Rs. Crores)
(1) Claims not ac} ledged by the pany 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(i) Electricity tax on self generated power (refer note 1 below) 93.51 93.51
(1) Electricity duty, tax and additional duty on the surplus power wheeled (refer note 2 below) 8.76 8.76
(iii) Electricity tax on sale of electricity to TNEB (refer note 3 belaw) 28.80 28.80
(iv) Remitting the excess claim for the period from Oct,2014 to May, 2015 for the excess units (refer note 4 8.58 8.58
(v) Water charges (refer note 5 below) 11.09 11.09
(vi) Railway land license fees demand (refer nate 6 below) 4.27 4.27
(vii) Customs duty (refer Note 7 below) B.75 8.75
(viii) Income Tax (refer Note 8 below) % bud
163.76 163.76
Note :
1 Tamil Nadu Electricity Board ("TNEB’) issued a demand of Rs. 93.51 Crores towards electricity tax on consumption of self-generated power for the period May 1999 to

w

June 2003. The Company had filed a writ petition in Honourable High Court of Madras stating that the Industry in which the Company operates should also be
considered, being power intensive industry, for exempticn from payment of electricity tax as other power intensive industries were considered for exemption and a stay
was granted by Honourable High Court in this matter in April 2013. Based on the direction of Honourable High Court, fresh representation is made before Energy
Department and an order is awaited from the Government.

TNEB has also demanded Rs 8.76 Crores towards electricity duty, tax and additional duty on the surpius power wheeled to an associate company (now holding
Company), which is being c by the y. The Company's repr ion to the Tamil Nadu Government that no duty, tax or additional duty is leviable as the
Company is not a licence has been denied. Agarieved by the same, the Company filed a writ petition and a stay has been obtained from Honourable High Court, Madras.
Based on the direction of Honourable High Court, representation is made before Energy Department. Based on the direction of Honourable High Court, fresh
representaticn is made before Energy Department and an order i1s awaited from the Government.

The office of Electrical Inspectorate, Salem, Government of Tamil Nadu, raised a demand towards electricity tax of Rs. 28.80 Crores on sale of electricity to TNEB
through Power Trading Corporation ('PTC') during June 2009 and May 2011 on the ground that the company has sold the power to PTC and not to TNEB. The company
had filed an writ petition in the Honourable High Court of Madras and Honourable High Court of Madras vide Order Dated Sth July 2021 granted liberty to appeal within 6
weeks from the receipt of order before Secretary Govt of Temil Nadu, Energy Dept. Appeal has been filed on 17th Aug 2021. Accerdingly, an appeal has been filed and

the appeal is yet to fieard by the Secretary to Government, Energy Department. Based on the advice of external I, the Ci y bel s that it has good grounds
for success.
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Contingent liabilities and Commitments (Continued)

The company has received a demand from Tamilnadu Generation and Distribution Corporation Limited (' TANGDECQ') for Rs. 8.58 Crores towards excess amount paid by
it in respect of electricity units supplied by the company in excess of the requirements of TANGDECO. The company has filed an writ petition before Honourable High
Court of Madras and stay was granted in this matter. The case was heard on 10th Oct 22 and the Hon'ble Court while taking note of the fact that the Tamil Nadu
Electricity Regulatory Commission ('TNERC') has no quorum as on date of passing the Order, directed the Company to approach the TNERC within one month of receipt
of the order copy, since a Legal Member will be appointed shortly. Accordingly, a petition has been filed before the Hon'ble TNERC. Based on the advice of external
counsel, the Company believes that it has good grounds for success.

Tamiinadu government passed a GO Ms.No.890 PWD on 05.05.91 raising the water charges from Rs.60 to Rs.S00 per 1000 cubic metres. The PWD demanded charges
for the contracted quantity of 87,560,000 cubic metre per annum with retrospective effect from May 1991. The Company filed WP 8333/1991 which was disposed of
giving opportunity to represent to Govt. Revised Demand of Rs.300/1000 cubic metre from 09.05.91 to 31.03.02 receivad from PWD for Rs.1.48 Cr. Even after
representations, Govt again revised the water charges @ Rs.500/1000 cubic metres. The Company filed WP No.1298/02 in which Stay was obtained with a direction to
pay Rs.300 /1000 cubic metres. On 26.02.06 High Court dismissed all WP and directed the petitioners to pay water charges @ Rs.500/1000 cubic metres as per GO
474/13.11.01. WA 516/2008 yet to be listed. All surrounding industries viz., Chemplast have paid rate increase impact with a request to PWD for interest waiver.

PWD has issued notice of dis-connection dt 24.10.2008 for non payment of revised charges amounting to Rs.3.31 Crs along with penal interest of Rs.6.49 Crs. The
Company filed a fresh WP in Madras High Court WP No.No.6220/2008 and 6229/2008, WA 516/2008 both are pending for further hearing and disposal. We have made
payment of Rs.3.31 Crs in view of the disconnection notice from PWD in instaliments and have requested for waiver of penal interest pertion. Since PWD refused to
waive the interest, The Company had filed WP 2528/2011 against which an interim stay was granted by the Hon'ble High Court of Madras vide order dated 04.02.2011.

The issues arising out of licensing of Railway land pertaining to the Railway siding. The Company had entered into 3 Memorandum of Understanding ("MoU") with the
Divisionzi Railway Manager, Palghat dated 10 Dec 1999, to invest in the Mettur Dam Railway Station (MTDM), towards creation of infrastructural facilities for reception of
coal rakes and unloading coal for transfer into the Company's plant through conveyors. The dispute betvieen the Company and the Southern Railviay, Salem Division is
with respect to a) pericd for which the lease land was in possession of the Company; b) extent of lease land and c) the base value to be adopted for the lease rent. The
Arbitration proceedings commenced despite the fact that the Company has taken the objection stating that the matter with respect to constitution of the Arbitrator
Tribunal is sub-judice before the Hon'ble Supreme Court. The arbitration proceedings were completed, and the order is reserved. The Hon'ble Supreme Court on 24th
January 2025, allowed Special Leave Petition filed by the Company and directed to re-constitute the Arbitrator Tribunal by referring it to the Nani Palkhivala Arbitration
Centre, Chennai. The constitution of Arbitrater Tribunal is in process.

a. The custom authorities have raised demand for levy of custom duty amounting to 7.09 crores wherein Directorate of revenue intelligence (DRI) has contended that
coal imported by the Company is bituminous coal and not steam coal basis General Rules of Interpretation [a set of 6 rules for classification of goods in the Tariff
Schedule]. However, these rules have to be applied sequentially. Rule-1 gives precedence to the Section notes/Chapter notes while classifying 2 product. Therefore,
When heading itself clearly describes the classification of goods, there is no need to refer further rules for interpretation. The Coal imported by the Company was Steam
coal which is classifiable under Tariff Item 27011920 and cleared after extending exemption in terms of serial No. 123 of Notification No. 12/2012-Cus dated 17.3.2012
whereunder steam coal has been specifically included and given total exemption from Basic Customs Duty (BCD) and in excess of 1% from Additional Duty of customs.

The Supritendent of Excise & Customs, Salem had conducted an investigation on import of coal at the Company, Mettur on 18.02.2013 and asked the Company to
submit all coal related files/emails etc. DRI, Coimbatere also issued 2 summons dated 20.02.2013 asking the Company to submit complete details of import of coal from
arch 2012 till date. The C y had fe Iy submitted all Coel related files/emails/cther records for the FY 2012-13 to the authorities.Further DRI had instructed the
Company to submit entire bil! of entry details from March 2012 and to appear before them on 06.03.2013 to which the Company had provided the details and appeared
before the Official on 06.03.2013. The company believes that the demand is not tenable under the law and it has good grounds for success.

b. AC Nagapattinam vide OIO No.111/2016 dtd 08.11.2016 demanded differential duty payment of Rs.1.59 Crores due to coal classification issue. The Company has
classified imported coal under steam coal and department has contended that imported coal should be classified under coking coal which will attract 6% CVD instead of
2% CVD. Further, the Company is in non-receipt of OIO due to wrong addressed mentioned by department while sending the OI0. The Company has filed an appeal
before commissioner zppeal who has passed unfavourable order vide O1A NO.74/2018-TRY Dated 20.04.2018 against which the Company has filed appeal before
CESTATY Chennai. The company that the d is not under the law and it has good grounds for success.

c. Ld. Commissioner Customs (Appeals), Chennai vide Order in Appeal 1196-1197 and 1199 /2013 dated 30.08.2013 have sanctioned us a refund of Rs. 0.08 Crores
and has directed Asst Commissioner to verify unjust enrichment aspect in respect of Order in Original No. 15425 dated 25.03.2011. The company believes that the
demand 1s not tenable under the law and it has good grounds for success.

The Income tax authorities have passed assessment orders containing an addition to total inct /disall es for various years from 2009-10 to 2024-25
amounting to Rs. 715.94 Crores (addition to total income/disallowance amount) [31st March 2024 :Rs. 715.94 Crores (addition to tetal i Jdisallow, "
The same has been adjusted against the carry forward busi losses. The C y beli that aforesaid adjustment is not tenable under the law and has filed an

appeal with higher authorities and matter is pending for disposal.

-
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Contingent liabilities and Commitments (Continued)

(b) Commitments
Estimated amounts of contracts net of advances, remaining to be executed on capital account and riot
provided for is Rs.27.78 Crores (31 March 2024: Rs.66.41 Crores).

{c

~

(a)

(b)

Bank guarantees

The Company has given guarantees in the normal course of business as stated below:

Bank guarantees

Related party disclosures

Details of related parties

(Rs. Crores)

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
7.17 B.44
7.17 8.44

Description of relationship

Name of the related parties

(i) Where control exists
Holding Company
Intermediate Holding Company

Ultimate Holding Company

Subsidiary Company
Fellow Subsidiary

(ii) Other related parties
Key management personnel

Transactions with related parties during the year

Vedanta Limited

Volcan Investments Limited

Vedanta Resources Holdings Limited
Vedanta Resources Limited

Fujairah Gold FZC

Hindustan Zinc Limited

Electrosteel Limited

Vizag General Cargo Berth Private Limited
Sesa Mining Corporation Limited

STL Digital Limited

Ms. A Sumathi - Director
Mr. Navin Kumar Jaju - Director
Mr. A R Narayanaswamy - Independent Director

(Rs. Crores)

Particulars

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Vedanta Limited

Sale of Finished goods
Purchase of Goods/Service
Purchase of Assets
Reimbursement of expenses
Corporate expenses
Recovery of expenses
Interest Expense

Other Expenses
Borrowings received

Borrowings repaid

Vizag General Cargo Berth Private Limited
Reimbursement of expenses

26.87 7.51
416.08 20.22
0.01 -

217 5.06
2.52 2.29
2.61 5.59
39.02 3731
0.65 0.02
384.12 335.93
292.51 443.06
- 0.00*

* Amount is below the rounding off norms adopted by the company
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Related party disclosures (Continued)

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Hindustan Zinc Limited

Sale of Finished goods 97.50 85.78
Purchase of Goods/Service 3.72 0.05
Reimbursement of expenses* 0.00 0.00

Electrosteel Limited
Reimbursement of expenses 0.38 0.17

Sesa Mining Corporation Limited
Purchase of Goods/Service 5.95 5.20

STL Digital Limited
Purchase of Goods/Service - 0.33

(c) Transactions with Key Managerial Personnel during the year

(Rs. Crores)
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Director Sitting Fee
- Mr. A R Narayanaswamy 0.02 0.02

(d) _ Outstanding balances at period end

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Vedanta Limited
Financial assets and Liabilities

- Borrowings 432.97 341.36

- Other receivables 0.12 -

- Other payables 24.37 12.60

- Interest payables 89.73 54.79

- Trade payables 422.31 226.21
Total 969.26 634.96
Hindustan Zinc Limited

- Trade receivables 11.87 2.96

- Other receivables 0.23 0.09

Electrosteel Limited
- Other payables 1.02 . 0.63

STL Digital Limited
- Trade payables - 0.01

Sesa Mining Corporation Limited
- Other receivables 0.06 2.72

* Amount is below the rounding off norms adopted by the company

( e) Sales made to/purchases made from and other transactions with related parties are on the same terms as applicable to third
parties in an arm's length transaction and in the ordinary course of business. The group mutually negotiates and agrees prices,
discount and payment terms with the related parties by benchmarking the same to transactions with non-related parties. Trade
receivables and Trade payables outstanding balances are unsecured and require settlement in cash. No guarantee or other
security has been received/given against these receivables/payables.
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Employee benefit

. Defined contribution plan

The Company contributed a total of Rs. 1.11 Crore for the year ended March 31, 2025 and Rs. 1.06 Crores for the year ended March 31, 2024 to the
following defined contribution plans:

a. Provident fund

In accordance with The Employees Provident Funds Act, 1952 employees are entitled ta receive benefits under the provident fund. Both the employee and
the employer make monthly contributions te the plan at a predetermined rate (12% for fiscal year 2025 and 2024) of an employee’s salary. All employees
have an option to make additional voluntary contributions. These contributions are made to the fund administered and managed by the Government of
India (GOI). The Company has no further obligations under the fund managed by the GOI beyond its monthly contributions which are charged to the
statement of profit and loss in the perlod they are incurred.

b. Superannuation

Superannuation, another pension scheme applicable In India, Is applicable only to senior executives. The Company holds a policy with Life Insurance
Corporation of India (*LIC"), to which it contributes a fixed amount relating to superannuation and the pension annuity is met by LIC as required, taking
into consideration the contributions made. The Company has no further obligations under the scheme beyond Its monthly contributions which are charged
to the Statement of Profit and Loss In the period they are incurred.

. Defined benefit plan

The Company has defined benefit gratuity plan. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Every employee who has completed
five years of more services are eligible for gratuity. The level of benefit provided depends on the member's length of service and salary at retirement date.
The Pian is funded with Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) In the form of a qualifying Insurance policy.

The following tables summaries the component of net benefit expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, other comprehensive income, the
funded status and the amount recognised in the balance sheet for the gratuity plan:

Changes in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets:

Funded
Defined benefit Fair value of plan Net Status
obligations assets

At 31 March 2023 (1.07) 0.66 (0.41)
Current service cost (0.16) - (0.16)
Past service cost including curtailment gains/losses * -
Net interest expense (0.07) 0.05 (0.02)
Included in Statement of Profit and Loss (0.23) 0.05 (0.18)
Actual Return on plan assets . 0.01 0.01
(excluding amounts included in net interest expense) ) :
Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic ~
assumptions (0.04) (0:04)
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions (0.03) ° (0.03)
Actuarial changes arising from changes in experience N
adjustments 0,08 0.08
Included in OCI 0.01 0.01 0.02
Benefits pald 0.13 (0.13) -
Contribution by employer 0.82 0.82
At 31 March 2024 (1-16) 141 0.25
Current service cost (0.15) - (0.15)
Past service cost including curtailment gains/losses - - a
Net interest expense (0.08) 0.10 0,02
Included in Statement of Profit and Loss (0.23) 0.10 (0.13)
Return on plan assets

- 0.03 0.03
(excluding amounts included in net interest expense) ( ) ( )
Actuarlal‘ changes arising from changes in demaographic 0.04 5 0.04
assumptions
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions 0.04 - 0.04
Actuarial changes arising from changes in experience _
adjustments (0.13) (0:13)
Included in OCI (0.05) (0.03) (0.08)
Benefits paid 0.25 (0.25) -
Acquisition Adjustment 0.20 - 0.20
Contribution by employer - 0.01 0.01
At 31 March 2025 (1.00) 1.24 0.24
Plan Asset (refer note 18) 031
Defined benefit obligation (refer note 22) -0.07

Net Balance 0.24

-
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45 Employee benefit (Continued)
The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligation for the Company plans are shown below:

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Discount rate 7.03% 7.10%
Future salary increase 5.50% - 8.50% 5.5%-10%
Withdrawal rate
Ages: up to 30 years 3% - 25% 3%-14%

from 31 to 44 years 3% ~ 25% 2%-14%

above 44 years 3% - 25% 1%-14%
Retirement age S8 58
Mortality rate IALM (2012 - 14) 1ALM (2012 - 14)

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:
(Rs. Crores)

Assumptions 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Sensitlvity level

0.5% Increase in discount rate (0.03) (0.03)
0.5% Decrease in discount rate 0.03 0.03
0.5% Increase in future salary Increase 0.03 0.03
0.5% Decrease in future salary increase (0.03) (0.03)

The above sensitivity analysis may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Further, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit
method at the end of the reporting pericd, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance
sheet.

The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted defined benefit obligation (Funded and Unfunded) is as follows:

Year 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Within 1 Year 0.21 0.23
Between 1 and 2 years 0.08 0.14
Between 2 and 3 years 0.06 0.27
Between 3 and 4 years 0.19 0.04
Between 4 and S years 0.07 0.03
Beyond 5 years 0.37 0.28

The contribution expected to be made by the Company during the financial year 2025-26 is Rs. 0.15 crores

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation is ranging from 6.23 to 16.80 years and 2.88 to 6.33 years as on March 31, 2025 and March 31,
2024 respectively.
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Share based compensation plans
The Company offered equity based and cash based option plans to its employees, officers and directors through the Company's stock option plan
introduced in 2016, Cairn India’s stock option plan now administered by the Company pursuant to merger with the Company and Vedanta Resources
Limited (earlier known as Vedanta Resources Plc) plans [Vedanta Resources Long-Term Incentive Plan ("LTIP"), Employee Share Ownership Plan ("ESOP"),
Performance Share Plan (“PSP”) and Deferred Share Bonus Plan ("DSBP")] collectively referred as 'VRL ESOP' scheme.

The Company introduced an Employee Stock Option Scheme 2016 ("ESOS"), which was approved by the Vedanta Limited shareholders to provide equity
settled incentive to all employees of the Company including subsidiary companies. The ESOS scheme Includes tenure based, business performance based,
sustained individual performance based and market performance based stock options. The maximum value of options that can be awarded to members of
the wider management group is calculated by reference to the grade average cost-to-company ("CTC") and individual grade of the employee. The
performance conditions attached to the option is measured by comparing Company's performance in terms of Total Shareholder Return ("TSR") over the
performance period with the performance of twe group of comparator companies (l.e. Indian and global comparator companies) defined in the scheme.
The extent to which an option vests will depend on the Company's TSR rank against a group or groups of peer companies at the end of the performance
period and as moderated by the Remuneration Committee,

Options granted during the period ended March 31, 2025 includes business performance based, sustained individual performance based and market
performance based stock options. Business performances will be measuredusing Volume, Cost, Net SalesRealisation, EBITDA or a combination of these for
the respective business/ SBU entities.

Amount recovered by the Parent and recognized by the company In the statement of profit and loss account for the period ended Crores March 31, 2025
was Rs 0.17 Crores (Year ended March 31, 2024 was Rs. 1.08 Crores). The Company conslders these amounts as not material and accordingly has not
provided further disclosures.

Earnings per share
(Rs. Crores)

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Profit attributable to the equity shareholders for Basic EPS (188.09) (117.42)
Add: Adjustment for Diluted Instrument - =
Profit attributable to equity holders adjusted for Diluted EPS (188.09) (117.42)
Weighted average number of Equity Shares for basic EPS 2,33,66,406 2,33,66,406
Effect of Dilution of Convertible debentures 13,16,61,981 13,16,61,981
Weighted average number of Equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 15,50,28,387 15,50,28,387
Earning per share - Basic & Dilutive (Rs.) * (80.49) (50.25)

* Effect of potential dilutive ordinary shares related to compulsory convertible debentures (CCDs) is anti-dilutive and hence not
considered in determining diluted earnings per share.
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Other Statutory Information
(i) The Company do not have any Benami Property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any Benami Property

(ii) The Company do not have any transactions with struck off Companies

(iii) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet Lo be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period

(iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the Financial year

(v) The Company is not having any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in

tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income tax Act, 1961)

(vi) The company during the year have not advanced or loaned or invested funds te any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall: (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the company (Ulti Beneficiaries) or (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vii) The company during the year have not received any fund from any persons or entities, including fareign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether
recorded in wriling or otherwise) that tha company shall: (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities i ified in any | by or
on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(viil) The Company is in c liance with the ber of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies (restriction
on number of lavers) Rules. 2017

(ix) The Company is maintaining its books of accounts in electronic mode and these books of accounts are accessible in India at ail the times and the back up of books
of accounts has been kept in servers physically located in India on a daily basis from the applicability date of the accounts rules i.e., S August, 2022 onwards

(x) The Company has used acc g software for maintaming its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for ali refevant transactions recorded in the software except that, audit trail feature for direct changes to data in certain database tables
was enabled for part of the year from March 03, 2025. Further no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with was noted in respect of the software. Additionally,
the Company has preserved audit trail in full compliance with the requirements of section 128(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of the financial year ended
March 31, 2024 to the extent it was enabled and recorded during the year ended March 31, 2024.

Disclosures under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
As at As at
: 31 March 31 March
Particulars 2025 2024
Rs. Crores Rs. Crores
(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year 9.32 5.90
(ii) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year - =
(iii) The amount of interest paid along with the of the pay made to the lier beyond the appointed day - -
(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the year . -
(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year - 2

(vi) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date when the interest dues as above are

Seament Information

Acauisition (Refer Note 1)

Guijarat NRE

In FY 21-22, the company acquired Bachau and Khambalia biocks of Gujarat NRE Coke Limited which was under liquidation as per the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code
2016 for the time being in force for a cash consideration of Rs 165.99 croras and subsequent stamp duty for the transactions for Rs 9.7 crores. The assets acquired
mainly included Land, Building and Plant & Machinery of similar value as the cash consideration. Gujarat NRE Coke Limited (GNRE), has two Met Coke plants in Bhachau
and Khambalia for a total operating capacity of 400 KTPA and 265 KTPA respectively.

Ni fndusti

In FY 21-22, the Company acquired the assets of Nicomet Industries Limited which was under liquidation process as per the Insolvency and Bankruptcy code,2016
(including all amendments for the time being in force) for a cash consideration of Rs 51.55 crores and subsequent stamp duty and registration fee of Rs 3.3 crores. The
assets acquired mainly include land, building and Plant & Machinery of similar value as the cash consideration. Nickel unit is the first and the only company engaged in
manufacturing Nickel and Cobalt through processing of Concentrates in India, which is a vital raw material for manufacturing of EV batteries, High quality steel products
and super alloys.

The Company acquired assets of Gujarat NRE on 20th May 2021 and Nicomet Industries on 6th Jan 2022. As Malco Energy Limited has no present obligations, the
acquisition shall serve to kick start and boost operations. Potentia! future synergies through vertical integration.

The C y primarily engaged in the b of generation and szle of electricity, production of low ash Metallurgical coke and Nickel and Cobalt sulphate and Nickel
Cathode in India. As per the view of Chief Operating Decision maker (CODM), there are three operating segments {a) Generation of electricity (b) Production of coke (c)
Production of Nickel sulphate crystal, Nickel Cathode and Cobalt sulphate crystal. Each of the repartable segments has an ability to derive revenue and hence have
been identified as reportable segments by the Chief Operating Decision Maker.

Segment Revenue, Results, Assets and Liabilities inciude respective amount i i to each seg Tax, Depreciation and Amortization and EBITDA are
evaluated regularly by the CODHM, in deciding how to allocate resources and in ing perforn The op ing reported are the segments of the
cempany for which separate financial information is il . The Ci y's I taxes are i d on an overall basis and are not alfecated to operating
segments.

The power plant of the company has been put under care and maintenance w.e.f. May 26, 2017 due to prevailing business conditions.

-
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Segment Information (Continued)

The following table presents revenue and profit information and certain assets and liabilities information regarding the Company's operating
segments as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025. Since the Power Plant is under care and maintenance, there is no Revenue from

operations from this segment.

For the Year ended 31 March 2025 (Rs. Crores)
< Operating Segments
rarticalars Coke Nickel Power | Elimination Total
Revenue
External Revenue 506.48 370.11 - - 876.60
Add : Inter Segment Revenue - # # & &
Segment Revenue 506.48 370.11 - - 876.60
Other Operating Income
External 5.94 5.23 0.72 = 11.89
Inter Segment - - - - -
Total revenue from operations 512.42 375.34 0.72 - 888.49
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 202.45 299.91 - & 502.36
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 305.75 # = - 308.75
Changes in inventories of FG, WIP & Stock in trade (1.93) 7.02 = > 5.08
Power & Fuel 1.40 11.68 0.94 “ 14.02
Employee benefits expense 6.19 14.09 0.65 = 20.93
Other expenses 38.30 95.42 1.53 = 135.25
Total Expense 552.16 428.12 3.12 - 983.39
Results
Segment Results (EBITDA)* (39.74) (52.77) (2.40) - (94.91)
Less: Depreciation and Amortisation (43.07)
Add: Other Income 2.84
Less: Finance cost (52.85)
Net Profit before tax (188.09)
Other information
Segment Assets 366.76 383.17 191.08 (112.72) 828.29
Financial Asset (Loans) 0.14
Income tax Asset 7.35
Cash & Cash Equivalents (including other bank 92.27
balance & bank deposits) i
Total Assets 928.05
Segment Liabilities 541.82 245.47 54.13 (74.68) 766.74
Borrowings 441.47
Total Liabilities 1,208.21
Capital Expenditure 186.10 91.57 75.82 - 353.49
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For the Year ended 31 March 2024

(Rs. Crores)

. Operating Segments
e Coke Nickel Power| Elimination Total
Revenue
External Revenue 160.86 454.89 - “ 615.75
Inter Segment Revenue - - - - -
Segment Revenue 160.86 454.89 - - 615.75
Other Operating Income
External 1.72 4.00 25.46 - 31.18
Inter Segment - - - - -
Add : other operating income 1.72 4.00 25.46 31.18
Total Revenue from operations 162.57 458.89 25.46 - 646.92
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 80.70 348.08 - 428.78
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 4.63 - - 4.63
Changes in inventories of FG, WIP & Stock in trade 78.48 43.38 - 121.86
Power & Fuel 1.00 15.67 1.18 17.85
Employee benefits expense 7.38 12.91 0.93 21,22
Other expenses 32.69 73.95 3.45 (1.15) 108.94
Total Expense 204.89 493.99 5.56 (1.15) 703.28
Segment Results (EBITDA)* (42.32) (35.09) 19.89 1.15 (56.36)
Less : Depreciation and Amortisation (31.78)
Add : OtherIncome 21.61
Less: Finance cost (50.90)
Net Profit before tax (117.43)
Other information
Segment Assets 293.65 349.44 136.33 (48.60) 730.82
Financial Asset (Investments) 36.86
Financial Asset (Loans) 0.10
Income tax Asset 7.96
Cash & Cash Equivalents (including other bank 26.04
balance & bank deposits) )
Total Assets 801.78
Segment Liabilities 22.17 88.19 378.05 (48.60) 439.81
Borrowings 361.97
Total Liabilities 895.79
Capital Expenditure 206.37 75.65 79.52 - 361.54

* EBITDA is @ Non GAAP measure
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51 Key Rotios are as follows s
Particulars Numerator Denominator FY 24-25 A FY 13-24_‘ ’“{’:""‘“9" Renson for change
0.45] 6|

ange
o, 2%

2) Current Ratio (in times) Currant Asset Currant Liabliity
b) Debt Equity Ratio (In times)

On accourt of increase in borrowings and reduction in total

Grags Debt Equity (1.58)] (3.85) =59% | equity (due to loss incurred) in financial year 2024-25
mpared to financial year 20.

On account of decrease In earnings avnllahla for debt service

43% |and increase In borrawings In financial year 2024-25

compared to financial year 2023-24.

On account of Increase In loss for the ycar and corresponding

Profit After tax Average Total Equity 67.14% 124.90% -46% |decrease In total equity In financlal year 2024-25 compared to

financial year 2023-24.
137% on accwm c! decrerse In uvernqc lnventow in financial year

¢) Debt service coverage Ratio (in

times) Profit After tax+Depreciation+ Finance|Interest expense + Principal (0.19) (0.13)

payments of loans

d) Return on Equity Ratio (%)

e) Inventory Turnover Ratio (in times)

Cost of Goods Sold Average Inventory 421 179 2

3;:5")" Receivable Turnaver Ratio (I |payenye from Operations Average Trade Receivable 14.96 36.59 -59% 5 e H

q) Trade Payable Turnover Ratio (in 2 On ac:wm al Increase in avcnqc trade payable blluncc in

ghTeN Cost of Goods Sold + Other Expenses [Average Trade Payable 2.61 an 2 O s o e ey,

m":l“ Warking Caphtal Turnaver Ratlo |neygnue from Operations Working capital (1.33) (1.28) 4% 3

i) Net Profit fatio (%) Profit after tax Revenue from “21.46% ~19.07%| 3% T

) Rexurn on Copital Employed (%) . . vu| G0 2ccount o nreas T o3 and borowings In nancial year
Profit before tax + Finance cost Capital employed 83.77% 24.02% 249% ik ot Incrabie In o o bormod

3 Raturn on invastmant (%) Tncome from investmant measured at e TrardTyoar
et [Average current investment 5.02% 2.02% 148%| o0 e e e

52 Leases

“The Company has lease contracts for land, Machinery, vehicles and other equipment for its business operations. Generally, the Company is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets.

1) Details of carrying amount of Right-of-use assets and movement during the perioad disclosed under Note 6.
i) Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liablitics and the movement during the year:

(Rs. Crores’

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Bafance at the beglnning of the year 9.03 0.25
Additions 3.18 9.77
Modification 7.50 =
Disposals £ .
Lease payment made during the year £ (7.78) (1.70)
Accretion of interest 1.49 0.46
\Write back R -
Balance at the end of the year 13.4 9.03
Non Current 2.20 2.97
Current 11.22 6.06

) The effective interest rate for lease liabilities ranges from 7,58% to 10.30%.
b) The maturities for lease liabllities are as follows

Paticulars Maturity
Leasehold Land 60-80 years
Leasehold Vehicles 1-2 years

Leasehold Equipment
) The maturity analysis of lease Nabilitles are disclosed In Nole 41 (C) “Uauidity risk”
d) The Company had total cash flows for leases of Rs,?.78 crores for the year ended 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024: Rs. 1.70 crores)

1) The following are the amounts recoanised In profit or loss:

(Rs. Crores)
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Depreciation of Riht-of-use asset 063 2.24
Accretion of interest on lease liability 149 0.46
Expenses relating to short-term leases and leases of low-value assets ade 068
(Inctuded In other expenses) o i
Total amount recognised In profit or loss 2.60 3.38
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Going concern

As at March 31, 2025, the Company has a net current liability of Rs 659.99 Crores and has incurred a loss of Rs. 188.09 Crores during the year
ended March 31, 2025, Current liabilities as at March 31, 2025 includes borrowing, interest payable, trade payable and other payable amounting
to Rs. 432.97 Crores, Rs. 89.73 Crores, Rs. 422.31 Crores and Rs. 24.37 Crores respectively payable to Holding Company.

Further, the holding Company has provided a commitment in the form of a support letter to provide the necessary financial support to the
Company to meets its operational and financial obligations as and when they fall due.

Based on the business plans of the Company, cash flow projections and support letter from holding company, management Is confident that the

Company will be able to meet Its financial obligations as they arise. Accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared on the basis
that the Company will continue as a going concern for the foreseeable future.

Previous year's figures have been regrouped in case wherever necessary to make them comparable with those of the current year,

As per our report of even date alf of Board of Directors

ForSRBC&CO LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No : 324982E/E300003
Poovannan Sumathi
Director

DIN 07147100

.

pe nt Acharya
Partner
Membership No. -~ 124790

Place : Mumbai v Place : Goa Place : Tuticorin
Date : 23 Apr 2025 Date : 23 Apr 2025 Date : 23 Apr 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Vedanta Iron and Steel Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Vedanta Iron and Steel Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements including summary of
material accounting policy information and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
“financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) prescribed under
section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its loss (including other
comprehensive income), its changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
~the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

Har lbhaktl & Co. LLP, Chatlered Accountants Regn. No. AAC- 3768, a limfced Liabliity parthership registered 1n Inéha (converted on 1/th June, 2014
from firm/Haribhakti & Co. FRN: 103523W)

Registered office: 705, Leela Business Park, Andheri-Kurla Road, Andheri (E), Mumbai - 400 059, India. Tel:+91 22 6672 9999 Fax:+91 22 6672 9777
Other offices: Ahmedabad, Bengaluru, Chennai, Hyderabad, Kolkata, New Dethi, Pune, Rajkot, Vadodara.
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including Ind AS prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of this financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also'responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal

s p)
Continuation Sheet
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financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

»  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

»  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we report in “Annexure 1”, a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(2) As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report
are in agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended;

@ Continuation Sheet
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€. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025,
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in “Annexure 2”;

g. With respect to the other matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, no remuneration is paid/provided by the Company to its directors during the year and hence
reporting related to the managerial remuneration is not applicable;

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

(i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts. Hence,
the question of any material foreseeable losses does not arise;

(ifi) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company;

(iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(iv) (b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

Continuation Sheet
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(iv) {c) Based on the audit procedures that are considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement;

(v) The Company has not declared nor paid any dividend during the year. Hence, reporting the
compliance with section 123 of the Act is not applicable;

(vi)Based on our examination, the Company has not used an accounting software for

maintaining its books of account. Hence, reporting related to audit trail is not applicable.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm istration No. 103523W / W100048

-

Dee;;sl_(’ Kabra

Partner

Membership No. 133472
UDIN: 25133472BMOMNUS5227

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 17, 2025

Continuation Sheet
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
in the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Vedanta Iron and Steel
Limited (“the Company”) on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025]

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on
the financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information,
explanations and written representation given to us by the management and the books of account
and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we report that:

The Company does not have any Property, Plant and Equipment or Intangible Assets.
Accordingly, reporting under clause (i) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(a) The Company does not hold any inventory. Therefore, reporting under clause (ii)(a) of
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not obtained any sanctioned working capital limit during the year,
from banks and/or financial institutions. Therefore, reporting under clause (ii)(b) of
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

During the year, the Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, reporting
under clause (iii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

The provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act are not applicable to the Company as the
Company has not granted any loans or made any investment or provided any guarantee or
security during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause (iv) of the paragraph 3 of the
Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to
be deposits. Accordingly, reporting under clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company is not required to maintain cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148
of the Act and the rules framed there under.

(a) The Company is regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities, undisputed
statutory dues including Goods and Services tax (GST), income-tax, duty of customs, cess
and any other material statutory dues applicable to it, in all cases during the year. Since,
the Company does not have any employees, statutory dues in form of provident fund and
employees’ state insurance are not applicable to the Company.

No undisputed amounts payable in respect of income tax, GST, customs duty, cess and
any other materiat statutory dues applicable to it, were outstanding, at the year end,
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) There are no dues with respect to income tax, GST, customs duty and cess, which have
not been deposited on account of any dispute. Since, the Company does not have any
employees, there are no ‘dues in the form of provident fund and employees’ state
insurance.

We have not come across any transactions which were previously not recorded in the books

of account of the Company that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Continuation Sheet
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(ix) (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not taken loans from any bank or financial institution or government
or any government authority during the year. Hence, question of the Company being
declared wilful defaulter does not arise.

(c) The Company did not obtain any money by way of term loans during the year. Accordingly,
reporting under clause (ix)(c) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised
on short-term basis have, been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates, jointly controlled entities or
joint operations, as defined under the Act and hence reporting under clause (ix){e)of
paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable.

(f) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates, jointly controlled entities or
joint operations, as defined under the Act and hence reporting under clause (ix)(f)of
paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised money by way of initial public issue offer / further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Therefore, reporting under clause (x)(a)
of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Therefore,
reporting under clause (x)(b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(xi) {(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to
the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of
fraud by the Company nor any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the year, nor have we been informed of any such instance by the management.

(b) No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central Government
by the auditors of the Company in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, during the year or upto the date of this report.

(c) There are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year and
upto the date of this report.

(xii)  In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, reporting under clause (xii)
of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii)  All transactions entered into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with
section 188 of the Act and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards. Since the Company is not required to
constitute an Audit Committee, the provisions of section 177 of the Act are not applicable to
the Company.

(xiv) (a) In our opinion, the Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required
to have an internal audit system as per the provisions of the Act. Hence, reporting under
clause (xiv) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(xv)  The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
~connected with them during the year and hence, provisions of section 192 of the Act are not
applicable to the Company.

’ . ‘,_A‘.. \‘
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(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Therefore, reporting under clause (xvi)(a) and (b) of paragraph 3 of the
Order are not applicable.

(b) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (“Directions”) by the Reserve Bank of India.
Accordingly, reporting under clause (xvi)(c) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable.

(c) As informed by the Company, the Group to which the Company belongs has no CIC as
part of the Group.

The Company has incurred cash losses for the current and the immediately preceding
financial year amounting to Rs. 2.85 Lakhs and Rs. 1.90 Lakhs respectively.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly,
reporting under clause (xviii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which cause us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
this audit report and that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to date of the
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

The provisions of section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. Hence, reporting
under clause (xx) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 103523W / W100048

=

'Deepak Kabra

Partner
Membership No. 133472
UDIN: 25133472BMOMNU5227

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 17, 2025
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
in our Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Vedanta Iron and Steel
Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under clause (i)
of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Vedanta
Iron and Steel Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAl. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial

statements.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation

% ‘ Continuation Sheet



HARIBHAKTI & CO. LLP

Chartered Accountants

of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 103523W / W100048

—

Deep&k—ﬁabra

Partner [
Membership No. 133472 _
UDIN: 25133472BMOMNUS5227 . Sl

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 17, 2025

Continuation Sheet



Vedanta Iron and Steel Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025

(All amounts in ¥ Lakhs)

. As at As at
Hartcniac bl 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment - -
Financial assets

- Others 3 0.10 -
Other non-current assets - -
Total non-current assets 0.10 -
Current assets
Inventories - -
Financial assets - -

- Cash and cash Equivalents 4 0.76 1.00
Current tax assets (net) - -
Other current assets 3 0.60 0.18
Total current assets 1.36 1.18
Total Assets 1.46 1.18
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 6 1.00 1.00
Other Equity (4.75) (1.90)
Total Equity (3.73) (0.90)
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Other non-current liabilities - -
Total non-current liabilities - -
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities - -

- Borrowings 7 3.89 -
- Trade payables - -
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises - -
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 8 0.81 0.81
- Other financial liabilities 9 0.38 0.85
Other current liabilities 10 0.13 0.42
Provisions - -
Income tax liabilities (net) - -
Total current liabilities 5.21 2.08
Total Equity and Liabilities 1.46 1.18

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our attached report of even date

Haribhakti & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAT Firm tion Number: 103523W/W100048

Deepak Kabra
Partner

ICAT Membership Number: 133472

Place: Mumbai
Date: 17th April 2025

For and on behalf ofthe boag of directors of Vedanta [ron and
Steel Limited
Anup Agarwal ankaj Jha
Director Director

DIN: 08551388 DIN: 09114381

Place: Delhi Place: Jharsuguda
Date: 17th April 2025 Date: 17th April 2023



Vedanta Iron and Steel Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Al amounts in I Lakhs unless stated otherwise)

For the period
. For the year ended 10 October
Harticulars fioLe 31 March 2025 2023 to 31
March 2024
Revenue from operations - -
Total Income = =
Expenses:
Finance costs 11 0.51 -
Other expenses 12 2.34 1.90
Total expenses 2.85 1.90
Loss before tax (2.85) (1.90)
Tax Expense - -
Net Loss after tax (A) (2.85) (1.90)
Other Comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Itens that will be reclassified to profit or loss = -
Total Other Comprehensive Income for the period (B) - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (A+B) (2.85) (1.90)
Earnings per share (in %)
- Basic and Diluted 13 (2.85) (1.90)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our attached report of even date
Haribhakti & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Hteatan Number: 103523W/W 100048

Deepak Kabra
Partner
[CAI Membership Number: 133472

Place: Mumbai
Date: 17th April 2025

For and on behalf of thi: board gl}directors of Vedanta Iron and

Steel Limited
-
S
Anup Agarwal Pankaj Jha
Director Director
DIN: 08551388 DIN: 09114381
Place: Delhi Place: Jharsuguda

Date: 17th April 2025 Date: | 7th April 2025




Vedanta Iron and Steel Limited
Cash Flow Statement For the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts in T Lakhs)

For the period
Particulars For the year ended | 10 October 2023
31 March 2025 to 31 March
2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Loss before taxation (2.85) (1.90)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation - =
Provision for doubtful debts/ advance/ bad debts written off - -
Interest income - -
Interest expense 043 -
Changes in assets and liabilities
Decrease/ (Increase) in trade and other receivables (0.42) (0.18)
Decrease/ (Increase) in non current financial assets (0.10) .
(Decrease)/ Increase in trade and other payable (1.19) 2.08
Cash generated from operations (4.13) -
Income taxes paid (net) - -
Net cash generated from operating activities (4.13) -
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (including intangibles) - -
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - -
Interest received - -
Dividends received = 3
Net cash generated from investing activities - -
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from short-term borrowings (net) 3.89 -
Proceeds from issue of share capital - 100
Net cash used in financing activities 3.89 1.00
Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents (0.24) 1.00
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 1.00 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period (Refer note 4) 0.76 1.00

Notes :
1. The figures in parentheses indicate outflow
2. The above cash flow has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7 - statement of cash flows

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our attached report of even date

Haribhakti & Co. LLP For and on behalf of thigboard of difgectors of Vedanta Iron and Steel

Chartered Accountants / Limited

ICA 1on Number: 103523W/W 100048 o

B -
Anup Aga Pankaj Jha

Partner Directo Director

ICAT Membership Number: 133472 DIN: 08551388 DIN: 09114381

Place: Mumbai Place: Delhi Place: Jharsuguda

Date: 17th April 2025 Date: 17th April 2025

Date: 17th April 2025




Vedanta Iron and Steel Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2025

A. Equity Share Capital (Refer Note No. 6)

(All amounts in ¥ Lakhs)

Equity shares of T 1/- each issued, subscribed and fully paid up

Number of shares
(in lakhs)

Amount

As at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024

1.00

1.00

B. Other Equity

Reserves and

Particulars Surplus Total other equity

Retained earnings
Balance as at 10 October 2023 - -
Loss for the period (1.90) (1.90)
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax -
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (1.90) (1.90)
Balance as on 31 March 2024 (1.90) (1.90)
Loss for the year (2.85) (2.85)
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax = =
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (2.85) (2.85)
Balance as at 31 March 2025 4.75) (4.75)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our attached report of even date

Haribhakti & Co. LLP

Chartergd-Aeeayntants

A hiion Number: 103523 W/W 100048

ICAI Membership Number: 133472

Place: Mumbai
Date: 17th April 2025

For and on behalf of the boafd of dir

Anup Aga
Director
[DIN: 08551388

Place: Delhi
Date: 17th April 2025

tors of Vedanta Iron and Steel Limited

Dircctor
DIN: 09114381

Place: Jharsuguda
Date: 17th April 2025



Vedanta Iron and Steel Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

NOTE 1. CORPORATE INFORMATION
Vedanta Tron and Steel Limited ("the Company") is a Public Company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"). The Company was incorporated on 10 October 2023 for carrying out the business activities in the
metal and mining sector.

NOTE 2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND BASIS OF MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(a) Basis of Preparation
These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards notified under the

Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act (as amended from time to time). These
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies, set out below.

All financial information presented in Indian Rupee has been rounded off to the nearest Lakhs except when indicated otherwise.

These financials statements are approved for issue by the Board of Directors on April 17, 2025. The revision to these financials
statements is permitted by the Board of Directors after obtaining necessary approvals or at the instance of regulatory authorities as per
provisions of the Act.

(b) Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost convention and on an accrual method of
accounting.

Y



Vedanta Iron and Steel Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

NOTE 2.2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

(e)

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards requires the management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of
current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

Accounting for foreign currency transactions

The functional currency of the Company is determined as the currency of the primary economic environment in which it operates. For
all principal businesses of the Company, the functional currency is Indian rupee . The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee.

In the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in other
currencies are translated into the functional currency at exchange rates prevailing on the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in other currencies and measured at historical cost or fair value are translated at the exchange rates prevailing on
the dates on which such values were determined.

All exchange differences are included in the statement of profit and loss except those where the monetary item designated as an
effective hedging instrument of the currency risk of designated forecasted sales or purchases, which are recognized in the other
comprehensive income.

Earnings Per Share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its equity shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the
profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares



Vedanta [ron and Steel Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

(d) Provisions

(e)

®

The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions have been made in accordance with the applicable Ind AS.

Provisions represent liabilities for which the amount or timing is uncertain. Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present
obligation (legal or constructive), as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably
estimated, will be required to settle such an obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to net
present value using an appropriate pre tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Unwinding of the discount is recognized in the statement of profit and loss as a finance
cost. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Current and non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification.

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

— it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle.

— it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded:

— it is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date; or

— it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

— it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

— it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

— it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

— the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not
affect its classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non current only.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term money market deposits which have a maturity of three
months or less from the date of acquisition, that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits. as defined above.




Vedanta [ron and Steel Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

(g) Financial assets

(h)

(i

The company classifies its financial assets in following measurement categories :-
a. Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income (OCI) or through profit or loss) and

b. those measured at amortised cost.

At initial recognition, the company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of financial asset not at fair value through
profit and loss, transaction cost that are directly attributable to the acquisition of financial asset. Transaction cost of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

For equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value in OCI. The
Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at
FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the
amounts from OCI to the statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative
gain or loss within equity.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or as loans, borrowings
and payables as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of financial liabilities at amortised cost, net of directly
attributable transaction costs. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans, borrowings and trade and other payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the EIR amortisation process.

Standards notified but not yet effective

No new standards have been notified during the year ended 31 March 2025.

3ensitizty. Internal €£3)



Vedanta Tron and Steel Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

3 Non Current Financial Assets - Others

(All umounts in T Lukhs unless stuted otherwise)

Particulars

As at 31 March
2025

As at 31 March
2024

Security Deposit

Total

0.10

4 Current financial assets - Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

As at 31 March
2025

As at 31 March
2024

Balances with banks

1.00

Total

1.00

Other Current Assets

n

As at 31 March

As at 31 March

Particulars 2025 2024
Input GST 060 018
Total 0.60 0.18

L=}

Share capital

Particulars

As at 31 March
2025

As at 31 March
2024

A. Authorised Equity Share Capital

1 lakh equity shares of Z1/- each 1.00 1.00

B. Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up Equity Share Capital
| lakh equity shares of Z1/- each 1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00

Total issued, subscribed and fully paid up share capital

C. Shares held by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries*

Particulars

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

Number of Shares % of holding Number of

% of holding

held Shares held
Vedanta Limited and their nominees 1,00,000 100% 1,00,000 100%
Total 1,00,000 100% 1,00,000 100%

* The % of holding has been calculated on the issued and subscribed share capital as at the balance sheet date

D. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company *

Particulars

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

Number of Shares % of holding

e er ol % of holding

held Shares held
Vedanta Limited and their nominees 1.00,000 100% 1.00.000 100%
Total 1,00,000 100% 1,00,000 100%

* The % of holding has been calculated on the issued and subscribed share capital as at the balance sheet date



Vedanta Iron and Steel Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

Al amounts in < Lakhs unless stated otherwise)

6 Share capital (Continued)

E. Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters and Promoter Group

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Number of Shares o . Number of o .
held % of holding Shares held "o of holding
Vedanta Limited 99,994 99 99% 99,994 99.99%

Mr. Anup Agarwal 1 0.00% 1 0.00%
Mr. Pankaj Jha | 000% 1 0.00%
Mr. Sunil Gupta | 0.00% 1 0.00%
1 |
|

Mr. Mayank Totla 0.00% 0.00%
Mr. Swapnesh Bansal 0.00% - 0.00%
Mr. Jagdeep Singh* - 0.00% ! 0.00%
Ms. Mansi Dhiman | 0.00% | 0.00%
Total 1.00.000 100% 1,00,000 100%
Vedanta Limited is the Holding Company of the Company and is the beneficial owner while the nominee shareholders are the registered owners.
* The nominee shareholder has been changed from Mr. Jagdeep Singh to Mr. Swapnesh Bansal with effect from April 26, 2024
F. Reconciliation of shares:
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Number of Shares Number of Shares i
Rs. Rs.
At the beginning of period 1,00,000 1,00,000 - -
Shares issued during the period - - 1,00,000 1,00,000
Shares outstanding at the end of the reporting period 100,000 1,00.000 1,00,000 1,00,000

G. Terms/rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Z1 per share (31 March 2024: 21 per share). Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per
share

The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees in accordance with the provisions of the Act. The dividend, if proposed by the Board of Directors, is subject to
the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders

H. There are no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts or commitments for the sale of shares or disinvestment
1. There are no unpaid calls from any Directors and officers

7 Current Financial liabilities - Borrowings

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

At amortised cost

Unsecured
Loans from related parties (Refer Note 17) 389 =
Total 3.89 -

a) Rate of interest and Repayment terms
1. Rate of interest - 10.40%(PY NA)
2 Repayment Terms - Repayable in | year as per lenders demand



Vedanta Iron and Steel Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

b) Movement in borrowings during the year:

(All umounts in T Lakhy unless stated otherwise)

Particulars

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Opening Balance as at April 01, 2024

Cash Flow 389 -
Other non cash changes a >
As at March 31, 2025 3.89 -

8 Current Financial liabilities - Trade payables

Particulars

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Undisputed dues — Micro and Small Enterprises
Unbilled dues

Not due

Less than | year

More than | year

Sub-total

Undisputed dues - Others

Unbilled dues 0.81 081
Not due - -
Less than | year - =
More than 1 year - i
Sub-total 0381 0.81
Disputed dues - Micro and Small Enterprises

Unbilled dues - .
Not due - ”
Less than | year ] &
More than 1 year = -
Sub-total = =
Disputed dues - Others

Unbilled dues = ”
Not due - N
Less than 1 year - -
More than 1 year = =
Sub-total = -
Total 0.81 0.81

9 Other Financial Liabilities

Particulars

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

-Accrued interest (Refer Note 17)

Total

10 Other Current Liabilities

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
-TDS Payable 013 024
-GST Payable - 018
Total 0.13 0.42




Vedanta Tron and Steel Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

11 Finance costs

(All amounts in T Lukhs unless stated otherwise)

Particulars

Year ended 31

For the period 10 October

March 2025 2023 to 31 March 2024
Interest expense on financial liabilities at amortised cost 043 -
Bank Charges 0.08 000
Total 0.51 0.00

12 QOther Expenses

Particulars

Year ended 31

For the period 10 October

March 2025 2023 to 31 March 2024
Brand License and Strategic Service Fees (Refer Note 17) 1.00 1.00
Others 019 -
Renumeration to auditors
- For Statutory Audit 0.90 090
- For other Services 0.25 -
Total 2.34 1.90

L3 Earnings per equity share (EPS)

Year ended 31

For the period 10 October

MASHCUCES March 2025 2023 to 31 March 2024
Profit / (Loss) after tax for the period attributable to equity share holders for Basic and Diluted EPS (2.85) (1.90)
Weighted Average No. of equity shares outstanding during the period for Basic and Dilutive EPS 1,00,000 1.00.000
Basic and Diluted Earnings per share (in ¥) (2.85) (190)

1.00 1.00

Nominal value per share (in %)

*or the period 10 October 2023 10 31 March 2024, not annualised.

Smce the Company does not have any potential dilutrve equity shares, both Basic Earning per share and Diluted Eurning per shure will be same



Vedanta Iron and Steel Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

14 Key Financial Ratios

Ratio Analysis 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 Variance
1 [Current Ratio' 0.26 0.57 54%
2 [Debt Equity Ratio® (1.04) NA* 100%
3 |Debt Service Coverage Ratio® 0.54 NA* 100%
4 |Return on Equity Ratio® (0.76) (210 64%
5 |Inventory Turnover Ratio NA* NA* NA*
6 |Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio NA* NA* NA*
7 |Trade Payables Turnover Ratio NA* NA* NA*
8 |Net Capital Turnover Ratio NA* NA* NA*
9 |Net Profit Ratio NA* NA* NA*
10 |Return on Capital employed’ (20.73) (21D -882%
11 |Return on Investment NA* NA* NA*

Note: * Not Applicable due to Company has no Revenue, Inventory, Trade receivables, Investment during the period ended 31 March 2025
' The Ratio has decreased due to increase in debt during the current year,
? The Ratio has increased due to new debt taken during the current year.
? The Ratio has decreased due to increase in net loss during the current year

Formulae for computation of ratios is as follows:

Ratio

Formula

I |Current Ratio (in times)

Current Assets/ Current Liabilities (excluding current maturities of long-term borrowing)

2 |Debt-Equity Ratio (in times) Gross Debt/ Total Equity

3 |Debt Service Coverage Ratio (in times) Income available for debt service/ (interest expense and principal payments of long term
loans), where income available for debt service = Profit before exceptional itemns and tax +
Depreciation, depletion and amortization expense + Interest expense

4 |Return on Equity Ratio (%) Net Profit after tax before exceptional items (net of tax)/ Average Equity

5 |inventory turnover Ratio (in times) Revenue from operations less EBITDA/ Average Inventory

6 |Trade Receivables turnover Ratio (in times) Revenue from operations/ Average Trade Receivables

7 |Trade payables turnover Ratio (in times) Total Purchases/ Average Trade Payables

8 |Net capital turnover Ratio (in times) Revenue from operations/ Working capital (WC), where WC = Current Assets - Current

Liabilities (excluding current maturities of long-term borrowing)

9 |Net profit Ratio (°)

Net Profit after tax before exceptional items (net of tax)/ Revenue from operations

10 |Return on Capital employed (in times)

Earnings before interest and tax/ Average Capital Employed, where capital employed =
Net Debt + Total Equity

11 |Return on investment (%)

Income from investments carried at FVTPL/ Average current investments




Vedanta Iron and Steel Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

Capital Management

—
2]}

The Company’s objectives when managing capital is to safeguard continuity, maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and provide adequate return to shareholders through continuing growth. The Company sets the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business
and long-term operating plans which include capital and other strategic investments. The funding requirements are met through a mixture of equity, internal fund
generation and borrowings. The Company believes that it will be able to meet all its current liabilities on timely manner. The Company is yet to initiate any project

The following table summarizes the capital of the Company:

Particulars

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

Cash and cash equivalents

Total cash (a)

Non-current borrowings

Current borrowings

Total borrowings (b)

Net debt c=(b-a)

Total equity

Total capital (equity + net debt) (d)
Gearing ratio (times) (c¢/d)

076 1.00
076 1.00
3.89 -

3.89 -

313 -1.00
-3.75 -0.90
-0.62 -1.90
-5.06 0.53

16 Contingent Liabilities & Commitments:

Based on the information available with the Company, there are no Contingent liabilities and commitments as at the period ended 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024:

Nil)

17 Related Party Disclosures:
List of related parties and relationships:

- Entities controlling the Company
Vedanta Incorporated (Ultimate Holding Company)
Vedanta Resources Limited (Intermediate Holding Company)
Vedanta Limited (Holding Company)

- Fellow Subsidiaries:
Vedanta Resources Investments Limited

5)/'




Vedanta Iron and Steel Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

17 Related Party Disclosures (Continued)

Related party transactions/balances

For the year ended 31
March 2025

For the period ended 31
March 2024

Transactions for the period

Vedanta Resources Investments Limited :
Brand License and Strategic Service Fees *

Vedanta Limited :

Investments received during the period as Share Capital
Short term borrowings taken during the year
Repayment of short term Borrowings

Interest paid during the year

Balances at the vear end
Vedanta Limited
-Borrowings

-Accrued Interest

1.00

8.89
5.00
0.43

3.89

0.38

1.00

1.00

*The Company has a Brand license and strategic service fee agreement (“the Agreement”) with Vedanta Resources Limited, Vedanta Resources [nvestments
Limited ("VRIL") for the use of brand 'Vedanta’ and providing strategic services which envisaged payment to VRIL at the rate of 3% of turover of the Company
or Rs. | Lakh whichever is higher. The Company has recorded an expense of Rs. 1 Lakh for the year. (Rs. 1 lakh 2024}

18 Subsequent events:
There are no other material adjusting or non-adjusting subsequent events

19 Financial instruments
Fair values

(a) The carrying amounts of other receivables, cash at bank, borrowings and other payables approximate their fair values.

Categories of financial instruments:

Particulars

As at 31st March 2025

As at 31st March 2024

Financial assets
Loan and receivables (including cash and cash equivalents)

Financial liabilities
Loans and payables

0.86

5.08

100

1.66

(b) Market Risk Management

Market risk is the risk that the tair value or future cash flows of a tinancial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices
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19 Financial instruments(Continued)
(c) Interest Rate Risk VManagement
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cashflows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
At 31 March 2025, the Company’s net debt of ¥ 3. 13 Lakhs (31 March 2024: (1) lakhs) comprises debt of ¥ 3.89 Lakhs (31 March 2024: Nil ) offset by cash,
bank of ¥ 0 76 Lakhs (31 March 2024: 1 Lakhs)
The Company is not exposed to interest rate risk as all the short-term and long-term borrowings are on fixed interest rate

(d) Currency Risk Management

The Company is not exposed to the risk that may change in a manner which has material effect on the reported values of the Company's assets which are
denominated in other foreign currencies at reporting period

Currency protile

The currency profile of the Company's financial assets and liabilities is summarised as follows:

X Financial Assets Financial Liabilities
Particulars —
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2025
INR 0.86 5.08
Financial Assets Financial Liabilities
Particul
artieulary As at 31 March 2024 | As at 31 March 2024
INR 1.00 1.66

As at 31 March 2025 the Company does not have any material exposure to foreign currencies and consequently the sensitivity relative to foreign currencies has not
been disclosed

(e) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to
ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity
profiles of the financial assets and liabilities. The table below illustrates the aged analysis of the Company’s financial liabilities,

As at 31st March 2025

Payments due by year Up to 1 Year Total

Trade Payables 081 0.81
Borrowings* 427 427
Total 5.08 5.08

* Includes accrued interest




Vedanta Iron and Steel Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

19 Financial instruments(continued)
(e) Liquidity risk(continued)

As at 31st March 2024

Payments due by year Up to 1 Year Total

Trade Payables 081 081
Borrowings - =
Total 0.81 081

(f) Capital risk management

For the purpose of the capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary
objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the shareholder value

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and
borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents

The capital structure of the Company consists of stated capital, retained eamings and net debt

19 Scheme of Arrangement
The Board of Directors of holding company, i.e. Vedanta Limited, in its meeting held on 29 September 2023, had approved a Scheme of Arrangement (“the

Original Scheme™) for demerger of various businesses of the holding Company, namely, demerger of the holding company’s Aluminium (represented by the
Aluminium segment), Merchant Power (represented by the Power segment), Oil & Gas (represented by the Oil and Gas segment), Base Metals (represented by the
Copper and Zinc International segment) and Iron Ore (represented by Iron Ore segment and Steel business) Undertakings, resulting in 6 separate companies
(including Vedanta Limited, being the demerged Company), with a mirrored shareholding and consequent listings at BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of
India Limited ("the Stock Exchanges"). The Board of Directors of the Company in the meeting held on 13 October 2023, had also approved the Scheme The Stock
Exchanges gave their observation letter / no adverse observation letter to the Scheme in July 2024.

A first motion application, in respect of the Original Scheme, was filed by demerged company (i.e., Vedanta Limited) and four resulting companies (i.e., Vedanta
Aluminium Metal Limited (“VAML”), Malco Energy Limited (“MEL”), Vedanta Base Metals Limited (*“VBML”) and Vedanta Iron and Steel Limited (“VISL”)
before the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (“NCLT™) on 06 August 2024 (VEDL st Motion™). The Hon’ble NCLT, vide order dated 21
November 2024 (“VEDL NCLT Order™), inter alia directed: (i) Vedanta Limited to convene a meeting of its equity shareholders, secured creditors and unsecured
creditors within 90 days of the date of receipt of the order; (ii) MEL to convene a meeting of its secured creditors and unsecured creditors within 90 days of the date
of receipt of the order; and (iii) dispensed with the meeting of: (a) equity shareholders of VAML, MEL, VBML and VISL; and (b) secured creditors and unsecured
creditors of VAML, VBML and VISL

Subsequent to the above, in December 2024, by way of Board Resolutions dated 20 December 2024 and 23 December 2024, the Board of Vedanta Limited and

other five resulting companies (including the Company), respectively, decided not to proceed with the implementation of Part V of the Original Scheme e,

demerger of Base Metal undertaking into VBML, along with making appropriate updates to the Original Scheme (“Updated Scheme™). The non-implementation of
the demerger of the Base Metals undertaking shall not affect any other parts of the Original Scheme described above

A separate first motion application had been filed by Talwandi Sabo Power Limited (“TSPL™), one of the resulting companies, with the Hon’ble NCLT, Mumbai

on 22 October 2024 (“TSPL 1st Motion™), given TSPL’s registered office (RO) was in the process of being changed from Mansa, Punjab to Mumbai, Maharashtra

at the time of filing VEDL Ist Motion. The Hon’ble NCLT, by its order dated 04 March 2025, disposed the TSPL 1st Motion rejecting the Scheme presented by

TSPL pursuant to TSPL 1st Motion (“TSPL NCLT Order™). TSPL has filed an appeal against the TSPL NCLT Order before the Hon’ble National Company Law

Appellate Tribunal, New Delhi (NCLAT) on 3 April, 2025 :

In compliance with the VEDL NCLT Order, the meeting of the equity shareholders, secured creditors and unsecured creditors of Vedanta Limited and secured
creditors and unsecured creditors of MEL was held through VC/OAVM on 18 February 2025 and the Updated Scheme (with modification to exclude demerger of
Base Metals Undertaking) was approved by the equity shareholders, secured creditors and unsecured creditors of Vedanta Limited and secured and unsecured
creditors of MEL
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Additional Regulatory Information

The Company does not own any immovable property during the year.

The Company does not have any Capital Work in progress or Intangible assets under development during the year

The Company does not have Property, Plant or Equipment and hence no revaluation has been done accordingly during the year

The Company has not granted any loans or advances to promoters, directors, key managerial personnel (KMPs) and the related parties (as defined under
Companies Act, 2013) either severally or jointly with any other person, that are :

(a) Repayable on demand or

(b) Without specifying any terms or period of repayment

The Company has not availed any borrowings from banks or financial institutions based on the security of current assets of other companies / entities
within the same Group as the reporting entity

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami
property

The Company has no any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961)

The Company has not traded or invested in any crypto or virtual currency.
The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of tunds) to any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities.

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities.

The Company has not been declared wiltul defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender

The Company does not have any secured external borrowings during the period and hence registration of charges or satisfaction not required

The Company does not have any transactions with struck oft companies under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year

In accordance Sec 135 and 198 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is incurring losses since the date of incorporation and hence the Company is
not required to incur any expenditure in pursuance of the CSR Policy for the FY 2024-25 (31 March 2024: Nil)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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